
 

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Paulina Ford on  as soon as possible. 
 

 

ABABABAB    
 
SUSTAINABLE GROWTH AND ENVIRONMENT CAPITAL 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

THURSDAY 5 SEPTEMBER 2013 
7.00 PM 
 

Bourges/Viersen Room - Town Hall 
 

AGENDA  

 Page No 

 
1. Apologies for Absence 

 
 

2. Declarations of  Interest and Whipping Declarations 
 

 

 At this point Members must declare whether they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, or other interest, in any of the items on the agenda, 
unless it is already entered in the register of members’ interests or is a 
“pending notification “ that has been disclosed to the Solicitor to the Council.  

Members must also declare if they are subject to their party group whip in 
relation to any items under consideration. 
 
 

 

3. Minutes of Meetings held on 12 June and 11 July 
 

3 - 20 

 • 12 June 2013 

• 11 July 2013 
 

 

4. Call In of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions 
 

 

 The decision notice for each decision will bear the date on which it is 
published and will specify that the decision may then be implemented on the 
expiry of 3 working days after the publication of the decision (not including 
the date of publication), unless a request for call-in of the decision is 
received from any two Members of a Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny 
Commissions.  If a request for call-in of a decision is received, 
implementation of the decision remains suspended for consideration by the 
relevant Scrutiny Committee or Commission. 
 
 

 

5. Human Resources Monitoring Report 
 

21 - 40 

6. Environment Capital Update 
 

41 - 42 

Public Document Pack



7. Enterprise Peterborough Partnership Performance Report 
 

43 - 62 

8. Community Asset Transfer Strategy 
 

63 - 78 

9. Notice of Intention to Take Key Decisions 
 

79 - 92 

10. Work Programme 2013/2014 
 

93 - 98 

11. Date of Next Meeting 
 

 

 • Tuesday, 15 October 2013 – Extraordinary Meeting 

• Thursday, 7 November 2013 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Committee Members: 
 

Councillors: S Allen (Chair), N Arculus (Vice Chairman), J Peach, Y Maqbool, S Martin, N 
Thurlbourn and J A Fox 

 
Substitutes: Councillors: D McKean, L Forbes and C Ash 

 
Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Paulina Ford on telephone  or by 
email –  

 
Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours 
 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair. 

 



ABABABAB    
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE SUSTAINABLE GROWTH AND ENVIRONMENT 
CAPITAL SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 HELD IN THE BOUGES/VIERSEN ROOMS, TOWN HALL  
ON 12 JUNE 2013 

 
Present: Councillors N Arculus (Vice Chairman), J Peach, L Serluca,  JA Fox,  

N Thulbourn 
 

Also Present: Jasmine Weedon, Youth Council 
Ellie Jaggard, Youth Council 
Councillor Elsey, Cabinet Member for Culture, Recreation & Waste 
Management 
Richard Oldfield, Enterprise Partnership Director 
 

Officers Present: Simon Machen, Head of Planning, Transport and Engineering 
Services 
Dominic Hudson, Strategic partnerships Manager 
James Collingridge, Enterprise Partnership Manager 
John Harrison, Executive Director of Resources 
Steven Pilsworth, Head of Corporate Services 
Kim Sawyer, Head of  Legal Services 
Paulina Ford, Senior Governance Officer 
 

 
1. Apologies for Absence  

 
Apologies were received from Councillor Allen and Councillor Maqbool.  Councillor Serluca 
was in attendance as substitute for Councillor Allen. 
 

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations  
 
There were no declarations of interest or whipping declarations. 
 

3. Minutes of Meetings held on: 
 

• 18 March, 2013 

• 20 March, 2013 
 
The minutes of the meetings held on 18 March and 20 March were approved as an accurate 
record.   
 

4. Call in of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions 
 
There were no requests for call-in to consider. 
 

5. Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 
The Chair asked the Committee to discuss whether to exclude the press and public from the 
meeting when the exempt appendices were to be discussed at item 7 Energy Performance 
Contract (EnPC) or whether the public interest in disclosing this information outweighed the 
public interest in maintaining the exemption. 
 
 

3



 
After a short discussion the Committee voted unanimously in favour of going into exempt 
session to consider the exempt papers. 
  
At this point the Chair announced that the Committee had  received a request to change the 
order of the agenda and that item number 7 Energy Performance Contract (EnPC) would be 
presented first followed by item number 6 on the agenda, Enterprise Peterborough 
Partnership Performance Progress Report.  After a short discussion the Committee 
unanimously agreed to change the order of the agenda. 
 

6. Energy Performance Contract (EnPC) 
 
The report presented by the Executive Director of Operations provided the Committee with 
an update on energy efficiency (EnPC) on council owned buildings.  The report also sought 
views from the Committee on the draft CMDN which related to the contract award.  Members 
were reminded of the Council’s objective to be the Environment Capital of the UK.  Most of 
the work completed so far had been around renewable energy generation but the report was 
about energy efficiency and the efficiency of the council’s portfolio including schools 
otherwise known as Energy Performance Contracts. These types of contact were well 
established in America and Europe but not so much in the Public Sector.  Members were 
informed that the council had entered into a strategic partnership with British Gas which was 
focused around getting energy efficiency into people’s homes.   
 
Energy efficiency played a vital part in the nation’s energy strategy. The government and 
Europe would be legislating to increase responsibilities in this area. In 2015 there would be a 
requirement to conduct energy efficiency audits. The contract award placed Peterborough at 
the forefront of leading change in advance of the national agenda.  The advantage of the 
contract would be that it would look across the whole of the council’s portfolio.  Currently the 
Council was marginally above the rate for being excluded from carbon taxes in the UK it 
would only need a series of interventions to take the council out of that carbon tax liability in 
the future.  The contract had also been advertised to be open to any local authority in 
England.  The council would get an access fee for other authorities participating.  The 
contract was about improving energy efficiency across the council buildings and the assets 
within it and providing something that can be used across the whole of England and make 
the council money. 

 
Questions and observations were made around the following areas: 
 

• Members were concerned that the assessment of buildings may turn out to provide a 
reason to dispose of some of the council buildings.  Members were advised that there 
was no reason why the council would seek to dispose of its assets solely because it 
could not make it more energy efficient.  The contract would contribute to helping to keep 
the buildings going and provide a reason to invest to get the buildings more energy 
efficient.  

• Members sought clarification on the meaning of ‘call-off contracts’.  Members were 
informed that the purpose of the CMDN was to award the top level contract to Honeywell 
for a period of eight years.  The contract had a nil value unless any individual contracts 
were called-off within it.  The Council would for example look at the contracts that 
Honeywell had already started and look at the outline business case.  Honeywell would 
be requested to complete a detailed audit and to present a financial proposal.  The 
financial proposal would state the cost of intervention.  They would have to provide a 
private sector funded solution.  Once the business case and financial proposal was 
agreed then the contract would go through the normal council decision making process. 
Each individual call-off contract would require an individual business case supporting it 
and would be subject to the Councils decision making process. 

4



• What is the likely typical value of each individual call-off contract?  Members were 
informed that most of the individual contracts on the individual properties would be below 
£500,000. 

• What would be the likely total value of all of the call-off contracts over the period of eight 
to fifteen years?  Members were informed that it was difficult to confirm without 
completing a full feasibility study.  During the tendering process the contractor had 
assessed a portfolio of 20 buildings and had estimated that interventions for that portfolio 
would cost £2M which was an average of £100K per property.  Some properties like the 
Regional Pool or Town Hall would cost more and others would cost less. 

• Would there be a requirement to go through an OJEU Procurement process for each 
contract.  Members were informed that there would be no further requirement to go 
through the OJEU Procurement process as this had been completed through the award 
of the contract at the high level to Honeywell. 

• Members commented that this would be an opportunity to create a centre of excellence 
and up skill local employees. Would Honeywell sub contact out the work.  Members were 
advised that Honeywell were the main contractor but had the ability to sub contract out.  
Whilst Honeywell have specialist roles they would also look at employing locally where 
appropriate for the skills required.  

• Would Honeywell be based in Peterborough?  Members were informed that the proposal 
did not indicate that Honeywell would relocate its base to Peterborough. 

• Members noted that the report had stated that “the initial investment could be through 
one of the following three sources: 

• The Council funds directly (including through using the Invest to Save capital 
funding) 

• Blue Sky Peterborough invest directly (in turn drawing loan finance from the 
council) 

• Honeywell invest and take a share of future savings” 
When would the decision be made on the source of investment.  Members were informed 
that it would be part of the business case.  The default position might be that for the first 
time the council would invest commercially in the Energy Services Company.  Three 
different methods of funding had been mentioned to create a contract that was future 
proof. 
 

At this point the Chair moved the meeting into Exempt session and requested that the Press, 
Public and members of the Youth Council leave the room while the Committee considered 
the Exempt papers. 

 
After a period of discussion in Exempt Session the Chair invited the Press, Public and 
members of the Youth Council back to the meeting. 
 
The Chairman thanked the Executive Director of Resources for his presentation. 
 

   ACTIONS AGREED 
 
 The Committee noted the report. 

 
7. Enterprise Peterborough Partnership Performance Progress Report  

 
The Cabinet Member for Culture, Recreation and Waste Management introduced the report 
which provided the Committee with an update on the performance of the Enterprise 
Peterborough Partnership since it last reported to the Committee on 18 March 2013.  
Members were informed that the partnership had entered into the third year of a twenty three 
year relationship with the council.   The report covered the following areas: 
 

• Update on the roll out of the Street Care Service 

• Progress on Recycling and Food Waste 

5



• Green Open Space Implementation Plan  

• Key Performance Indicators (KPI’s) / Customer Satisfaction 
 
Members were informed that the food waste collection service had achieved target and 
saved the Council money by reducing landfill costs.  Enterprise had been put forward as 
finalists in the National Recycling Awards and had been approached by a number of other 
councils who wanted to replicate the service. Over the past two years Enterprise had made 
some major changes and investments and it was now time to refine the services provided. 
 
The Enterprise Partnership Director presented the Committee with a progress update on the 
street care model.   A series of maps were shown to Members which identified detailed GIS 
data for the city, relating to the streets that were cleaned and the grass that was cut.  
Members were informed that detailed service delivery plans were now in place using this 
data along with the service standards set by the council.  The city had been split into three 
operating areas with work gangs that operated in each of the three areas.  Additional 
supervisors had been put in place who conducted five quality checks each day to ensure the 
work had been completed to the required standard. An EPA grading system which was a 
visual standards model was now being used to grade the street cleansing.   
 
Questions and observations were made around the following areas: 
 

• Members commented that they had requested at the previous meeting in March a list of  
new revised Key Performance Indicators  and Service Level Agreements (SLA’s) that 
Enterprise were working to.  The Strategic Partnerships Manager informed Members that 
the Client Team were responsible for producing the KPI’s.  There were currently 106 
KPI’s in place and these were currently being rationalised and there was still more work 
to be done before these could be finalised and presented to the Committee. 

• Members commented that fly tipping at Norward Lane and in Gunthorpe Road was still a 
serious issue and wanted to know how this was being dealt with under the street 
cleansing model.  Members were informed that Norwood Lane had not been included in 
the street cleansing model and was being treated as an exceptional area.  This area was 
cleaned by agreement with the council which was originally four times a year but had 
been cleaned more frequently recently.  Security and monitoring had been put in place 
but as soon as this stopped more fly tipping occurred. 

• Members commented that waste bins were not being emptied regularly and were often 
seen overflowing and some areas of the city were not being cleansed of litter regularly.    
What could be done to address this?  Members were advised that the reality was that 
budgets had been cut over the past few years.  Enterprise had been tasked with the 
KPI’s that the council had given them and were performing over and above those targets.  
Some wards had specific issues e.g. a high volume of fast food take aways which 
produced more litter.  Resources and money were no longer available to provide the type 
of service that had been on offer previously through City Services. 

• Members sought clarification as to how much money had been taken out of the budget 
over the past three years for Enterprise.  Members were informed that when the contract 
was let the agreement was that Enterprise would provide a year on year saving of £2M 
and in total Enterprise had saved the council £6.25M so far.  Grass cutting and litter 
picking were reduced as part of the savings. 

• Members wanted to know if Enterprise were introducing manned skips to be strategically 
placed in certain areas of the city to stop people fly tipping.  Members were advised that 
this was being considered as part of a range of options.  If this was considered to be a 
viable project then it would hopefully be piloted during the autumn. 

• A Member of the Committee asked the Cabinet Member for Culture, Recreation & Waste 
Management if there was an opportunity to renegotiate the contract with Enterprise or 
terminate it.  The Cabinet Member informed Members that the contract would not be 
terminated unless there was reason to believe that the contract was not being fulfilled.  
The KPI’s were currently being reviewed to make them more stringent to make Enterprise 
more accountable. 

6



• Did the ‘Can-do’ area have black, green and brown bin collections on a weekly basis?  
Members were advised that this area had fortnightly collections but larger bins had been 
issued. 

• Members noted the Longthorpe area of Peterborough had the highest recycling rate in 
the city which was 47% and sought clarification on what this covered.   Members were 
advised that the 47% referred to the contents of the green bin.   

• Members wanted to know why shredded paper had to go in to the black bin and therefore 
end up in land fill.  Members were informed that the challenge was that the shredded 
paper caused problems with the recycling machinery and therefore had to go into the 
black bin. 

• Members were very supportive of the food waste collection service.  

• Members requested that each councillor received a copy of the maps showing ward by 
ward recycling rates. 

• Members wanted to know when the food waste collection service would be rolled out to 
apartments.  Members were informed that apartments required new waste collection 
receptacles to be able to accommodate food waste collection.  The new receptacles were 
expensive and in some cases some building works would need to be undertaken to 
accommodate them.  Enterprise had been in discussions with Housing Associations and 
some Housing Associations had committed to undertake work to address the changes 
this year.   

• Members wanted to know if all plastics could be recycled.  Members were advised that 
not all plastics could be recycled. 

 
ACTIONS AGREED 
 
1. The Committee requested that the Client Partnership Team present the revised Key 

Performance Indicators to the Committee at the next meeting in July. 
2. All Members to receive a copy of the maps presented at the meeting. 
 

8. Establishment of Task and Finish Group to investigate the benefits of extending 
20MPH Speed Limits 
 
The report informed the Committee that at the Council meeting held on 17 April 2013 there 
had been a request for this Committee to set up a Task and Finish Group to  investigate the 
benefits of extending 20mph speed limits across residential areas of Peterborough.  The 
purpose of the report was for the Committee to consider and agree the Terms of Reference 
and Membership of the Task and Finish Group which had been formed 
 
Questions and observations were made around the following areas: 
 

• Members wanted to ensure that the Police were involved in discussions with the Task 
and Finish Group to ensure that enforcement was taken into consideration. 

 
ACTIONS AGREED 
 
The Committee approved the Terms of Reference and Membership of the Task and Finish 
Group. 
 

9. Review of 2012/2013 and Work Programme for 2013/2014 
 
The Senior Governance Officer introduced the report which provided the Committee with: 
 

• a review of work undertaken during 2012/13 and recommendations made 

• the terms of reference for the Committee and  

• a draft work programme for 2013/2014 for consideration 
 

7



The Committee considered the report and decided that there were no recommendations from 
last year that required further monitoring.  
 
Members requested the following item be added to the work programme: 
 

• Energy from Waste progress report 
 

10. Notice of Intention to Take Key Decisions 
 
The Committee received the latest version of the Council’s Notice of Intention to take key 
Decisions, containing key decisions that the Leader of the Council anticipated the Cabinet or 
individual Cabinet Members would make during the course of the following month.  Members 
were invited to comment and, where appropriate, identify any relevant areas for inclusion in 
the Committee’s work programme. 
 
ACTION AGREED 
 
The Committee noted the latest version of the Council’s Notice of Intention to take key 
Decisions. 
 

11. Date of Next Meeting 
 
 
The meeting began at 7.00pm and ended at 09.15pm   CHAIRMAN 
 
 
 

8



ABABABAB    
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE SUSTAINABLE GROWTH AND ENVIRONMENT 
CAPITAL SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 HELD IN THE BOUGES/VIERSEN ROOMS, TOWN HALL  
ON 11 JULY 2013 

 
Present: Councillors N Arculus (Vice Chairman), J Peach, L Serluca, 

 C Harper, JA Fox,  N Thulbourn, Cllr Forbes 
 

Also Present: Ellie Jaggard, Youth Council 
Councillor Holdich,  Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for 
Education, Skills and University 
Sean Hanson, Partnership Director, Serco 
Paul Richards, Operations Director, Serco 
Cllr Sandford, Group Leader of the Liberal Democrats 
Cllr Harrington, Group Leader of Peterborough Independent Forum 
 

Officers Present: Simon Machen, Head of Planning, Transport and Engineering 
Services 
Mark Speed, Transport Infrastructure Planning Manager 
Lewis Banks, Transport Officer (Accessibility & Sustainability) 
Ruth Lea, Lawyer 
Ricky Fuller, Head of Strategic Client Services 
Paul Robertson, Waste Partnership Officer 
Richard Pearn, Waste Partnership Manager 
Helen Turner, Lawyer 
Paulina Ford, Senior Governance Officer 
 

 
1. Apologies for Absence  

 
Apologies were received from Councillor Allen, Councillor Maqbool and Councillor Martin.  
Councillor Serluca, Councillor Harper and Councillor Forbes were in attendance as 
substitutes. 
 

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations  
 
There were no declarations of interest or whipping declarations. 
 
The Chair advised the Committee that due to unforeseen personal circumstances the officer 
presenting item 5 on the agenda Environment Capital Update Report had been unable to 
attend the meeting to present her report.  The Chair asked the Committee if they would 
agree to defer the item until the next meeting in September.  The Committee agreed in 
favour of this request. 
 
Councillor Peach advised the Chair that he would have to leave the meeting early to attend 
another meeting. 
 

3. Call in of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions 
 
The Committee had been asked to consider a Call-In request that had been made in relation 
to the decision made by Cabinet and published on 1 July 2013, regarding Passenger 
Transport - Subsidised Service Provision - JUL13/CAB/059. 
 

9



The request to Call-In this decision was made on 4 July 2013 by Councillor Shearman and 
supported by Councillor Sylvester.  The decision for Call-In was based on the following 
grounds:  
 
(i)      The decision does not follow the principles of good decision making set out in Article 12 

of the Council’s Constitution specifically that the decision maker did not: 
 

a) Realistically consider all alternatives and, where reasonably possible, consider the 
views of the public. 

b) Act for a proper purpose and in the interests of the public. 
 
The reasons put forward by the Councillors were: 
 

a) i. There appears to be no consideration given to the re-routing of bus routes to ensure 
vulnerable communities do not lose their bus routes.(e.g. in the  Ravensthorpe area 
and also along Garton End Road) 

ii. Contact has been made with us by a number of members of the public stating they 
had no idea that their bus route (particularly 406) was vulnerable to these reductions 
in service. 

b) It is not in the interests of vulnerable members of the public – particularly the elderly – 
to have their bus route (particularly route 406) WITHDRAWN. This route in particular 
provides a lifeline for many of these residents and to walk to the nearest retained 
route is for these people both unrealistic and uncaring. 

 
After considering the request to call-in and all relevant advice, the Committee were required 
to decide either to: 
 

(a) not agree to the request to call-in, when the decision shall take effect; 
 (b) refer the decision back to the decision maker for reconsideration, setting out 

its concerns; or 
 (c) refer the matter to full Council. 
 
The Chairman read out the procedure for the meeting. 
 
Councillor Shearman and Councillor Sylvester each addressed the Committee stating why 
they had called the decision in. 
 
Councillor Shearman made the following points: 
 

• Did not believe that the decision made considered all alternatives or considered the views 
of the public. 

• There was a great strength of feeling from members of the public against the decision. 

• When the cuts to bus services were decided upon alternative services should have been 
provided. 

• Had discussions taken place with Stagecoach to mitigate the impact of the service cuts? 

• Were the public consulted, were Age Concern consulted and people with disabilities. 

• Was the decision taken in the interest of the elderly, infirm and disabled? 

• The decision maker had failed to recognise that there were small communities that would 
now become isolated. 

• The decision was unrealistic and uncaring. 
 
Councillor Sylvester made the following points: 
 

• Councillor Sylvester had been part of the Cross-Party Cabinet Advisory Group which was 
tasked with the role of reducing the cost of subsidised transport.  Members were informed 

10



that the Group worked to a very tight timescale to make recommendations but had not 
suggested discontinuing the Local Link service.  After considering the Equality Impact 
Assessment it was decided that a reduced Local Link Service should still be provided.  
Any gaps in the service could be filled by such services as Dial a Ride. 

• The Advisory Group had realistically considered all alternatives and the effect it would 
have on the public. 

• Cabinet had not realistically considered alternatives. 

• On board bus surveys had been carried out late at night. 

• Buses 406 and 407 were the most used. 

• Cabinet had not acted in the interest of the public. 

• The public had not been consulted and public views had not been considered. 
 
Additional speakers in support of the call-in were then invited to speak: 
 
Councillor Harrington addressed the Committee and made the following points: 
 

• Members of the public who use the buses had not been consulted. 

• Members of the public who used the services would be best placed to advise on which 
services could be cut. 

• Early engagement with the bus users should have taken place. 

• Cutting bus services did not fit in with the Environment Capital sustainable transport 
vision and did not encourage young people to use the buses. 

• Requested the Committee to ask Cabinet to reconsider their decision. 
 
Councillor John Fox addressed the Committee and made the following points: 
 

• Councillor Fox stated that he was a member of the Diversity Group, Disability Forum and 
ward Councillor for Werrington that had four sheltered housing complexes.  All major 
decisions required an Equality Impact Assessment to be completed but it appeared that 
this was not completed for the Werrington area. 

• The residents of the sheltered housing complexes would be greatly affected by the bus 
service cuts. 

• Recommendation to have the decision referred back to Full Council for debate. 
 
Members of the Public in support of the Call-In were then invited to speak: 
 
Phil Green, Representing Local Link drivers addressed the Committee and made the 
following points: 
 

• Disappointed with Cabinet decision as no drivers or passengers had been consulted. 

• Most people on the Local Link service were vulnerable people. 

• Local Link services covered the routes that Stagecoach had withdrawn previously.   

• Local Link services should not be replaced with another subsidised service. 

• Local Link bus drivers could be put out of work. 

• Request to have the decision referred back to Full Council for consideration. 
 
Barry Proctor resident of Grimshaw Road addressed the Committee and made the following 
points: 
 

• Obvious that Cabinet who had made the decision did not know the area in which the 406 
bus route covered. 

• Most of the people living in the area of the 406 bus route were elderly and disabled. 

• Would be difficult for most people to get to other bus stops if the 406 bus route were 
taken off. 

• Some elderly residents would not be able to go to town or their doctors if bus service was 
cut. 

11



• Stagecoach passenger numbers during 2011/2012 were 240k per annum.  Local Link 
passenger numbers during 2011/2012 were 360K per annum.   Local Link was therefore 
the most used at that time.  Since then people had got older and more disabled. 

 
David Lennox resident of Grimshaw Road addressed the Committee and made the following 
points: 
 

• Appreciated that the Local Authority has had their budget cut by Government but had 
heard that the Government were going to make additional funds available in January for 
public transport.  Why therefore was the bus service being cut now if more funding would 
be made available in January.  

 
Lynn Stratton resident of Newborough addressed the Committee and made the following 
point: 
 

• Residents of Newborough would be unable to walk to other bus stops from their village 
as the A47 was at the end of the main road.  

 
Angela Smith a resident from Fengate addressed the Committee and made the following 
point: 
 

• There has been no mention of the residents and workers from the Fengate area where 
there were many employers.  The cut in bus services would affect them.  None of the 
employees or employers knew anything about the service cuts which meant they had not 
been consulted. 

 
Questions and Comments from Members of the Commission in response to the Councillors 
statements: 
 

• Councillor Judy Fox agreed with the Call-in and comments from those supporting the call-
in. 

• Members sought clarification on the purpose of the Cabinet Advisory Group that had 
been set up.   Councillor Sylvester advised that the group was a cross party group.  The 
group had been presented with a remit to look at what the current bus service budget 
was and were asked to consider what could be done to reduce the service to fit the 
budget of £600K.  The group had found the task difficult and were unable to make a 
recommendation which was in line with the £600K.  A recommendation had therefore 
been put forward from the group of a budget of £780K to reduce the impact on vulnerable 
people. 

• Councillor Sandford confirmed that the group had agreed that there should be a reduction 
in the Local Link service but that the evening services should be retained and there would 
be a reduced day time service to three buses.  The Cabinet decision to reduce the 
budget had been made prior to the Equality Impact Assessment being carried out.  The 
group had considered the Equality Impact Assessment and found that in doing this to 
protect the vulnerable groups the relevant services could not be provided within a budget 
of £600K and therefore the recommendation was to increase it to £780K. 

 
As advised at the beginning of the meeting Councillor Peach left the meeting at this point. 
 
The Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Education, Skills and University made a 
statement in answer to the Call-In request which included the following: 
 
The Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Education, Skills and University advised the 
Committee that Cabinet had not taken the decision without professional advice.   The 
evidence provided within the report had shown that there were no exceptional grounds to 
uphold the Call-in request. A range of alternatives had been considered within the bus 
service review and Equality Impact Assessments had been carried out.  A public consultation 

12



had been carried out and public opinion had been taken into consideration.   The Equality 
Impact Assessment had shown that the removal of the 406 bus service would have an effect 
on the elderly but this would be mitigated by the provision of a Demand Response Service.  It 
was therefore concluded that by making the decision Cabinet had acted in the interest of the 
public by taking a difficult decision to safeguard as many services as possible within the 
budgetary constrains.  The Demand Response Service would be developed to ensure it 
provided the service required for those most in need. 
 
The Transport Infrastructure Planning Manager then took questions from the Committee in 
response to the Call-in request: 
 

• Members wanted to know what had been done to make members of the public aware of 
the proposals to reduce the bus services.  Members were advised that the following 
consultation exercises had been undertaken whereby the public were asked to give their 
views and  Councillors were given numerous opportunities to represent the public: 

 
1. The Medium Term Financial Strategy Consultation Document outlined the services at 

risk because of the reduction in the budget to £600,000 for passenger transport 
subsidised services. 

 
Outcome: Medium Term Financial Strategy budget of £600,000 for passenger 
transport subsidised services was approved at Full Council on the 6 March 2013. 

 
2. The Medium Term Financial Strategy Consultation covered a wide range of 

organisations, special interest groups and meetings including a joint Neighbourhood 
Committee and Scrutiny Committees.  

 
Outcome: The Medium Term Financial Strategy was approved on the 6 March 2013. 

 
3. All City Council Councillors were written to, and offered a bespoke session, to 

discuss which services within Peterborough, and specifically their ward, were at risk 
as part of this review of subsidised services. 

 
Outcome: Meetings held with all Councillors who requested a bespoke session. 

 
4. The Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities requested and received a 

presentation on services that operated in rural Peterborough and which subsidised 
services were at risk on the 26 March 2013. 

 
Outcome:  Minutes of a Meeting of the Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities 
on the 26 March 2013 outline the outcome of this meeting. 

 
5. Transport Forum (open to the public) and organised by Peterborough Environment 

City Trust was held at the John Clare Theatre on the 19 February 2013.  Officers 
gave a presentation and a discussion took place regarding the subsidised passenger 
transport review.  

 
Outcome:  An open discussion took place discussing the positive contribution that 
subsided services made to Peterborough and a general consensus was that reducing 
the budget available to passenger transport services was undesirable.   

 
6. A Cross Party Advisory Group was set up by the Cabinet Member to discuss the 

review and to make recommendations regarding which subsidised services should 
continue to receive funding within the agreed budgetary provision of £600,000. The 
group met on the following dates: 

 

• 13 May 2013 

13



• 20 May 2013  

• 21 May 2013 

• 29 May 2013 
 

Outcome:  The group held a series of meetings and considered the following issues 
and information: 

 

• Equality Impact Assessments for all service options 

• Bus Service Review for Local Link services 

• Current and projected costs to retain current provision of services 

• Presentations from: 
Stagecoach (all their subsidised services) 
Atkins (Equality Impact Assessments and Bus Service Review for 
Local Link services) 
Centrebus (Kimes 9) 

       Support and advice from Passenger Focus 
 

The group recommended areas where savings could be made. However, they 
requested that Cabinet be informed that this decision was difficult as they recognised 
the importance and benefits associated with all of the services subsidised by the 
Council. 

• Members wanted to know if Age Concern had been consulted on the proposals.  
Members were informed that Age Concern were on the list of consultees. 

• How many Councillors took up the offer of a bespoke session?   The Officer advised that 
he could not remember the exact number but he estimated that it was approximately 19 
councillors. 

• Why were the Cabinet Advisory Group recommendations rejected by Cabinet?  Members 
were informed that the recommendations were rejected because they had not met the 
budgetary requirements set out by Full Council. 

• Councillor Sandford commented that part of the purpose of the Peterborough Local 
Transport Plan was to improve and extensively promote the councils Community Link 
and Local Link bus services.  How therefore did the Cabinet decision comply with council 
policy?   Members were informed that the budget cuts had to be understood in the wider 
context that all service areas were affected. 

• The proposed Demand Response Service replacing the 406 and 407 bus services would 
not be suitable for people travelling to work along those bus routes.  Members were 
informed that there was a proposal to introduce a new type of Demand Response Service 
to ensure that buses were available at peak times AM and PM for people to get to work 
and school. 

• Members had noted that the Local Link service 406 had reported the highest passenger 
usage for 2012/2013 of 192,116 passengers.   

• The Officer advised the Committee that there were alternative transport options already 
in place for people unable to walk the extra distance to other commercial service bus 
stops.  They were the Demand Response Service and the high end services e.g. 
Community Link and Rural Dial a Ride.  Those services were designed specifically for 
people who had mobility and disability issues who could not access normal public 
transport. 

• Had officers advertised the proposed changes on the bus service routes to be affected or 
in the local press and at the bus stops?  The Officer advised Members that it had been 
publicised on the local radio, in the press and on TV.  

• Members were concerned that school children would be affected and wanted to ensure 
that they would be able to get to and from school.  Members were advised that Atkins 
had completed the Equality Impact Assessments and where impacts had been identified 
the council were able to mitigate those circumstances by the recommendation in the 
decision. 

14



• Councillor Harrington was concerned that Parish Councils had not been consulted.  
Members were informed that Parish Councils had been consulted as part of the budget 
setting process. 

 
As there was no further debate the Committee took a vote to decide on whether they should:  
 
(a)  not agree to the request to call-in, when the decision shall take effect; 
(b) refer the decision back to the decision maker for reconsideration, setting out its concerns; 

or 
(c) refer the matter to full Council. 
 
The Committee (Councillors Arculus, Serluca, Harper, JA Fox, Thulbourn and Forbes) voted 
unanimously in favour of agreeing to the request to Call-In the decision.  The Committee felt 
that not sufficient consideration had been given to the cut in Passenger Transport Subsidised 
Services within the £600K budget and the impact it would have on vulnerable members of 
the public. 
 
The Committee then debated whether the decision should be referred back to the decision 
maker; Cabinet for reconsideration or to Full Council. After a short discussion the Committee 
voted in favour of the decision being referred back to Cabinet.  (4 in favour, 3 against) 
Councillors JA Fox, Thulbourn, and Forbes voted against a referral back to Cabinet. 
Councillors Arculus, Harper and Serluca voted in favour of the decision being referred back 
to Cabinet.  As the vote was 3 in favour and 3 against the Chair had the casting vote and 
voted in favour of referring back to Cabinet. 
 
ACTION AGREED 
 
The request for Call-in of the decision made by Cabinet and published on 1 July2013, 
regarding Passenger Transport - Subsidised Service Provision - JUL13/CAB/059 was 
considered by the Sustainable Growth and Environment Capital Scrutiny Committee.   
Following discussion and questions raised on each of the reasons stated on the request for 
Call-In, the Committee did agree to the Call-In of this decision on the reasons stated. 
 

It was therefore recommended that Under the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules in the 
Council's Constitution (Part 4, Section 8, and paragraph 13), implementation of this decision 
remains suspended until further notice.  
 
The Sustainable Growth and Environment Capital Scrutiny Committee therefore 
Recommends that Cabinet: 
 

1. Reconsiders the results of the consultation undertaken with regard to the decision to 
discontinue Passenger Transport Subsidised Services; 

 
 And in doing this: 

 
2. Undertakes further consultation to fully assess and understand the impact of 

discontinuing these services on vulnerable members of the public in particular with 
relation to the Local Link service before making the decision. 

 
At this point Councillor Forbes left the meeting. 
 

4. Peterborough Serco Strategic Partnership Performance  
 

The Partnership Director introduced the report which provided the Committee with an update 
on the performance of the Peterborough Serco Strategic Partnership contract.  The report 
covered the period 2012 to end of March 2013.  Members were informed that performance 

15



had improved since last reporting to the Committee in July 2012.  The report covered the 
following areas of operation: 

• Operations 
o Service delivery and improvements 
o Service Improvement Plans 

• Growth 

• Transformation  

• Procurement 
 
Also included in the report was performance data against the Key Performance Indicators 
against which Serco were measured. 

 
Questions and observations were made around the following areas: 
 

• Members sought clarification on the data provided on benefits performance which had 
shown a year on year increase in the number of days to process the claims.  Members 
were informed that there had been an unexpected significant increase in the activity 
around benefit claims.  Some of this was due to the change in government legislation 
which had made it easier for people to receive benefits such as automatic claim 
intervention from the Department of Work and Pensions.  Measures to transform the 
service were being taken to reduce the number of days to process the claims. 

• Members sought clarification of the national indicator NI181?  Members were advised 
that this was a National Indicator that was an aggregation of new claims and changes in 
circumstances. 

• Members were concerned about the data for complaints about Customer Service which 
had highlighted 26 complaints regarding staff attitude / conduct and complaints relating to 
Revenues and Benefits which had highlighted 72 complaints for delayed / failed service.  
Members were advised that there would always be some people who were not satisfied 
with the service even if provided within the timescale.  Complaints regarding the delay 
and failure of service for revenues and benefits did not necessarily mean that the service 
provided was not within the required timescale.  All complaints still had to be logged even 
if the service provided had been within the timescale.  Customer service attitude was 
taken very seriously and people who did not have the right attitude were either retrained 
or let go if the conduct had not improved. 

• Who set the Key Performance Indicators?  Members were advised that the KPI’s were 
set locally by the Council and some were national targets.   

• Members sought clarification on the following statement in the report “the next year is 
likely to see the Council and Serco bidding together for a range of opportunities which 
could include commissioning and delivery of health and social care services”. Members 
wanted to know if this meant that Peterborough would be approaching other local 
authorities to operate their health and social care services.  Or did it mean the health and 
social care services within Peterborough City Council would be handed over to Serco to 
run.  Members were informed that the example mentioned in the report was something 
that was being worked on with Serco and the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Clinical 
Commissioning Group.  There were four areas of commissioning that had gone out to 
tender and Serco were bidding for these.  The driver behind this was the financial 
situation that the council had found itself in and the expectation that this council had the 
capability and skills that other councils needed.  It was very much a partnership approach 
between the council and Serco and part of the expected growth that Serco could bring to 
the council.  Parking services was another option being considered.   

• Members noted from the report that the KPI for percentage of calls answered in 20 
seconds was 61% and were concerned that this meant that the remaining percentage 
equated to abandoned calls.  Members wanted to know if Serco were happy with the 
61% target set by the council.  Members were informed that this did not mean that calls 
not answered within 20 seconds had been abandoned it just meant that they had not 
been answered within the 20 seconds timeframe.  A new telephone system was being 

16



brought in which would help to improve on the rate of calls answered within 20 seconds. 
Members were advised that the percentage of first call resolution which was a KPI of 
83% was a much more important KPI as this indicated how many first time callers had 
their issue resolved at the first point of contact.  Serco had exceeded this KPI by 3%. 

• Members sought clarification of what “PCI compliance” meant as stated in the report.  
Members were advised it related to being compliant with how credit card payments were 
taken over the phone.  It was a specific requirement that the customer service operators 
had to be trained on and operate within. 

• Members requested an update on the On-Line Claims process which had gone live on 5 
March 2013.  Members were informed that after consultation with various groups 
including Age UK and Social Landlords and undertaking Equality Impact Assessments 
the Benefit Claim system had now become totally digital.  The claim form was an on line 
smart form which had made it much easier for people to complete.  77% of claims were 
now being completed on line.  All feed back received so far had been very positive. 
       

   ACTIONS AGREED 
 

1. The Committee noted the report and requested that a further annual report on the 
Peterborough Serco Strategic Partnership Performance be brought back to the 
Committee in July 2014. 

 
2. The Committee also requested that if Serco were to bid for opportunities to 

commission and deliver health and social care services for the Cambridgeshire and 
Peterborough Clinical Commissioning Group then the Scrutiny Commission for Health 
Issues should be informed. 

 
5. New Household Recycling Centre  

 
The Waste Partnership Officer introduced the report which informed the Committee about the 
planned relocation of the Household Recycling Centre (HRC) from its current location next to 
the landfill site at Dogsthorpe to a new site in Fengate in the former RSG building.  Members 
were advised that the move was necessary as the lease at Dogsthorpe would expire in 
October 2014.  The council had a statutory obligation to have a Household Recycling Centre 
and therefore another location had to be found.  The proposed new location which was the 
former RSG building had a number of benefits including a well positioned location, a larger 
site which was already owned by the council and it had existing planning permission for other 
waste uses. 
 
Questions and observations were made around the following areas: 
 

• What provision has been made for people who did not have cars who wanted to transport 
waste to the new location.  Members were advised that it was near a cycle route and 
there were also a lot of bring sites located across the city which took recycled goods.  
Some of these also took electrical goods. 

• Had a survey been conducted to establish how many people attend the current 
Dogsthorpe site either by walking or cycling?  Members were advised that a survey had 
been conducted over a few days to see what mode of transport people arrived by and no 
one had arrived by cycle or by walking. 

• The Waste Partnership Manager advised Members that there were alternative collection 
services for people who did not have cars like the bulky waste collection service.  

 
ACTIONS AGREED 
 

The Committee noted the report and supported the proposal to relocate the Household 
Recycling Centre to the former RSG building in Fengate. 
 
 

17



 
6. Energy from Waste Facility – Project Update 
 
 The Waste Partnership Manager introduced the report which provided the Committee with an 

update on the progress of the development of the Energy from Waste (EfW) Facility in 
Fengate.  Members were reminded of the background to the project and the key benefits.  
Members were advised that the site was currently being cleared and prepared ready to 
commence construction.  Steel work to form the skeleton of the building would start in early 
2014. 
 
Questions and observations were made around the following areas:   
 

• Is the full contract now available for Members to see?  Members were advised that the 
full contract was now available but before allowing Members to see it a check would have 
to take place to see if any areas needed to be redacted. 

• Members requested to see the Environmental Impact Assessment.  Members were 
advised that the facility had just been awarded an Environmental Permit which was the 
license from the Environmental Agency to operate. All the information from the 
Environmental Impact Assessment would be part of that document and could be obtained 
from the Environmental Agency. 

• Was the council still aiming to achieve a recycle and compost rate of 65% plus as part of 
the waste management strategy?  Members were informed that the aim to achieve 65% 
of waste recycled and composted was for the year 2020 however over 50% of the target 
was already being achieved. 

• Was there going to be any pre sorting of the waste before going into the incinerator.  
Members were advised that the facility would not have any pre sorting equipment.  The 
pre sorting would have already been completed at the curb side collection through the 
black bin, green bin, brown bin and food waste bin. 

• Members sought clarification on the cost of landfill charges.  Members were advised that 
the current price was £72 per tonne tax and approximately £20 per tonne fee to the 
operator at the facility.  Landfill tax used to be £2 per tonne and had risen steadily over 
the past few years with another rise due on 1 April 2014 which would take it to £80 per 
tonne in tax. 

• Members sought clarification as to when the feasibility study for the Combined Heat and 
Power part of the facility would be completed.  Members were advised that the facility 
would be enabled with Combined Heat and Power from the start and could be connected 
at any time.  The challenge would be when and where to provide this. 

• If it is unknown when and where the electricity and heat would be used will this affect the 
financial projections that have been put forward for the facility?  Members were advised 
that when the facility was up and running it would be the third most efficient energy from 
waste facility in the country.  No income from heat sales had been included in the 
financial modelling. 

 
ACTIONS AGREED 
 
The Committee noted the report. 
 

7. Scrutiny in a Day: Focus on Welfare Reform 
 

The Senior Governance Officer presented the report which set out proposals to hold a cross-
Scrutiny Committee event that would focus on the impacts of welfare reform. This event 
would be held in order to understand and mitigate against the breadth of impact on 
individuals, families, communities and businesses. Nominations would be sought from each 
Scrutiny Committee to form a working party to help plan and provide input for the day.  

 
 

18



Questions and observations were made around the following areas: 
 

• Councillor Sandford requested that nominations for the working party be sought from the 
Group Secretaries. 

• Members requested that when planning the day consideration should be given to those 
Members who worked during the daytime. 

• Councillors Fox and Arculus nominated themselves to be part of the working party to help 
plan the event. 

• Members sought clarification as to how many members from each committee would be 
able to take part in the Scrutiny in a Day event.  The Senior Governance Officer advised 
that all members of each Scrutiny Committee would be invited to take part as the purpose 
of the event was to hold a cross Scrutiny Committee event to include all Scrutiny 
Committees and Commissions. 

 
ACTIONS AGREED 
 

1. The Committee noted the report and supported the recommendation to hold a 
Scrutiny in a Day event with a focus on Welfare Reform. 

 
2. The Committee also agreed to put forward nominations to the working party. 

 
8. Notice of Intention to Take Key Decisions 

 

The Committee received the latest version of the Council’s Notice of Intention to Take Key 
Decisions, containing key decisions that the Leader of the Council anticipated the Cabinet or 
individual Cabinet Members would make during the course of the following four months.  
Members were invited to comment on the Plan and, where appropriate, identify any relevant 
areas for inclusion in the Committee’s work programme. 
 
ACTIONS AGREED 
 
The Committee noted the Notice of Intention to Take Key Decisions and requested the 
following information: 

• Information on the Moy’s End Stand Demolition and Reconstruction – KEY/03APR/12 
 

9. Work Programme 
 
Members considered the Committee’s Work Programme for 2013/14 and discussed possible 
items for inclusion. 
 

ACTION AGREED 
 

To confirm the work programme for 2013/14 and the Senior Governance Officer to include 
any additional items as requested during the meeting. 
 
 

10. Date of Next Meeting 
 
 Thursday, 5 September 2013 

 
 
 
 
The meeting began at 7.00pm and ended at 10.25pm   CHAIRMAN 
 

19



20

This page is intentionally left blank



 

SUSTAINABLE GROWTH AND ENVIRONMENT 
CAPITAL SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 5 

5 SEPTEMBER 2013 Public Report 
 

Report of the Chief Executive 
 
Contact Officer    Mike Kealey, Interim Head of Human Resources 
Contact Details   (01733) 384501 
 

HUMAN RESOURCES MONITORING REPORT 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 To facilitate scrutiny of staffing and workforce matters. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
2.1 That the Committee scrutinise and comment on the report. 

 
3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY  

 
3.1 There are no statutory national indicators related directly to the council's workforce - however it 

is compared to other authorities through voluntary benchmarking activities, and workforce 
management and development is crucial to advancing the Council's performance.  
 

4. BACKGROUND 
 

4.1 The Sustainable Growth Scrutiny Committee previously requested to receive regular reports on 
staffing and workforce matters.  
 
Following the March 2013 report, Human Resources were requested to include in this report: 
 
1. Why the diversity of staff employed particularly Ethnic Minorities and people with disabilities 
at the council had dropped and what could be done to change this and report back to the 
Committee.  
 
2. A copy of the Equality Impact Assessment regarding the new ‘no pay for the first three days 
of sickness’ policy should it be implemented. [This is not included as the outline proposal made 
for this has not, at this time been progressed.] 
 
3.  Whether the figure for days lost for sickness (3219 FTE days reported in March ) due to 
stress, depression, anxiety and fatigue had reduced and what was being done to address this. 
 
 

5. KEY ISSUES 
 

 5.1 STATISTICAL DATA 
 
The data report at Appendix 1 has been written to present as concisely as possible, but to 
including all key measures requested, and was designed following consultation at the group 
reps meeting prior to the March 2013 report.  This incorporates figures at June 2013 compared 
with those in the last report [at November 2012] and benchmarking with other authorities in the 
most recently available annual exercise. Feedback on the format and content of the data 
provided will be taken into account for future reports. 
 

5.2 HR DEVELOPMENTS \ UPDATES \ PRIORITIES 
 

21



Figure numbers refer to the statistics and charts in appendix 1. 
 
The appendix shows at the front a table of benchmarked metrics and this is followed by more 
detailed pages related to each of the headings below: 
 
Turnover [see Figures 1.1 to 1.5] 
 
Since the November 2012 figures presented at the last meeting the directly employed FTE staff 
numbers has reduced by 140 FTE net of starters. There have been 247 leavers over this 
period. The largest group of these were redundancies [134], but there has also been a further 
transfer of undertaking to Serco representing Support staff from the Adult Social Care area. 
Redundancies significantly included those related to the closure of residential homes, though 
there have also been smaller number of redundancies from restructuring in other areas 
including 23 in Children's Services, and 7 in Operations.  
 
Other significant changes that have been managed over the period include the transfer into the 
Council of Public Health staff and functions [28 staff]. There have also been four staff transfer 
back to the council providing the print and design service.  
 
Restructuring within services has continued in order to meet budget requirements and business 
needs. Work has also continued supporting various restructures, including the transfer related 
to highways due on 1st October. 
 
Voluntary turnover [figure 1.5] is currently running at 7.16%, down from 7.6% in your March 
report. 
And slightly above the benchmark for other local authorities [6.80%). Voluntary turnover figures 
increase statistically simply because the overall decline in staff numbers e.g. from redundancies 
and transfers. The stability index [which measures the percentage of staff currently at the 
Council who have worked continuously for more than one year rose to 95.07%, which is in the 
upper quartile for local authorities, and is generally a good sine of retention of staff and the 
retention of experience and expertise within the workforce.  
 
Social Workers continue to be a difficult to fill \ retain role. Since November 2012 there have 
been  9 leavers [4.05% of leavers].  These were all resignations except for one retirement.  
5 Social workers not previously working for the authority have been recruited over the same 
period. 
 
Although generally a low rate of turnover is good for reducing recruitment costs and service 
provision, a certain level of turnover is considered positive in facilitating restructuring of work 
and therefore efficient and effective operations as well as bringing fresh talent and perspectives 
to Services. Turnover also is affected by market conditions as well as staff satisfaction. More 
detail on turnover by Service and Directorate is included in the turnover graphs \ tables. 
 
A concern raised previously relates to the possibility of staff who leave being re-engaged 
outside of the payroll in cases of redundancy. A policy has been in place since July 2011 as 
part of the Redundancy policy stating that employees made redundant will not be able to rejoin 
the council within 12 months of the effective date of termination, regardless of their rejoining 
employment status/capacity, unless permission is given by the Chief Executive and the 
enhanced redundancy payment is repaid in full.  In the year to November 2012 only two 
persons started on the payroll who had been made redundant in the preceding year - both for 
temporary \ casual roles, both at lower grades than originally employed. In both cases 
employment did not start until 4 and 9 months after leaving respectively and in a different role. 
 
Absence [see figures 2.1 to 2.4] 
 
Progress on reducing the sickness rate of current employees is shown in figure 2.2 
 
Sickness rates have been reduced further since the last report in March 2013 with the days per 
current employee falling from 9.63 days per employee to 9.03 days per employee over a twelve 
month period. [In fact June saw a rise from a low point in May of 8.75 days. While some of this 

22



was due to fluctuations across departments in June, a big factor was the transfer of Adults 
Social Care support staff to Serco, who had a lower than average sickness rate thus increasing 
the rate for the remainder of the department, made up of a greater proportion of front line staff.  
 
Despite this the sickness rate in Adult Social Care has been reduced from 15.94 days to 15.65 
days since November 2012. 
 
This overall consolidates progress on attendance rates with a downward trend being 
established since a high point in March 2012 when Adults Social Care transferred to make up 
27% of the workforce and with a day's per employee rate of 18.05 days per employee. 
The TUPE of support staff to Serco from autumn 2012 also affected the overall picture due to 
having a lower than average absence rate. 
 
To benchmark with other authorities, rates have to be use which include all staff who have 
worked for the authority during the period. The rate for the 12 months to June 2013 on this 
basis is 11.40 days, compared with 12.29 days reported in March 2013. This level is just above 
the upper quartile for authorities of 11.30 days [i.e. Peterborough just falls within the top 25% of 
rates].  If the current progress on rates is sustained at a significant rate comparison with other 
authorities is likely to improve. Benchmarking of sickness rates are only an approximate guide 
because the mix of services carried out in house will vary from authority to authority, and have a 
considerable effect on attendance rates.  
 
55% of absence days lost currently fall in long term absences [absences of over 20 days], a 
slight decrease from the last report [58%]. Long term absences typically form a much higher 
percentage of absence in the public sector, the underlying reasons for which are usually linked 
to differences in age profile between sectors. This shows the importance of the management of 
long term absences  through use of absence procedures, occupational health services, health 
and safety and HR processes where return to work cannot be facilitated. 
 
In the 12 months to 30th June, 575 or 38% of current staff have had no sickness absence at all. 
 
The issue of workforce stress has been addressed separately in order to supply a specific 
answer to the questions raised by the Committee. 
 
Appraisals and Training activity [figures 3.1 and 3.2] 
 
Emphasis has continued on embedding the Personal Development and Review process, and 
PDRs have been completed between April and July for all non casual staff who were with the 
authority on 1st April as shown in figure 3.1. This excludes those for whom appraisal takes 
place during the school year, or so far could not have been completed for example due to 
Maternity absence, secondments or long term sickness. 
 
Work around the consistency and quality of PDR reviews has continued. Departmental 
Management Teams have had further involvement in verifying scores overall, and we have 
continued to see scores centre around the average score of 3 - meets expectations. 
Performance improvement plans are put in place for the small numbers below meeting 
expectations [i.e. 1 and 2].  
 
A review has since taken place led by Training and Development of lessons learnt during the 
process this year which again will feed into the ongoing development of the scheme. A staff 
survey is also being undertaken to review staff feedback on how they find the process. 
 
Analysis of the identification of training needs carried out within the process is being carried out 
in Training and Development both to inform the overall provision of training and any specific 
training needs that can be taken forward for individuals. 
 
A larger percentage of staff have received ratings with 'Cannot Rate' mainly being used for 
recent new employees where the PDR serves the purpose mainly of setting objectives for the 
employee and identifying any training and development requirements. 
 

23



Work has continued towards achieving Investors in People Silver level and this has involved 
ongoing work with employees to ensure progress is being made towards the standard. 
Assessment is due to take place in October 2013. 
 
For June 100% of delegates rated courses as either Excellent, Good or Meeting Expectations. 
95% of respondents to a survey in October were able to identify a positive impact from training, 
including improved service delivery, improved communications and increased confidence [last 
report 79%].. 
 
Employee Relations [cases] [figures 4.1 - 4.2] 
 
Disciplinary and Grievance Cases statistics give information on issues raised under 
employment procedures and are recorded by HR. Statistics are based on cases closed in the 
12 month period and at a time of reducing workforce this has an upward impact on measures, 
as it is expressed per employee. Statistics cover staff within Council Directorates in line with 
this report. HR also has some involvement in cases related to schools or City College where 
maters of the Council's interest is concerned but do not provided direct case management. 
 
Rates of Disciplinary cases have increased and those of Grievances are around the same rate. 
Both rates are below average for similar councils. Since the last report at November 2012 there 
have been no new ET cases or settlements of potential ET cases. 
 
Levels of cases are a mixed indicator. If the figures are too low it could indicate issues in the 
workforce are not being effectively resolved or dealt with, or could mean cases are being 
effectively resolved informally. An unacceptably high level e.g. of grievances might indicate 
problems with processes or procedures or workforce satisfaction.  
 
 
Workforce Diversity 
 
HR continue to monitor the equality impact of HR decisions, policies and procedures through 
Equality Impact Assessments when policies are reviewed \ revised, and through workforce 
monitoring. The lead on equality matters in the authority more widely is taken by the Corporate 
Diversity Group under the leadership of Paul Phillipson. 
 
A proposal to expand monitoring to the other protected characteristics under the 2010 Equality 
Act has now gained support and is being set up in HR systems. This will lead to a resurveying 
of employee data on equality.  This will provide expanded workforce data in order to inform 
future Impact Assessment, and also ensure data remains relevant and up-to-date. 
 
Equality and Diversity is supported by HR, through training courses, e-learning, and work 
towards Investors in People. 
 
In Figure 5.1, the tables have now been updated to show not only benchmarks with other 
authorities but comparison with the 2011 census [figures are specific to the working age range 
within the population].   
 
Figures for disability diversity rate and the ethnic minority diversity rate have made modest 
increases, while female representation has reduced slightly, while still being at a high level, 
both in general and within the top earners. 
 
Further comment on ethnic diversity and disability are shown separately in response to 
questions HR have specifically been asked to address. 
 
In Figure 5.2 current numbers and percentages of staff by gender, disability etc are shown. The 
percentages are based on the number of staff who have provided monitoring information for 
each characteristic. 
 
Further diversity analysis is published on the Peterborough City Council web site annually in 
order to meet the requirements of the Equality Act 2010, as are equality impact assessments. 

24



 
5.3 REQUESTED INFORMATION 

 
Figure numbers refer to the statistics and charts in appendix 1. 
 
STRESS ABSENCE 
 
Has the figure for days lost for sickness (3219 FTE days reported in March ) due to stress, 
depression, anxiety and fatigue had reduced and what was being done to address this? 
 
The figure of FTE days has reduced [to 2,709 for the last 12 months for current employees]. It 
has also reduced significantly since the last report in terms of percentage of occasions lost 
[from 10.13% to 6.52%]. However the percentage of days lost allocated to stress related factors 
has increased slightly, and remains the largest single category of sickness reasons in 
percentage terms.  
 
Figure 2.4 has been included to provide more breakdown by Directorate of stress related data. 
As the table shows, stress related absence varies considerably from 0.44 days per year per 
employee in Legal and Governance to 2.57 and 3.64 in Children's Services and Adult Social 
Care respectively. Stress rates have always varied by service area \ activity as do other types 
of absence.  
 
The reason stress has increased proportionally to some extent in recent years relates to: 
 
1. Transfer out of the council of areas such as City Services, where problems such as musculo-
skeletal issues for example were more prevalent given the nature of the occupations involved. 
As these categories reduce, stress figures increase when looked at in percentage terms. 
2. The council has continued to transfer out of the organisation posts related to business 
support leaving a workforce with a higher percentage of 'front line' workers where stress might 
be expected to be more prevalent. 
3. Improvement in the reduction of short term absences will always appear to increase 
proportionally absences related to long term absences. 
 
These factors are not raised to suggest action to support employees in relation to stress, is not 
a high priority, but simply to explain how statistics can tend to suggest increases which are not 
directly due to worsening conditions for employees within the organisation. 
 
To put the issue in context, the days lost per employee have continued to be reduced overall 
[from 9.63 days per employee in November to 9.03% in June].  
 
Here is the profile of sickness days lost and occasions by length of stress related absence in 
the 12 months to June 2013: 

 
 
In terms of high loss of working days it can be seen that the 14% of occasions over 40 days in 
length [21 cases] account for 67% of the days lost], and shows that the primary issue in the 
number of days being lost in the stress category relates to a small number of long term cases.  
 
Of the 25 current long term absences at 30th June 9 cases are assigned to the stress category. 
8 of these relate to social work or teaching roles. Business Partner's monitoring notes indicate 
all cases are being closely monitored. One of the employees is in the process of leaving on the 

25



grounds of capability due to ill health. 3 further cases are in the formal attendance management 
process [mostly at stage 3] and may also result in the employee leaving through ill health. In at 
least one further case specialist medical advice has been sought. All cases are kept under 
review at least monthly. It can be seen that these type of issues have to be handled sensitively, 
and often involve the need for specialist advice. Specific disabilities may also be involved. Often 
cases take time to deal with because of the medically certified absence of the employee.  
 
The actions being taken which will continue to impact on better stress management include: 
 

• Availability of employee assistance programmes e.g. in Children's Services and 
Operations with options proposed as to whether it would be beneficial to extend these. 

• Availability of independent counselling services arranged via Occupational Health. 

• Proposals being prepared for Employment Committee to consider changes to the 
sickness management arrangements that would be aimed at improving attendance \ 
employee support. 

• Referral of cases by managers to Occupational Health. 

• Referral to professional health services in appropriate long term cases to ensure 
appropriate action is taken. 

• Regular reporting of attendance data \ levels to focus management attention on 
attendance and ensure appropriate return to work processes and trigger point 
monitoring procedures, supported by HR Business Partners. 

• Courses available from Training and Development in relation to understanding and 
managing stress, both for Managers and employees. 

• Support provided in re-organisations for those going through change, including for 
example with skills such as CV writing. 

• Promotion of healthy living, for example through 'Boost' events, and regular health 
information provided through insite. 

• Training and support from Health and Safety e.g. on stress risk assessment,  

• Review of the attendance policy to ensure it is robust and supportive \ fair, but at the 
same time keeps delays to a minimum. 

 
DISABILITY 
 
In actual fact the data presented in the March 2013 report did not show a decrease in the 
percentage of those with a disability in the workforce. Between March 2010 and November 
2011 it rose from 2.97% to 3.69%, and at June 2013 is at 3.88%. The rates are above the 
average for benchmarked local authorities, though can fluctuate somewhat because a small 
number of leavers \ starters can make the figures more volatile. The other factor related to 
disability in particular is that it is not a fixed equality characteristic, therefore to be accurate data 
needs to be kept under review and staff resurveyed to capture their current status. This is about 
to be actioned through implementation of an expanded equality monitoring scheme covering 
many of the protected characteristics included in the Equality Act 2010.  
 
Changes in overall rates are due to a complex combination of reasons including the decisions 
of individual staff members in staff voluntary redundancy programmes, general turnover, 
individual's health progress and so on. In the current situation for Local Authorities, strategies 
put in hand by Peterborough to outsource significant proportions of the workforce, limits 
recruitment in a climate of falling headcount and so on, and narrows the types of employment 
directly supplied by the council. 2.72% of staff transferred to other organisations since April 
2009 [24 out of 889 with a declaration on disability]. 
 
The Council continues to participate in the two ticks scheme to guarantee interviews to suitably 
qualified candidates with a disability and ensure any adjustments to processes to assist 
disabled candidates thought the recruitment process are made. This assists in maintaining 
equal opportunities in access to employment opportunities. In 2012/13 3.51% of applications 
were from those declaring a disability, the second highest figure since 2006/7. Supporting 
existing employees with a disability through Managers, occupational health services and aids 
and adaptations also assists as positive factors in maintaining the disability percentage, and the 
obligations of the council as an employer of those with a disability.  
 

26



Continuing to maintain or increase the disability rate of the council will involve: 
 
1. Continuing to facilitate such initiatives as Westcombe Engineering as one specific service 
targeting employment opportunities within Peterborough City Council, while ensuring 
employment for those with a disability is also available in the 'mainstream'. 
2. Continuing to survey staff to ensure we understand and record the current levels of disability 
within the organisation. Data is about to be recollected to facilitate this.  
3. Continue to participate in the two ticks scheme and ensure this is assisting appropriately 
qualified candidates to apply for job opportunities. There has been no recent evidence of any 
problems in the current policies and processes [e.g. through complaints], but HR are currently 
looking into more proactive collection of feedback data from candidates [by equality 
characteristics] to have more extensive data to use when reviewing processes. 
4. Continue to support existing staff and managers in relation to disability matters, for example 
through occupational health and Business Partner Support. 
5. Continuing to look at diversity issues including disability as the organisation looks to progress 
within Investors In People standards. The organisation is being assessed for IIP Silver in 
October. 
 
 
ETHNIC MINORITY AND DISABILITY DIVERSITY IN THE WORKFORCE 
 
Why has the diversity of staff employed particularly Ethnic Minorities and people with disabilities 
at the council dropped and what could be done to change this? 
 
This report has historically focused upon an overview of HR activity, and therefore equality has 
only formed one strand of performance data provided and in line with an overview report 
presents only a few key measures related to diversity which are benchmarked. To clarify, the 
Council publishes on it's web site a full annual analysis of workforce equality data in an annual 
report following the guidance of the Equality and Human Rights Commission on the 
requirements of the Equality Act 2010. The report is currently being drafted covering 2012/13.  
 
The first point is to note that the percentage of staff from ethnic minority and mixed origin 
backgrounds has increased [however modestly] since April 2012 and gone from 6.17% up to 
6.57%. In the two financial years before this there was a decline, but the level is within 0.5% of 
the 09/10 level currently. 
 
An analysis of TUPE transfers out of the organisation over the years 09/10 onwards shows that 
113 out of 1011 staff with a declared ethnicity fell within this group and therefore 11.18% of staff 
transferred out of the Council were from minorities. It can be seen therefore that minority 
employees have been more likely to have been involved in transfers out than average, though 
of course this means their employment continues within other organisations on protected terms 
and conditions. Clearly, with such big shifts, the Council is not likely to maintain or increase 
dramatically the same diversity levels internally in the short term.  
 
March 2012 also saw a big transfer in of staff from the NHS [480 staff] in Adults Social Care 
and this again adjusted considerably the staff profile of the organisation. Of those with a 
declared origin in TUPE data only 2.78% of staff were from a minority. However, data was not 
available for the majority of staff so that for the real impact has not been able to be fully 
assessed. This is about to be addressed through a resurvey of all staff, and the most likely 
outcome is that the ethnic diversity rate will increase as a result. 
 
Within the council's recruitment system 19% of applicants were from a ethnic minority in 
2012/13, in fact slightly higher than would be representative going by the 2011 census figures. 
A similar percentage of white and minority applicants were interviewed [17.94% to 15.55%].  In 
the same year, 8.3% of staff appointed were from ethnic minorities. This suggests recruitment 
as a process is contributing towards higher ethnic diversity in the workforce.  Although a smaller 
proportion of ethnic minority applicants are still appointed, this is most likely to be due to 
differences between specific applicants since the shortlisting process is carried out without 
access to the equality data or candidate names etc. Processes keep the origin of candidates as 
hidden as possible, and complaints about the process are rarely received. The process is made 

27



as objective as possible by drawing up person specifications for each post, and scoring 
applicants against each identified job requirement. It is supported by manager training. Never-
the-less HR are looking to implement a candidate feedback survey to ensure we do what we 
can to proactively invite and consider feedback which we can analyse to review the fairness of 
processes. 
 
In 2012/13 6.36% of leavers were from ethnic minorities [7 resignations, 3 Voluntary 
redundancies and 1 dismissal], suggesting the retention of minority staff is generally in line with 
staff retention generally, and even making a slight contribution to increasing workforce diversity. 
 
It is accepted that both good business models and the desire for equality and delivery of our 
services to diverse populations should lead to concern for ensuring the development of a 
diverse workforce continues. The issue of increasing ethnic diversity is not unique to the 
council. It already falls within the upper quartile of councils in it's diversity rates. 
 
However, it must be recognised that the opportunities to do this only exist with the constraints of 
fair treatment of individuals [equal opportunities]. So for example the Equality Act 2010 would 
allow the appointment of a minority candidate over another candidate where they were equally 
matched to the job requirements. The general rule is thought that appointments have to be on a 
merit basis, hence the concern to ensure all processes are as objectively scored and recorded 
as possible.  
 
Resources have of course reduced over recent years both through the need to ensure 
processes are as efficient as possible and the decreasing size, scale and scope of the 
organisation have both meant resourcing specific initiatives aimed at specific minorities has not 
been easy to supply. So for example, use of specialist advertising is generally not considered 
cost effective, or attendance at community based job fairs, especially where current 
arrangements are attracting a significant proportion of minority applicants.  
 
Most suggestions that can be made around facilitating greater ethnic diversity, therefore are 
around ensuring gradual ongoing development of diversity: 
 
[a] continuing to review that processes are as fair as possible  
 
[b] continuing awareness training initiatives and celebration of our diverse culture. 
 
[c] seeking to collect and respond as far as possible to employee and applicant concerns to 
ensure as level a playing field as can be provided.  
 
[d] ensuring working conditions within the council for minority staff encourage recruitment and 
retention. For example 'Religion and Belief' is often a related factor to ethnicity, so we need to 
ensure this factor is fully considered in reviewing Council policies and practices, such as a 
sympathetic approach to time off being taken during festivals etc. 
 
There are proposals currently under development for a new diversity awareness event that will 
include employee workshops and elearning opportunities. This is to give a fresh emphasis on 
the Council's equality and diversity commitments and legal requirements.  
 

6. IMPLICATIONS 
 

6.1 This report covers Council staffing so does not related directly to specific Wards. As an 
information report it makes no direct recommendations with Financial; Legal; Human 
Resources; ICT implications. 
 

7. CONSULTATION 
 

7.1 No specific consultation has taken place for this report. 
 

8. NEXT STEPS 
 

28



8.1 A further report will be submitted in twelve months, unless any further matters are raised at the 
meeting requiring supplementary work \ information. 
 

9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

 
9.1 None. 

 
10. APPENDICES 

 
10.1 Appendix 1 – Key Summary Statistics and key tables \ graphs. 

 

29



APPENDIX 1 
HR report for Sustainable Growth and Environment Capital Scrutiny Committee 5th September 2013 

Key Summary statistics from 2012 HR Benchmarker study and internal reporting 
 

  

 

  

  
Benchmarking figures for PCC 

Directorates 
 

Most recent Comparisons \ 
Benchmarks [11-12] 

 

Metric \ Comments 
Bench 
marked 
measure 

Unit 
Current 
figure  

30/06/13 

Reported 
30/11/12 

PCC 
12/13 

PCC 
11/12 

PCC 
10/11 

PCC 
09/10 

Lower 
Quartile 

Average Median 
Upper 

Quartile 

Workforce size             

Headcount excluding schools and casuals  [at end of period]  People 1426 1690 1551 1722 1728 2759     

Full time equivalent excluding schools  [at end of period]  FTE 1299 1439 1336 1448 1425 2083     

Voluntary Staff Turnover and Retention                     

% Voluntary Staff Turnover   ü % 7.16% 7.6% 6.50% 6.12% 6.20% 6.63% 5.50% 6.80% 6.40% 8.30% 

% Stability Index ü % 95.07% 92.87% 91.51% 90.10% 92.96% 85.81% 89.30% 90.70% 90.90% 93.00% 

Sickness Absence                     

Working Days Lost per Employee p.a.  [Inc adults in latest 

figure for full year] 
ü Days 9.03 12.29 11.70 8.08  10.71  11.81  8.70  10.30  10.00  11.30  

% of working days lost  [PCC figures are annual rate for 

current employees at end of period] 
ü % 4.21% 4.57% 4.12% 4.90% 4.70% 5.18% 3.90% 4.40% 4.70% 5.10% 

Average Length of Absence Period (Days)    ü Days 5.73 5.96 6.01 6.36  4.70  5.68  5.00  6.90  6.10  8.20  

Ongoing sickness occasions of over 20 FTE days at the 
end of period 

 People 25 36 25 39 17 31     

Staff above sickness trigger level [3 occasions or 10 days in 

6 months] and therefore have attendance under review at end 
of period. 

 People 157 176 165 230 190 309     

Current Staff with no absence in last 12 months [at end of 

period] 
 People 

575 
[38%] 

702 601 660       

% of Total Sickness Absence which is Long Term  

(i.e. over 20 working days)   
ü % 54.68% 58.04% 53.2% 57.4% 55.5% 54.7% 52.0% 51.0% 59.0% 64.0% 

Training & Development                      

Training Spend per Employee p.a.   ü £   £305 £276 £279 £261 £175 £259 £276 £260 

% of delegates on corporate courses rating their course as 

either Excellent or Good for Meeting Their Expectations 

[Latest monthly figures] 

  100% 100%         

Impact of Training ( 2 months post course) –  % respondents 

identifying  positive impact of training, increased confidence, 

improved service delivery, improved communications etc. 

[Latest monthly figures] 

  95% 79%         

% of employees set individual targets \ objectives each year ü % 100% 95% 96.1% 85% 67% 47% 80% 89% 97% 100% 

3
0



Metric \ Comments 
Bench 
marked 
measure 

Unit 
Current 
figure  

30/06/13 

Reported 
30/11/12 

PCC 
12/13 

PCC 
11/12 

PCC 
10/11 

PCC 
09/10 

Lower 
Quartile 

Average Median 
Upper 

Quartile 

% of staff rated as constantly above expectations   1.77% 3.1% 3.2% 10.1% 4.3%      

% of staff rated as regularly below expectations   0.34% 0.0% 0.0% 0.5% 0.4%      

Disciplinary and Grievance Cases [over 12 months]                     

Formal Grievance Cases per 1000 employees ü Cases 
4.16 [6 
cases] 

 
4.13 5.16 5.06 9.70  9.03  2.80  5.10 3.80  6.80  

Formal Disciplinary Cases per 1000 employees ü Cases 
11.09 

[16 
cases] 

7.22 14.83 8.59 33.18 39.03 12.00  14.40 9.90  5.30  

Applications to employment Tribunal per 1000 Employees ü Cases 
1.39 

[2 
cases] 

0.5 
1.93  

[3 cases] 
0.44 1.35 2.42  2.2   

Tribunal cases per 1000 Employees ü Cases 

1.39 

[2 

cases] 
0.5 

1.29 
[2 cases] 

0.44 0.45 1.21  0.5   

Employee Diversity                     

% of Workforce who are Female ü % 71.01% 72.85% 71.18% 72.44% 70.15% 64.72% 67.90% 71.20% 70.70% 74.90% 

% of Workforce who are Part Time ü % 35.17% 36.98% 32.71% 36.31% 27.06% 37.13% 39.70% 44.70% 43.80% 49.70% 

% of Workforce on a Temporary \ Fixed Term Contract ü % 4.06% 2.52% 3.42% 3.85% 5.04% 11.14% 6.00% 8.00% 8.50% 10.20% 

% of Workforce who are from Ethnic Minorities or Mixed origins ü % 6.57% 6.31% 6.17% 5.61% 6.05% 6.98% 1.60% 3.90% 3.90% 5.00% 

% of Workforce with a disability ü % 3.88% 3.69% 3.67% 3.78% 3.54% 2.97% 2.00% 3.20% 3.00% 4.00% 

% of top 5% of earners who are female ü % --- --- 56.96% 52.75% 50.00% 50.68% 43.80% 46.20% 50.10% 54.30% 

% of employees aged 50+ ü % 32.92% 33.8% 32.94% 33.55% 33.09% 36.37% 36.30% 38.30% 38.10% 39.50% 

HR Staff Ratios and Costs                     

Ratio: All HR Staff to All Employees    ü Ratio --- --- 75:1 106 : 1 77 : 1 73 : 1 57 : 1 76 : 1 66 : 1 88 : 1 

HR Staff Cost expressed in £ per Employee ü £ --- --- £492 £278 £348 £454 £297 £406 £402 £506 

HR Staff Cost as % of Organisation Pay Bill ü % --- --- 0.66% 1.00% 1.80% 1.90% 1.30% 1.80% 1.90% 2.20% 

 

3
1



1. Headcount and Turnover 
 

 
1.1 Breakdown of Headcount at June 2013 
 

Breakdown of Headcount

Team 
Head 

count 

Appoint 

ments

Full Time 

Equivalent 

C
a
s
u
a

l

F
u

ll 
 T

im
e

P
a

rt
  

T
im

e

P
e
rm

 a
n

e
n

t

T
e
m

p
 o

ra
ry FTE 

change 

since 

Nov12 

report

Adult Social Care 318 320 271.60 2 173 143 304 12 -109

Chief Executive Dept 46 46 41.62 1 34 11 40 5 6

Childrens Services 647 721 542.00 63 390 194 553 31 -20

Legal and Governance 60 61 56.52 1 49 10 56 3 -4

Operations 328 336 292.78 10 253 65 308 10 -12

Strategic Resources 105 105 94.58 1 76 28 104 0 0

Directorates Total 1504 1589 1,299.11 78 975 451 1365 61 -140  
 

Headcount excluding Casuals = 1426 
 

1.2 Headcount and FTE Trend at June 2013 

 
 

1.3 Headcount by Terms and Conditions at June 2013 

 

1.4  12 Months Leavers by Type to June 2013 

 

 

 

3
2



1.5 Turnover by Service for last 12 Months to June 2013 

[Excludes Casual & Relief Staff & temporary staff of less than one year] 
 

Team

App  

Count  

start

App 

Count 

end

Average  

appointments

Voluntary  

Leavers

Other  

Leavers

All  

Leavers

Voluntary  

Turnover  

Last12M

Other  

Turnover  

Last12M

All  

Turnover  

Last12M

Care Services Delivery 379 218 298.5 16 151 167 5.36% 50.59% 55.95%

Quality Information & Performance 46 44 45 8 31 39 17.78% 68.89% 86.67%

Revenue and Payments 22 23 22.5 1 10 11 4.44% 44.44% 48.89%

Seconded to NHS [Mental Health] 12 13 12.5 0 1 1 0.00% 8.00% 8.00%

Strategic Commissioning 10 9 9.5 2 2 4 21.05% 21.05% 42.11%

Adult Social Care 472 310 391 28 195 223 7.16% 49.87% 57.03%

Communications 11 13 12 2 0 2 16.67% 0.00% 16.67%

Delivery 5 5 5 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Human Resources 21 18 19.5 1 2 3 5.13% 10.26% 15.38%

Public Health Client 0 5 2.5 0 1 1 0.00% 40.00% 40.00%

Chief Executive Department 39 43 41 3 3 6 7.32% 7.32% 14.63%

Education and Resources 210 191 200.5 23 12 35 11.47% 5.99% 17.46%

Safeguarding Families Communities 154 162 158 21 4 25 13.29% 2.53% 15.82%

Strategic Commissioning and Prevention 273 256 264.5 15 24 39 5.67% 9.07% 14.74%

Childrens Services 642 614 628 59 40 99 9.39% 6.37% 15.76%

Governance 29 30 29.5 1 2 3 3.39% 6.78% 10.17%

Legal Services 33 28 30.5 3 1 4 9.84% 3.28% 13.11%

Legal and Governance 64 59 61.5 4 4 8 6.50% 6.50% 13.01%

Commercial Operations 25 28 26.5 4 1 5 15.09% 3.77% 18.87%

Neighbourhoods 140 153 146.5 3 10 13 2.05% 6.83% 8.87%

Planning Transport & Engineering 133 133 133 4 3 7 3.01% 2.26% 5.26%

Operations 307 319 313 11 18 29 3.51% 5.75% 9.27%

Client and Commissioning 11 16 13.5 1 0 1 7.41% 0.00% 7.41%

Customer Services 28 30 29 1 1 2 3.45% 3.45% 6.90%

Internal Audit 6 6 6 0 0 0 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Strategic Finance 29 27 28 1 3 4 3.57% 10.71% 14.29%

Westcombe 23 21 22 2 2 4 9.09% 9.09% 18.18%

Strategic Resources 100 104 102 5 6 11 4.90% 5.88% 10.78%

Directorates Total 1624 1449 1536.5 110 266 376 7.16% 17.31% 24.47%  
 

Some small teams of 5 or less staff not shown separately but included in totals 

3
3



2. Absence  
 

2.1 Most recent sickness rates - 12 months to June 2013 [current employee basis]. 
 

Last 12 Months focus Last 3 Months Focus

Name Emp FTE
Approx FTE 

days available

1
2
m
 D
a
y
s

1
2
m
 O
cc

Approx % 

working 

days 

absence

FTE Days 

per Current 

Employee

Direction of 

Travel from 

Last Month 

[DPE]

DPE 

12M 

last 

month

D
a
y
s 
A
p
r-
1
3

O
cc
 A
p
r-
1
3

D
a
y
s 
M
a
y
-1
3

O
cc
 M
a
y
-1
3

D
a
y
s 
Ju
n
-1
3

O
cc
 J
u
n
-1
3 Direction of 

Travel from 

Last Month 

[Days]

Care Services Delivery 186.01 40,189.83 3,324.21 431 8.27% 17.87 Up 17.24 321.28 28 233.79 38 273.45 25 Up

Quality Information & Performance 15.88 2,997.18 151.32 25 5.05% 9.53 Down 10.11 39.78 3 21.00 0 29.19 3 Up

Seconded to NHS [Mental Health] 11.03 2,410.39 97.62 11 4.05% 8.85 Down 11.99 21.00 0 21.00 0 20.00 0 Down

Revenue and Payments 12.23 2,735.84 88.18 25 3.22% 7.21 Up 5.65 2.00 1 3.00 0 1.00 1 Down

Strategic Commissioning 6.40 1,336.43 3.00 1 0.22% 0.47 Down 0.60 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 Same

Adult Social Care 234.34 50,256.36 3,667.33 494 7.30% 15.65 Up 14.32 384.06 32 278.79 38 323.65 29 Up

Strategic Commissioning and Prevention 217.72 47,450.85 2,228.57 367 4.70% 10.24 Up 9.79 218.62 42 224.03 38 154.89 26 Down

Safeguarding Families Communities 151.54 31,653.31 1,396.27 213 4.41% 9.21 Down 9.34 112.78 13 88.00 8 125.76 15 Up

Education and Resources 155.04 32,805.22 1,345.79 322 4.10% 8.68 Up 7.91 165.46 33 148.89 45 146.45 21 Down

Childrens Services 529.29 112,808.09 4,987.13 908 4.42% 9.42 Up 9.07 500.36 90 460.92 91 427.11 62 Down

Westcombe 19.84 4,203.81 361.93 23 8.61% 18.24 Up 18.10 23.54 3 24.16 4 23.03 1 Down

Customer Services 24.17 4,936.59 134.76 47 2.73% 5.57 Down 6.92 17.82 4 8.60 1 1.29 2 Down

Internal Audit 5.06 1,132.71 13.40 7 1.18% 2.65 Same 2.65 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 Same

Strategic Finance 26.02 5,817.83 57.95 17 1.00% 2.23 Same 2.23 0.00 0 1.89 1 0.00 0 Down

Client and Commissioning 15.49 3,245.17 4.00 2 0.12% 0.26 Up 0.24 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 Same

Strategic Resources 94.58 20,109.76 572.04 96 2.84% 6.05 Down 6.28 41.36 7 34.65 6 24.32 3 Down

Neighbourhoods 140.02 30,712.54 1,068.90 240 3.48% 7.63 Up 7.55 93.36 23 47.24 11 105.52 19 Up

Commercial Operations 18.85 3,731.99 78.70 33 2.11% 4.18 Up 3.60 5.97 4 1.08 1 11.90 4 Up

Planning Transport & Engineering 126.35 27,564.25 420.34 135 1.52% 3.33 Up 3.23 14.45 8 13.06 4 46.92 10 Up

Operations 290.22 63,127.57 1,567.93 408 2.48% 5.40 Up 5.27 113.78 35 61.39 16 164.34 33 Up

Communications 12.54 2,194.15 65.50 11 2.99% 5.22 Up 4.27 13.00 3 21.00 0 20.00 0 Down

Human Resources 17.48 3,785.22 110.11 69 2.91% 6.30 Up 6.28 15.10 22 13.50 16 6.50 6 Down

Public Health Client 4.92 1,101.20 18.11 10 1.64% 3.68 Up 3.23 4.34 3 0.00 0 0.00 0 Same

Delivery 3.68 822.47 8.00 2 0.97% 2.18 Up 1.71 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 Same

Chief Executive Department 40.62 8,350.56 201.72 92 2.42% 4.97 Up 4.22 32.44 28 34.50 16 26.50 6 Down

Governance 26.10 5,790.30 181.16 210 3.13% 6.94 Up 6.52 11.50 31 9.00 20 18.00 5 Up

Legal Services 27.42 6,083.14 46.62 16 0.77% 1.70 Down 1.76 15.30 3 12.90 2 0.00 0 Down

Legal and Governance 54.52 12,097.20 228.78 227 1.89% 4.20 Up 4.15 26.80 34 21.90 22 18.00 5 Down

Directorates Total 1,243.58 266,749.54 11,224.94 2225 4.21% 9.03 Up 8.75 1,099 226 892 189 984 138 Up  
 

Some small teams of 5 or less staff not shown separately but included in totals 

3
4



 
2.2   Days Lost per employee  - 12 Months rolling figures to June 2013  [Current Employees] 
 

 
 

2.3 Absence Occasions and days by category - 12 Months to June 2013 [Current Employees] 

 
 

2.4 Departmental analysis of stress related category - last 12 months at June 2013 [Current Employees] 

Directorate
Stress days 12M 

Current employees

Emp 

FTE

Stress related days per 

FTE

Adult Social Care 853 234 3.64

Childrens Services 1,361 529 2.57

Strategic Resources 169 95 1.79

Chief Executive Department 57 41 1.41

Operations 244 290 0.84

Legal and Governance 24 55 0.44

Directorates total 2,709 1,244 2.18  

Category scheme - This classification of the causes of sickness absence 
allocates hundreds of absence causes to the broader sickness absence 
categories provided by the Local Government Employers. Reasons are 
generally collected at the point absence starts, by non medical specialists, 
so are broadly categorised under the area affected. 'Other' tends to be 
used for items not fitting neatly into the other categories, and includes 
absences due to injections, inflammation, burns, bites, cuts, diabetes, sun 
burn, skin conditions, nutritional issues, side effects of anti-biotics etc,  
  

3
5



3. Appraisals and Training activity 
 

3.1 PDR Monitoring Report Final for 2013/14 round. 
 
 

Not completed 

due to absence

Of completed, number at 

each score
Where completed % at each rating (rounded)

Team

N
o
. 

s
ta

ff
 i
n

 

s
c
o
p

e

S
ic

k
n
e

s
s

M
a
te

rn
it
y

O
th

e
r

S
c
h
 Y

r

S
h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 

c
o
m

p
le

te

N
o
. 
o
f 

s
c
o
re

s
 

re
p
o
rt

e
d

%
 r

e
p
o

rt
e

d
 

c
o
m

p
le

te

1 2 3 4 5 CR 1 2 3 4 5 CR

Care Services Delivery 218 11 4 2 201 201 100.00% 1 174 22 4 0.50% 86.57% 10.95% 1.99%

Quality Information & Performance 17 1 16 16 100.00% 11 4 1 68.75% 25.00% 6.25%

Revenue and Payments 13 13 13 100.00% 7 5 1 53.85% 38.46% 7.69%

Strategic Commissioning 7 7 7 100.00% 6 1 85.71% 14.29%

Adult Social Care 257 12 4 2 239 239 100.00% 1 198 34 1 5 0.42% 82.85% 14.23% 0.42% 2.09%

Communications 12 1 1 1 9 9 100.00% 1 6 1 1 11.11% 66.67% 11.11% 11.11%

Delivery 3 3 3 100.00% 1 2 33.33% 66.67%

Human Resources 19 19 19 100.00% 1 8 6 3 1 5.26% 42.11% 31.58% 15.79% 5.26%

Chief Executive Department 37 1 1 1 34 34 100.00% 2 18 8 4 2 5.88% 52.94% 23.53% 11.76% 5.88%

Education and Resources 186 1 4 110 71 71 100.00% 3 44 20 2 2 4.23% 61.97% 28.17% 2.82% 2.82%

Safeguarding Families Communities 160 1 5 3 151 151 100.00% 3 9 114 21 1 3 1.99% 5.96% 75.50% 13.91% 0.66% 1.99%

Strategic Commissioning and Prevention 252 5 5 3 1 238 238 100.00% 6 187 36 1 8 2.52% 78.57% 15.13% 0.42% 3.36%

Childrens Services 601 6 11 10 111 463 463 100.00% 3 18 346 77 6 13 0.65% 3.89% 74.73% 16.63% 1.30% 2.81%

Governance 28 1 27 27 100.00% 11 16 40.74% 59.26%

Legal Services 29 29 29 100.00% 23 5 1 79.31% 17.24% 3.45%

Legal and Governance 58 1 57 57 100.00% 34 21 2 59.65% 36.84% 3.51%

Commercial Operations 27 27 27 100.00% 27 100.00%

Neighbourhoods 152 1 3 148 148 100.00% 4 96 45 2 1 2.70% 64.86% 30.41% 1.35% 0.68%

Planning Transport & Engineering 132 1 131 131 100.00% 7 64 56 2 3 5.38% 49.23% 43.08% 1.54% 0.77%

Operations 314 1 4 309 309 100.00% 11 187 104 5 4 3.56% 60.19% 33.66% 1.62% 0.97%

Client and Commissioning 16 1 15 15 100.00% 14 1 93.33% 6.67%

Customer Services 27 27 27 100.00% 1 23 2 1 3.70% 85.19% 7.41% 3.70%

Internal Audit 6 1 5 5 100.00% 2 3 40.00% 60.00%

Strategic Finance 27 2 25 25 100.00% 1 1 9 14 4.00% 4.00% 36.00% 56.00%

Westcombe 5 5 5 100.00% 5 100.00%

Strategic Resources 84 3 1 80 80 100.00% 1 2 55 17 3 2 1.25% 2.50% 68.75% 21.25% 3.75% 2.50%

Directorates Total 1353 20 24 14 111 1184 1184 100.00% 4 34 838 261 21 26 0.34% 2.87% 70.69% 22.04% 1.77% 2.28%  
 

 

* Employees will report once only under their current main post. 
* Some small teams of 5 or less staff not shown separately but included in totals 
 

3
6



 
3.2 PDR Graphical Summary for 2013/14 round 

 
 

Key - CR Cannot rate [too soon]; 1 Regularly below expectations; 2 Occasionally below expectations; 3 Meets expectations; 4 Sometimes exceeds 
expectations; 5 Consistently exceeds expectations. 

 

3
7



4. Employee Relations [cases] 
 

4.1 Current Disciplinary, Capability and Grievance cases at June 2013 
 

Service Capability Discipline Grievance

Adult Social Care 1 3

Childrens Services 3 6 13

Directorates Total 3 7 17  
[Includes cases that may be resolved informally] 

 
 

4.3 Breakdown of cases started in the 12 months to June 2013 
 

Disciplinary Cases                                                       Grievance Cases 
 

 

 

4.2 Outcomes of formal cases ended in the 12 
Months to June 2013 

Disciplinary cases [includes Capability] 
Outcome Total

Appeal Upheld 1

Case not Found 2

Employee Resigned 3

Final Written Warning Issued 4

Termination by Mutual Agreement 1

Verbal Warning Issued 2

Written Warning Issued 3

Grand Total 16  
 

Grievances 
Outcome Total

Not Found 2

Resolved 3

Upheld 1

Grand Total 6  
 

Tribunal Cases 
Outcome Total

Settled Out of Court 1

Grand Total 1  
 

 

3
8



5. Workforce Diversity 
 

5.1 Trends compared with Benchmarks and Census 2011 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
5.2 Directorate Breakdown at June 2013 
 

Team
All 

Staff

Minority 

\ Mixed 

Ethnic

Self 

Identified 

Disability 

Gender 

Female

Gender 

Male

Over

50

% Minority 

\ 

Mixed

%

 Disab.

Female

%

%

50+

Adult Social Care 310 2 3 253 57 141 3.28% 6.98% 81.61% 45.48%

Chief Executive Dpt 43 1 5 32 11 13 2.33% 12.82% 74.42% 30.23%

Childrens Services 614 44 12 493 121 194 8.13% 2.27% 80.29% 31.60%

Legal and Governance 59 4 1 48 11 12 7.14% 1.85% 81.36% 20.34%

Operations 319 16 3 155 164 83 5.16% 1.01% 48.59% 26.02%

Strategic Resources 104 6 17 48 56 34 6.00% 17.53% 46.15% 32.69%

Directorates Total 1449 73 41 1029 420 477 6.57% 3.88% 71.01% 32.92%

3
9



 
 

 

4
0



SUSTAINABLE GROWTH AND ENVIRONMENT 
CAPITAL SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 6 

5 SEPTEMBER 2013  
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Executive Director of                                        
 
Contact Officer(s) – Charlotte Palmer. Climate Change Manager  
Contact Details – charlotte.palmer@peterborough.gov.uk, 01733 453538 
 

ENVIRONMENT CAPITAL UPDATE 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 This report provides the Committee with an update on key elements of work associated with the 

delivery of the Environment Capital core priority. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 The Committee is asked to note the report and provide comments accordingly. 
 

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY  
 

3.1 This report directly contributes to the objectives and outcomes contained in the Sustainable Community 
Strategy and, in particular, the aspiration to ‘create the UK’s Environment Capital’. 
 

4. BACKGROUND 
 

4.1 An update detailing work relating to the city’s Environment Capital agenda was last presented to this 
group in July 2012. A significant amount of work has been undertaken since then, as follows: 
 

• A detailed survey has been undertaken, with over 1600 responses, to ascertain citywide knowledge 
and recognition of Environment Capital. The survey showed that 85% of respondents agreed that 
taking action to improve the local environment is a key priority for the city. More information can be 
found at: 
http://www.peterborough.gov.uk/news/latest_news/2013/january/the_citys_journey_to_creating.aspx  

• The Environment Capital brand has been developed to ensure consistency and encourage use 
across different partner organisations.  

• Confirmed a date for a 2013 Environment Capital citywide event, building on the success of the 
2012 conference. This will be a workshop style event aimed at leaders from businesses, schools 
and the private and voluntary sectors across the city.  

• Developed the draft Environment Capital Action Plan, due to progress through the democratic 
process from September.  

• Contributed to the city’s success in securing £3m investment from the Technology Strategy Board 
for the Future City Demonstrator project. More information can be found at: 
http://www.peterboroughfuturecity.co.uk/  

• Shortlisted down to 1 of 12 cities to receive support from the Sustainable Food Cities Network. This 
will entail direct support to develop a local food strategy for the city.  

• We have established the Sustainable Cities Network. This is a peer to peer knowledge share group 
that brings together cities from across the country including: London, Bristol, Brighton, Leicester, 
Middlesbrough, Newcastle, Glasgow and more. 

 
This list is not intended to be comprehensive, but provide an overview of the work undertaken in the last 
12 months. It is intended to discuss this in further detail, supported by further background information 
and an indicative overview of the Environment Capital Action Plan in presentation format at the meeting 
on 5 September 2013.  

41



 
5. KEY ISSUES 

 
5.1 Within the scope of this Committee’s responsibilities, Members are asked to note the content of this 

report and the progress of Environment Capital work.   
 

6. IMPLICATIONS 
 

6.1 For the city to achieve its ambition of becoming the UK’s Environment Capital, it must show a strong 
and evidenced track record of environmental achievement backed by a focus on addressing areas for 
improvement.  This report provides documentation that will ensure Peterborough is able to direct its 
resources to the Environment Capital outcomes with a consistent and cohesive approach. 
 

7. CONSULTATION 
 

7.1 The Environment Capital documents outlined in this report have been subject to internal and partner 
consultation as part of their development. 
 

8. NEXT STEPS 
 

8.1 Feedback from the committee will help to inform the future of the Environment Capital ambition. 
 

9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 

9.1 A presentation providing more information will be given at the meeting on 5 September 2013. 
 

10. APPENDICES 
 

10.1 N/A 
 

  

42



SUSTAINABLE GROWTH AND 
ENVIRONMENT CAPITAL SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 7 

5 SEPTEMBER 2013  
 

Public Report 

 

Report of Executive Director – Strategic Resources                                 
 

Report Author - John Harrison, Executive Director – Strategic Resources 
Contact Details -  John Harrison, Executive Director – Strategic Resources  

   Tel: 01733 452520  
john.harrison@peterborough.gov.uk  
  

 

ENTERPRISE PETERBOROUGH PARTNERSHIP PERFORMANCE REPORT 
 

1. PURPOSE 
 

1.1 This is an opportunity for the Committee to hear from and question officers of the 
Council and the Partnership Director, on the review of the current set of Key 
Performance Indicators (KPI’s) 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 The Sustainable Growth and Environment Capital Scrutiny Committee are asked to 
support the approach being taken to develop the new set of KPI’s for the Enterprise 
Peterborough contract. We will once finalised bring the complete set of KPI’s back to 
this committee.  
 

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY  
 

3.1 The Enterprise Peterborough partnership contributes to all the priorities in the 
Sustainable Community Strategy:- 

- Creating opportunities – tackling inequalities; 
- Creating strong and supportive communities; 
- Creating the UK’s environmental capital; and 
- Delivering substantial and truly sustainable growth. 

 
4. BACKGROUND AND CONTEXT 

 
4.1 Enterprise Peterborough reported to the Committee in June 2013. At that time the 

committee requested a report back on progress of creating a new set of KPI’s 
 

5. KEY ISSUES OF CONCERN TO THE COMMITTEE 
 

5.1 Update 

5.1.1 
 
 
 

Peterborough City Council (PCC) is undertaking a fundamental review of the KPI’s that 
were agreed to underpin the service standards and performance management 
arrangements with Enterprise Peterborough. 
 

43



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.1.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.1.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.1.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This paper summarises how Strategic Client Services (SCS) has worked with 
Enterprise Peterborough to produce a new streamlined set of KPI’s.  
The report answers the specific queries raised by the committee. Through the proposed 
new set of KPI’s it will allow councillors to clearly see the performance of the Enterprise 
contract and gauge customer satisfaction levels. 
 
As the new KPI’s are still subject to final agreement and input between PCC and Amey, 
we have not set out the complete new suite of indicators here. We have looked to make 
improvements that streamline and tidy up the existing KPI’s, increase targets, be more 
demanding and drive through customer satisfaction. 
 
The performance indicators agreed at the outset of the contract would have always 
included a level of assumption. We now have the benefit of both experience with the 
contract now 28 months in to a 23 year contract and good practice from other contracts 
that Enterprise have successfully been delivering for longer. 
 
Enterprise Peterborough and Peterborough City Council both recognise the need for a 
robust set of KPI’s not only to demonstrate that the contract is fulfilling its obligation but 
also to give transparency to the service being offered. This would as a result allow 
Councillors to be able to demonstrate to their constituents that Enterprise is doing what 
is contractually obliged of them. 
 
It is common practice with outsourced contracts to revisit the KPI’s and monitoring 
methods once the contract has become established. It was recognised that a new set 
of KPI’s was needed on the Enterprise Peterborough contract this was not derived 
through fundamental flaws in the current KPI’s more from pragmatic concerns. The 
current set consisted of 106 KPI’s and it was felt this was too many to enable 
meaningful measurement or focus, within this 106 there where also a great deal of 
overlap and duplication. The vast quantity of KPI resulted in the majority being reported 
by exception and a reliance on Enterprise reporting on their failings.   
 
 
The existing KPI’s have been and remain useful in focussing minds and activity’s and to 
push through the service improvement that we have seen from Enterprise 
Peterborough since the contracted started in 2011. There has been significant 
investment and progress in delivering the business-as-usual activities procured by the 
council and the current KPI’s have identified and penalised Enterprise Peterborough for 
some serious underperformance against expectation. 
 
The contract has also evolved over this 28 month period and now with financial 
restraints we need to both reduce costs wherever possible whilst ensuring we’re 
utilising the diminishing resources to the best effect possible. With the extensive work 
being done by both Enterprise Peterborough and SCS we are moving the contract to 
operate as a more intelligence-led, area-based approach. This will enable Enterprise 
Peterborough to respond effectively to local issues and enable them to adjust spend 
across and within areas to better reflect the local needs. The approach recognises that 
the one size fits all approach can not be applied and that varying areas across 
Peterborough require different approaches to achieve the standard as set out in the 
contract.   
 

5.2 Development of new KPI’s 
 

5.2.1 
 
 

The objectives of reviewing the KPI’s and the approach proposed to be adopted to 
improve and rationalise the KPI’s is as follows: - 
 

44



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.2.2 

1. Clarify and strengthen the KPI’s in place to increase the ability to hold 
Enterprise Peterborough to account (Appendix 2.0 KPI’s 2,3 and 4) 

 
2. Increase if appropriate the service specific minimum standards (Appendix 2.0 all 

proposed new KPI’s) 
 
3. Support the move to a target intelligence based approach (Appendix 2.0 KPI 1) 

 
4. Introduce the measurement of critical success factors for the contract (Appendix 

2.0 KPI’s 6,7 and 8) 
 
5. Review at financial weighting of the KPI’s and penalties incurred by EP (To be 

agreed) 
 
The KPI’s will address the following 11 separate areas of the contract and include a 
new section on customer satisfaction that had previously not formed part of the current 
KPI’s: - 
 

• Reporting 

• Customer Satisfaction 

• Waste and Recycling 

• Street Cleansing 

• Grounds Maintenance 

• PD&M 

• Catering 

• Fleet Management 

• Traveller Site management 

• Passenger Transport 

• Courier Services 
 
So far we have suggested rationalising the current 106 KPI’s into 50 covering the core 
services in the contract, and reviewed these for the behaviours they are likely to 
encourage. This would enable a more manageable and realist KPI set that would not 
be so reliant on management by exception.  
 
Members have made us aware that they would like to use the KPI’s to update and 
reassure constituents that Enterprise Peterborough are achieving and meeting the 
specification set out for them. The new KPI’s will sit along side the councillor ward 
packs, these maps detail the frequency that open spaces should be cleansed and 
parks maintained which in conjunction with the KPI’s demonstrate if Enterprise 
Peterborough are meeting their contractual obligations 
 
The approach as discussed above can be illustrated by the following examples and the 
way they are formed is the basis which has been used across the rest of the KPI’s: - 
 

• There were three KPI’s for fly tipping – To remove within 48 hrs, to update as 
per the Defra requirement and to investigate. This was condensed down into 
one KPI which was to remove the fly tip within 48 hours and ensure that 
systems are updated as per the Defra requirement. We also complimented this 
KPI by looking at reducing fly tips so we have included a new KPI to target 
Enterprise Peterborough to reduce the number of fly tip incidents each month. 
The KPI is dependent on effective and proactive enforcement, this KPI was 
derived through best practice and its use on the Solihull contract. 

 

45



• Less ambiguous and more robust KPI’s were needed and a good example of 
this was missed refuse bins, the current KPI has a formula that Enterprise 
Peterborough need to miss 50 collections per 100,000. We felt that this KPI was 
both not stretching and did not deliver customer satisfaction. As a result we 
propose to strengthen this with a KPI that states “a bin must not be missed more 
than once in a 2 month period”. This then ensures that Enterprise Peterborough 
recognise the original missed bin and ensure that it does not happen again in 
the future, within the current KPI the same bin could be missed each week and 
still not have any penalty. 

 

• To strengthen the ability to measure and improve performance we will utilise the 
quality audit system that Enterprise Peterborough utilise (EMIS). Following 
successful completion of an area cleanse or grounds maintenance work they 
will quality audit the area. As a result of these checks we will require 95% to be 
passed this will ensure high standards and continual improvement on the 
service. The quality checks will be made available to PCC so that we can audit 
and ensure targets are being met. We propose that this target be jointly 
reviewed annually. 

 

• The final area we have looked at is recognising complaints that are received by 
Enterprise Peterborough As a result we have taken the main areas of concern 
and implemented targets to ensure improvements are made e.g. Reduction in 
the number of complaints with regards replacing bins following collection. We 
will add a target figure each month based on the baseline data once collated if 
they go over this amount each subsequent bin will result in a £250.00 penalty. 

 
5.3 Customer Satisfaction 

 
 
5.3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.3.2 

 
Customer satisfaction is a key indicator that will demonstrate how Enterprise 
Peterborough are performing and is currently not included in the existing set of KPI’s. 
Enterprise Peterborough offers numerous customer facing services and the results of 
their work, have an impact on residents of Peterborough. The new KPI’s will recognise 
that there is a need to prove and increase customer satisfaction which is currently not 
reported or penalised. These targets are fundamental to ensure Enterprise 
Peterborough is delivering on the priorities that are sort of them. 
 
We will look the utilise the bi annual citizens panel survey to input some fixed question 
for the three main core areas Refuse and Recycling, Street Cleansing and Parks Trees 
and Open Spaces. Through the results of these surveys we will get a baseline of the 
current customer satisfaction and then build in 3 KPI’s that will set a new annual target 
% satisfaction, we also propose a £5000.00 penalty for each if they are not met. These 
targets will help both PCC and Enterprise Peterborough to demonstrate both value for 
money and a high level of service. Please see appendix 2.0 for the proposed new 
customer satisfaction KPI’s and further KPI’s to support and strengthen existing 
measures. 
 

6.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 

6.1 The partnership enables the Council to continue to provide value for money services 
through its partner.    
 

7. CONSULTATION 
 

46



7.1 Observations made by Members and other stakeholders have been taken into account 
in this report. 
 

8. NEXT STEPS 
 

8.1 
 

Now that we have a more robust and streamline set of KPI’s we will look to consult with 
Enterprise Peterborough (Amey) to agree these and implement them as part of the 
contract by 2014 – 2015. We will use the rest of this financial year to ensure that the 
baseline data is collected and realistic targets are set to ensure Enterprise 
Peterborough both grow as a company whilst achieving the high standards of services 
expected by PCC.  
 
Once we have agreement on the completed set of KPI’s we will bring these back to 
Scrutiny for your comments. 
 

9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 

9.1 None  
 

10. APPENDICES 
 

10.1 Appendix 1.0 Current KPI’s 
Appendix 2.0 Sample of proposed new KPI’s 
 
 

  

47



48

This page is intentionally left blank



��������

��	��
��������	�

����������������������������
�����������

��� ����!
����������������������������

�����������

��� ����!

�����������"�#������$��%�!��&��'�������'�������

�����������������$��(��(��
��(����!����������

�(���)*���������(����"��!��&��'��$(����

���"��!��"���#��%+'�#����(�����!,�$(�������$����

#��'��-�����#!�)*����(����&��$��%������!

.��%�!

�����������"�#����������������������(�!�

"��-������'�����������������������$��(��(��


��(����!�����������(���/�$��%������!"�#������

�(������������������(������(�!�"��-����

�������

����(�! �&������ 
�����

�����������"�#������ �������!�"��-������'�������

��"�������������"��������$��(��(��
��(����!����

�������(���0�$��%������!"�#�������(����������

�(������������������"(�'�1����2

3�������!
������������������%����"������+����%�(������

����"��������"��-�!"�������"��#��������!�����

.�"����������!�����

�����

�����������"�#�������
���������-������'�������

�����������������$��(��(��
��(����!����������

�(���)4�$��%������!"��������(����������(��

���������!����$(��(������(���-�����������

���#���"�����(�5)"�����
'����)"�


�����
������������������%����"������+����%�(������

����"��������"��-�!"�������"��#��������!�����

������������"���

�����

��#��""�������
������1�"���""�6�-���'�����

���

�����

������������������%����"������+����%�(������

����"��������"��-�!"�������"��#��������!�����

��%"�����"������'����'���"

�����

������������'������'�����+��-�"������-����

6���-��!����"����������������������������������

�(���/*�$��%������!"�������������������������

�(������"��''��-��2

3�������!
������������������%����"������+����%�(������

����"��������"��-�!"�������"��#��������!�����

67��6�"���

�����

������������������%����"������+����%�(������

����"��������"��-�!"�������"��#��������!�����

67�������������

�����

������������������%����"������+����%�(������

����"��������"��-�!"�������"��#��������!�����

67����������

�����

���������������������� 
�����
������������������%����"������+����%�(������

����"��������"��-�!"�������"��#��������!�����

��������

�����

��������!���"'�������������"���������

��'��������'���

�����

������������������%����"������+����%�(������

����"��������"��-�!"�������"��#��������!�����

���-���������������������

�����

������������������%����"������+����%�(������

����"��������"��-�!"�������"��#��������!�����

�""����������"'���

�����

���-�����"���������������������+���-�����"�

�����������
���������

�����

������������������%����"������+����%�(������

����"��������"��-�!"�������"��#��������!�����

�������

�����

�����������'�������������������&���"������!�

$��(���8�����("��������������������������

�����(����������'������(��'�����������������

�"��������$��(��(��
��(����!


�����

���-���������������������'���������� 
����� ��-�"���������9����(,������!�����.���������� 3�������!

��#��""�������
������1�"���""�6�-���'�����

���

�����

���'�!�$��(��(��9����(,������!�����.�������

���
.��%�!

����������������!��(��
��(����!�����(��

������������������66���$��(���/�(���"�����(��

����������2�
����(�!

�7���
����������:��������������"������

��-���'���"��� ������$��(��(���&��'��������

����"�;'�������,������������"(��#",�(�������

#�"%��",��������!����<=


�����

�����������'��-���������������"��������66������

�(��
��(����!������(��9�����������$��(��(��

����"����"�"��'�������#!��(��9����(�����

�����!��&�����-�

����(�!


������������������������������������

>>�������"%���������������

>>
���������

>>���������$���������""�������#�"�

>>?�#���.�������������������'���

>>.�������������������'���

>>�������%������������������'���

>>�"��������"��"�������������'���

>>
�����������'��������'���

>>���"���������'�������


�����
�#"��-�������������97����������'��������"�

������ ��������"
����(�!

�������������97�����������������"���������

"����2
����(�!

��"�������� �����"��������'�����"���� 
�����
��-����������(�!�97����'����������������

"�����!������������"
����(�!

���#��������������������"�����#����!���� 
�����

�������������������������������$��(��(��


��(����!,��(��#�"���������#�����������

���(������!�#!��(����������(��)"�����������

@���


�����

���������-������ 
�����
��������������������(��#�"���������#�����������

�����#!��(����������(��/������������@���2

�����

	��"���������������� 
�����
�������������(��-�����#�������������������"�

;�����5���@���������������=

�����

1����-��"��!��������������� 
�����

���%�(�������������������,���������������

��������������

�����


��������(������������������(�����

�����������

�����

1�"���""����������!���� 
�����
���!�������������"����� 
�����


������?'������������'���"�$��(����(�����-�����'�������������"�

�������$��(��(��
��(����!2����-�������"�$����#��"�#����������

�����$��(���'����������������#��$�����(��������������(��


��(����!2

��'���!�6�"����7������������

���-�����"

���-���������������
��������������'������

��%"�����"�7��'����'���"

���������������������!"���"

�����������������������������

9����-��

�����������	
���
�������

��	�����
��
��������
�

�����������
���	�����

���������
�

4
9



����������	
	���

�����������������������������
��������� �

���!����"
��##���$��#�%�&���'(���##�����������#�)���

*((+(((,�� �����*'(�����������#�-������##���

����������������.((+(((��/�����������)��#������

�-�������/�����/����"�-�����0��122'(�-��/����

����/��3

����/�"

$��4"���#���������������������/��#)��������

�������������"
����/�"

�������������/��&���/�������-�� ����"���� �

)���������������/��#)�����������������"����

2(**5*2�678

2(*25*.�'68

2(*.5*6�7(8

2(*65*'������/���������7*8

�/�����/��)�����������#������/��&���/��

���"���� �)������������/�����/����"���"��

���#�����������������������)��#��������������

-��/��/�������-�� �

�9����������/���(3'8��2'8�������)��#������

)�"�0��

�9����������/���*8��'(8�������)��#������

)�"�0��

�9����������/���*3'8��:'8�������)��#������

)�"�0��

�9�28���������*((8�������)��#������)�"�0��

������

���������������&�����)���������$��#�5�

	��������#�-/������#��������0"��/�����/����"�

�������������� �����#���0"��/����������

-��/���2�-��4�� ���"#

����/�"

�����������)��&����������#��������##�##�����

��������� ���0������0��)��&������������#������

-��/���.�-��4�� ���"#��������!��#��0��� �

�����&��3��/��������##�##������#����/���#���

0"��/�����/����"��/����������-��������&���0��#�

��������������-��/���;���((6

����/�"

�������������&���#���������������������������

-��/��/��������������	���#�����
<�������"

������������������0��#������#� �����������������

)����
����/�"

�����������)��&��������/�"�-�#�������� ��

����
����/�"

�����������)��&�����)�������&�������&���#����3�

���������=����#���������������-��/����/����"�

��#��������5��!��#�

����/�"

�����������	
���
�������

��	�����
��
��������
�

�����������
���	�����

����������

5
0



��������

������	�
������

�����������	��������	��������
����������	

�������� 

�������	��	!����	��	����	����������	"��#��	�#�	

$�����	����	!��%	��	����	�	&�������	��	

����������	"��#	�#�	������	���������	

����"�!��	��'������	��	�#�	�����&�� 	��	�&�	

��	�#��	����(	�����&������	�#����#	)*+	��	

������ 	�����&	��#��,���	�#�	&�������	��������	

��	�#�	���,���	�'�����������

����#� 

�������	��	��&���	�#��	������	!��&	���	���	����	��	

�,�����"���-	.#���	���	������	!��	�&	��'�����	

�&	����	��	�,��	���"���	�#�	�������	"���	��&���	

�#��	�#�	!��	�&	��'����	��	����������	"��#	�#�	

�����"����

/	��	#��#	�&���		��� 	������	����&	"��#��	01	

������&

/	��	���	��#��	����&	��	��'�����	!�����	2'�	

��'����	�#�	&���	�� 

/	��	��'�����	�����	2	'�	��'����	�#�	�����"���	

"��%���	�� 

����#� 

����������	��	�!�������	��#����&	��	����	

"��#	�'�����������
����#� 

����,��	��	�������� 	�������	&������(	�� 3

'�&�����	���4��	�������	"��#��	�#�	����&	

����������	"��#��	�#�	&'�����������	��'������	

�'��	�#���	���&&���������-

����#� 

�� 	��''��	.�&��	����,��	"��#��	&'�������	

����-
����#� 

�������	��	���#��	�����������	��	��������	��	�� 	

��''��	"�&��	��������	! 	�#�	���#������&	

�����������	����	"#��#	�������&	�� 	������&	

"#��#	�� 	�&&�&�	"��#	�	���,������-	

����#� 

�������	��	�'����	���������	��	�� 	��''���	�&	

��������	! 	5����	"��#	�#�	�� ��'����	& &���-
����#� 

�������	��	'��,���	&'�����	�,���	��	

����������	"��#	���#���� 	��&��������	��	

�����&�-
����#� 

�����������	
���
�������

��	�����
��
��������
�

�����������
���	�����

����������

5
1



��������

��	
��������������

���

���������
����������������������� ���

���������!

���" ���#

��$	����%%&

��������!���'�(���)����� ����������

��������!���� )�������������'��������

���'������������ �*���+���)����+�

��������� �����+��,�����+���+����� ���)�)

����)�" ������)��-���)������-����)���

.�����������+���" ������-��/#�+�.������01

��� ��

��$	����%%2

���� ����.��-���.��.�)��)�)��+�(��

������)��+�� �/����.��')(��+!�������!

)��� )3�+�)(���/�.��-�����).������+�
��� ��

��$	����%%4
���� �������������+��-���#������������

(��+�+�).�����������
����+�#

��$	����%%5
���� ������������.������!.���)���

���������-�(�������� ��) ����+�#

��$	����%%6
���� ������������.��'� ���� ����

����������(��+�+�).����������� 7 ������#

��$	����%%8
���� ����.��� �������������9 .�����+�

�����))����!�)��� ����+�#

��$	����%%:

���� ������).�������)�)��)�� ����/#�+�

� �+����#(��+���+�����.�����)��� �(��+��

�+�).�����������1
����+�#

��$	����%%;
���� ���� ������'���������(��')(��+���+�

����.�����)��� �(��+���+�).����������� ����+�#

��$	����%%<

���� ������������)�������)���������#!��))

� ����!�)).����������������������(��+�+�

��� ��.���=�����)�������+�� !+<6>��

" ����#� ���)��+��-��!�+�)���������" ����

���+����-����.�����������

����+�#

��$	����%&%

���� ������������)�������)��� �/�����

� �������-��!�)�)).�������=�����)������

�+�� !+<6>��" ����#� ���)��+��-��!�+�

)���������" �������+����-����.�����������

7 ������#

��$	����%&%�

���� ������������)�������)���.��������

����-��!�)�)).�������=�����)������

�+�� !+<6>��" ����#� ���)��+��-��!�+�

)���������" �������+����-����.�����������

7 ������#

��$	����%&&

���� ����) /�������� ��.���������(��)=

��)�)/�����!���+��!��!/�)'��)�).�����

�+���	���� ������
��� ��

��$	����%&2

���� ����) /�������� ��.������/ �/)=

����)=� /��)=��)�)�����+��.������������

�).������+���	���� ������
��� ��

��$	����%&4

���� ����) ..�#=.�������������������)=

)+� /)=��)�)�� ��.����)=����)�����)=.�.���)=

(����()/�����!.����)=/ �/)=����)���

� /��)���!�� ����-��.����)������������

(��+�+���� ��.������).�����������=�).���

���+���	���� ������

��� ��

��$	����%&5
���� ����������������+�)=.���).���

� �����)�����'�)������������(��+).��1 7 ������#

��$	����%&6
���� ������).���=�����������������.��#

����)��).������)������������(��+�+�).�� ����+�#

��$	����%&8

���� �����+��'�����.�������!����

��))��!����/���)���+���)����$?�)����

��/��'����)���+���-������/��(����+�

��(�@���!�����+����A(������@���!�:��#)

.��(��'1�����.���)�����/����.�����

(��+��5+� �)

����+�#

��$	����%&:

���� �������" ����#.��.������.��).���)

���������)���������))���.��#1����+�

�-����������� /��+�).�������������) ��

(���/����������/#�,��.����

����+�#

��$	����%&;
���� ���������������))=����)=�+� /)���

+��!�)(��+�����������)$��������� �1 7 ������#

��$	����%&<
���� ����.��.���!��-�)������������(��+

�+�).�����������1 ����+�#

��$	����%2%
���� ��������!��-�)������������(��+�+�

).�����������1 ����+�#

��$	����%2&

���� ������) ���+��)���������)��#����������

(�����!�..��.����� ���������������

����#���������������)��" ����=���) �����

����������(��+������%%2

����+�#

��$	����%22

���� ������) ���+��)�������.�#(��+�+�

)�������)�����" �������)�))��� �(��+��

�+�).�����������1
����+�#

��$	����%24 ���� ��������-����������/ ��)����!��-�) ����+�#

��$	����%25
���� ������).�����)�����������!��-�)��

����������(��+�+�).�����������1
����+�#

�����������	
���
�������

��	�����
��
��������
�

�����������
���	�����

����������

5
2



��������

��	���
��������������
������

������������������������� ���
���������!�

���" ���#
� $���������%���$������ �������&��������

'��&��$(�� ���������������������)��'��'��

�����)��!�&����$$�

����'�#

���� �������&���������	 �����*� �$����%�������

�����������)��'��'�������)��!�&����$$

����'�#

�$�!�������+��������!����������� ������

��$&����������������������$$�����!�

�!�������$���������)��'���,�

����'�#

���� ���������&���������������� ����'�#

���� ��������&�����&��!��$$���������$$������

)��(���������)��'�)'����$��!�����)��'��'��

� �'����#�����'�������$$�����!��!�������

����'�#

���� ��������&���������'��� �'����#�&��!��$$�

�!���$���'���������$����������-�-�$.�$��$�

�������'��������������������������

����'�#

���� ��������&������#�����!���#�)��($����

�������������$.�$��$�������'�����������

������������$$ �$�����'��� �'����#�����������#

����'�#

���� ��������&��������!���� $��������#�&����

����'��. �����!/���0$���1� ��$����������!$/�

$ �����$/�� ���� ������ $��$�&��&���#��$���

��$ ������. �����!��������!��&�������$2���#�

����!��� $��.����&������)��'���34�'� �$

5��(�#

���� ���������&�#�)��'������'������!�����

��$&��$��&��������6��!���,�7
����'�#

���� ������ &������'��
��'����!#����!��

����.�$��)��'��'����$ ��$����������$&������$/�

��$�$�����$��%���$�)��'���89�)��(��!���#$����

�'����$&������/���$�����$��%����'�%��!���(���

&����

����'�#

���� ������(��&���� ��������� &���������

. �����!���!�.��($����$����������������#�����

�'��� �'����#�������$/���$&���������$�$�����

$��%���$����&�����

����'�#

���� ���������&�#�)��'��'����" �������%������

���������$$�����������!���#
����'�#

���� ���������&�#�)��'��'����" �������%������

���������$$������'�!'� $�!��. �����!
����'�#

���� ���������&�#�)��'��'����" �������%������

���������$$���������� �� $�!��. �����!
����'�#

���� ���������&�#�)��'��'����" �������%������

���������$$��������)� $�!��. �����!
����'�#

����$��������.������������������������)��'�*���

������!�����" �������$��������&����� ����

��� ����	�**���! ������$
��� ��

�����������	
���
�������

��	�����
��
��������
�

�����������
���	�����

����������

5
3



��������

��	���
�

��������������������������
�����������

�������

�� ��!����"�#�� ��������������#������

$��%�����&'����������!������� ����������

&���%�(��������������!)
*�������

����������#���������!��������������$��%�


��������+����
�����������!�������!�����������

����������"����������!�!�����"���������!!�

��%�$�!������$��%��%���%�������,���

���%�����

������

����������������
�*�+ ��-.������#�#��������

�������/���!�������!�����������!����
������

����������#�� ���!� ��!����!�%���!��������

$��%�0�!������+�1!�2	��"�� �$��3�����%!�

�����������������������4
����%��

����������#�� ���!�%�����������������%�

���%����������%�����������!

*�������

�����������	
���
�������

��	�����
��
��������
�

�����������
���	�����

����������

5
4



���������	
����	��������	�����

�������	��������	�	�������	����	�������	�������	�����

������� !"�	�# !$ �$	
 %&'��(
�!%#��%!)	


��*'�!"+


 %&'��	#�	" ��+	�'#	,�-%"&�	.��,%"%!)	 !$	

� %!#�! !"�	%!	 ""��$ !"�	/%#-	#-�	 )���$	

�!!' &	���,%"%!)	�& !0
�!#-&+


 %&'��	#�	� %!# %!	 	,�-%"&�	%!	 	�%#1	

.��,%"� 2&�	 !$	�� $/��#-+	"�!$%#%�!	

���-%"&�	���3&% !"��	3��,%$�$	#- #	#-�	

,�-%"&�	%.	� $�	 , %& 2&�	%!	 ""��$ !"�	/%#-	

#-�	#%��." &�.	.�#	/%#-%!	#-�	�!!' &	���,%"%!)	

�& !

�!#-&+


 %&'��	#�	"��3&�#�	4#�	����	&�,�&5	��6.	

/%#-%!	�	7'.%!�..	8 +	��	$�&%,��+	2+	#-�	

�'#-��%#+	3��,%$�$	#- #	,�-%"&�.	 ��	3��,%$�$	

���	3��	��	"-�"9.	 .	.3�"%�%�$	/%#-%!	#-�	

:' �#��&+


 %&'��	#�	"��3&+	/%#-	#-�	4��!#-&+5	."-�$'&�	

��	3& !!�$	� %!#�! !"�
�!#-&+


 %&'��	#�	 ##�!$	#�	 !	�'#-��%#+	,�-%"&�	

2�� 9$�/!	/%#-%!	�	-�'�	��	!�#%�%" #%�!	��	�	

-�'�.	.-�'&$	#-�	,�-%"&�	2�	�'#.%$�	��	#-�	

���	2�'!$ �+0

�!#-&+

�����������	
���
�������

��	�����
��
��������
�

�����������
���	�����

����������

5
5



��������

��	��

����������		�����

�����������������������������
�����������

�������� 

	�������������!����"���#�������#�$��"���%&�

'���#����������������(
����"� 

�����������	
���
�������

��	�����
��
��������
�

�����������
���	�����

����������

5
6



��������

�	���
�����	
����

�����������������������������
�����������

�������� 

�����������!��"������"�#����������������$������#��

�"��������������%���#�&��&���!!����������

��������!���������!����� $
����#� 

�����������!��"������"�#���������#�����������

&!�������������������������$
����#� 

�����������&��!��������&��������%�&�&��!�

�����%�������% ���'�&���������!�����������

���%�������#��!�%���������&!��&�%���!��&��$
����#� 

(��"������%�&�&��!�!���������#��������%����

��!������$
����#� 

	�����&��������!�&�&�)&�����������*���������

���������������#������"��&�#������"�������������

���"���������&�����������������������"�������

����"���������������&�����#��'�%���&���!����

����#� 

	�����&���������&����&�����)�	*���&&������

	&&�&�����������������������$
+������� 

	�����&�����������"��&������&����&�������,�

�#��-�����������#��������"���!��������

������������������!�� ����
����#� 

�����������	
���
�������

��	�����
��
��������
�

�����������
���	�����

����������

5
7



�����������!��"������������������-�������������

��������������������$
+������� 

���������������&������������.��#��#���������

�����&&�����
+������� 

�������������������������"�#�����)��#����#�����

!�%����%�&*����%���������.��#������� ��!��������

��������-����& &���$
+������� 

�����������!��"������������%����&��������� +������� 

�������������&!�� ��������������������������� +������� 

�����������!��"��������%������������#��

��&!�� �����������������%�������$�	����#����&�

�����&�������������%���!!��"���% ��#��

	��#���� �%������%�������"����������"�#����&$

+������� 

�������������-�������������&���������.��#�

��&��!��!��� ���������������.��#��#������

)(�&�����!��� *����&�/012
����#� 

�����������!��"�������-��&���������.��#��#��

&!������������������&��������&�����#�������

������%��$
����#� 

������������!��������������.��#�&�#��������"���

������!�����������&
����#� 

�����������!��"����&���%���&$ ����#� 

�����������&������.#����#���$���������.����

�����&���������!��������#����#������� �

�����&
����#� 

�����������	
���
�������

��	�����
��
��������
�

�����������
���	�����

����������

5
8



��������

��	����
��������

���������
�������
�������
���������


��������

���
�������� 
!���������� 
��
"�
����
��


���������
#��$
�$�
�����
������"��%
����$��

��������
�� ���� 
���
��
$�� 
��
����
#��$


�$�
 &�����������
� &�� �
����%
����$��

'������
��
��&� 
��
�������
���"� 
#��$��


�$�
�����
����
&����%
����$��

�����������	
���
�������

��	�����
��
��������
�

�����������
���	�����

����������

5
9



6
0

T
h
is

 p
a

g
e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



���������	
�

��������	


�	
��
���	�����
��

����
	�

������
����

�
	��	���

�

�����������������������������

���������������������
����������������

���������� �������������������������!����

�����"��!����������� #���������

	

$�������������������������!�����

������������������������!�����

���"������!���������������	�������
�

�������%� &����������

'

$�������������������������������

������������������������������
��������

%� ����������
 (������

)

$�������������������������"���!����

������������������������������������
�

�������%� ���������� (������

*

$���������+�����	�����������
�

�������%� �������� (������

,

-"������.�������������������

�������������������������������

����/�������������"��������� 0����

����
 ��������

1

-"������2�������(�����������

�������������������������������

����/�������������"��������� 0����

����
 ��������

3

-"������+�������������������������

��������������������������/����������

���"��������� 0��������
 ��������

61



62

This page is intentionally left blank



SUSTAINABLE GROWTH & ENVIRONMENT 
CAPITAL SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 8 

5 SEPTEMBER 2013  
 

Public Report 

 
Report of the Executive Director of                                        
 
Contact Officer(s) – Cate Harding 
Contact Details – 01733 317497 
 
COMMUNITY ASSET TRANSFER STRATEGY 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 The community asset transfer strategy will provide a necessary policy framework to guide the 

current and future processes for working with community led groups that wish to take on the 
management responsibilities of a community asset.   
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 The Committee is asked to: 
 

• scrutinise the attached draft strategy, making suggestions for how it might be improved 

• agree the draft strategy. 

• recommend the draft strategy to Cabinet for approval. 
 

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY  
 

3.1 The Community Asset Transfer Programme should contribute across the full range of 
Sustainable Community Strategy priorities.   
 
The strategy provides the framework to deliver:  
 

• sustainable neighbourhood centres 

• community empowerment approach that seeks to build the capacity of local groups 

• retaining buildings of social value that directly support the needs of local people and 
contribute to making places better for people to live and work 

 
4. BACKGROUND 

 
4.1 National Context 

§ From the 1970s there have been community economic development initiatives that 
were based on using assets as a way of meeting social and economic objectives – 
this included community centres, community gardens and city farms. 

§ Asset transfer is increasingly seen as a means of achieving a range of key 
objectives from promoting civic renewal, community cohesion, active citizenship and 
improving local public services to tackling poverty and promoting economic 
regeneration. In 2007 the Quirk Review (‘Making Assets Work: The Quirk Review of 
community management and ownership of public assets’) signalled the transfer of 
public assets to community based organisations as a mainstream activity. The 
council has, over time, transferred assets to community organisations but to date 
this has not been within an overall policy framework. Key elements of the Localism 
Act relating to the ‘Community Right to Bid’ and the ‘Right to Challenge’ are 
intrinsically linked to the intentions and principles of this strategy. 

63



Local Context  
§ The council sees community asset transfer as a positive opportunity to encourage 

and strengthen long term partnerships with the civil society sector that will contribute 
towards enhancing communities and their involvement in Peterborough. All 
successful transfers will be the beginning of long term relationships between the 
council and the successful civil society sector. 

§ The council has developed its strategic approach to asset management which 
includes community used buildings in localities. Community asset transfer offers a 
way of reconciling the consolidation of assets belonging to the council with a 
genuine community empowerment approach that seeks to build the capacity of local 
groups 

§ The council believes that through such asset transfer, local groups will be able to 
gain access to and secure other sources of additional investment 

As part Peterborough’s response to the Localism Act we aim to develop a proactive work 
programme on community asset transfer (CAT) over the next 5 years where it brings benefits 
and added value to communities, whilst contributing to the council’s aims and priorities. The key 
drivers for this approach are community empowerment and council commitment to protect 
many locally valued community based facilities through community asset transfer.  

The fast tracked implementation of the strategy is being driven by the requirement for a policy 
framework to be in place to support the current Gladstone School development.  Asset transfers 
are not new to PCC but a unique challenge has arisen with this current development which 
presents as more than one group competing to manage the community centre.  This strategy 
will provide a transparent and fair process to how community assets are assessed and 
managed 

 
5. KEY ISSUES 

 
5.1 The council wants to achieve the following outcomes through a proactive community asset 

transfer programme: 

• Community empowerment and benefits to the wider local community via capacity building 
through the use of local skills, experience, knowledge and time.  Groups will need to 
demonstrate they have the will and ability to undertake asset management responsibilities 
and outcomes will be assessed on a regular basis 

§ Retaining valued local provision, thus improving local services in times of austerity, while 
contributing to savings 

§ Delivering local services by extending the use of a building to directly address local needs 
via community led and community controlled assets 

§ Value for money and the ability to draw in other sources of funding not available to the 
council 

§ Social enterprise and social well being, including community cohesion 

§ Financial viability, long term sustainability and external investment.  Initial capital investment 
may be required to make the building fit for transfer 

§ A stimulus to partnership working by delivery of council objectives via other partners 

§ Holistic strategic framework to manage council assets 

 

 

64



 

6. IMPLICATIONS 
 

6.1 Discrimination and Equality: Equality Impact Assessment to be completed on case by case 
basis  
Property: Properties in scope to be identified and programme needs to be strongly aligned to 
the Asset Management Plan 
Procurement: Assessment to identify provider will not involve procurement process as unique 
commissioning brief will be developed on case by case basis to reflect individual needs of asset 
and the local community  
Finance: condition surveys could highlight the need for front loaded budget to enable assets to 
be fit for transfer 
Legal: suitable full repairing lease which reflects appropriate reviews and break clauses to 
protect interests of PCC and wider community 
 
The implementation of the Strategy would have implications city-wide 
 

7. CONSULTATION 
 

7.1 • A cross Directorate group have worked to develop the Strategy, ensuring a joined up 
strategic approach to community asset management. 

• Initial consultation will take place with members of Community Action Peterborough 
(CAP)who represent Community Associations across Peterborough who currently manage 
PCC Community Assets 

• Upon declaring an asset suitable for transfer, a community needs assessment would be 
expected to take place by any group expressing an interest in managing the asset. 

 
8. NEXT STEPS 

 
8.1 Refer to Cabinet for approval 

 
9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

 
9.1 N/A 

 
10. APPENDICES 

 
10.1 Appendix 1 – Community Asset Transfer Strategy 2013 – 2017  

 
 

  

65



66

This page is intentionally left blank



 

F
IN

A
L 

D
R

A
F

T
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1

 

 A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 1
  

P
E
T
E
R
B
O
R
O
U
G
H
 C
IT
Y
 C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

E
n
c
o
u
ra
g
in
g
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 

C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
 A
S
S
E
T
 T
R
A
N
S
F
E
R
 S
T
R
A
T
E
G
Y
 2
0
1
3
 –
 2
0
1
7
       

W
e
 a
re
 c
o
m
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
, 
v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
, 
fa
it
h
 g
ro
u
p
s
 a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
a
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
s
s
e
t 
tr
a
n
s
fe
r 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 i
n
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
a
t 
w
il
l 
re
s
u
lt
 i
n
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l,
 v
ib
ra
n
t 
a
n
d
 

in
c
lu
s
iv
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 a
s
s
e
ts
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm
. 
 

67



 

F
IN

A
L 

D
R

A
F

T
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
2

 

 

C
O
N
T
E
N
T
S
  

1
. 
IN
T
R
O
D
U
C
T
IO
N
, 
O
U
T
C
O
M
E
S
, 
A
IM
S
 A
N
D
 C
O
N
T
E
X
T
 

 
2
. 
W
H
A
T
 I
S
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
 A
S
S
E
T
 T
R
A
N
S
F
E
R
?
 

 
3
. 
C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
 A
S
S
E
T
 T
R
A
N
S
F
E
R
 P
O
L
IC
Y
 

 
4
. 
C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
 A
S
S
E
T
 T
R
A
N
S
F
E
R
 C
R
IT
E
R
IA
 

 
5
. 
C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
 A
S
S
E
T
 T
R
A
N
F
E
R
 P
R
O
C
E
S
S
  

A
p
p
e
n
d
ic
e
s
  

1
. 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
s
s
e
t 
T
ra
n
s
fe
r 
P
ro
c
e
s
s
 

2
. 
A
s
s
e
t 
T
ra
n
s
fe
r 
T
o
o
lk
it
 C
o
n
te
n
t 
L
is
t 

 
  

68



 

F
IN

A
L 

D
R

A
F

T
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
3

 

 1
. 
IN
T
R
O
D
U
C
T
IO
N
, 
O
U
T
C
O
M
E
S
, 
A
IM
S
 A
N
D
 C
O
N
T
E
X
T
 

1
.1
  
 I
n
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 o
w
n
e
d
 o
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 b
u
ild
in
g
s
 o
r 
la
n
d
 f
o
r 
m
a
n
y
 y
e
a
rs
. 
In
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 b
u
ild
in
g
s
 

o
w
n
e
d
 a
n
d
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 c
iv
il 
s
o
c
ie
ty
 s
e
c
to
r 
a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 b
u
ild
in
g
s
 o
w
n
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 l
e
a
s
e
d
 o
r 
lic
e
n
s
e
d
 

to
 l
o
c
a
l 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 c
o
m
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 e
x
te
n
d
in
g
 t
h
is
 m
u
c
h
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
th
ro
u
g
h
 a
 p
ro
a
c
ti
v
e
 w
o
rk
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
n
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
s
s
e
t 
tr
a
n
s
fe
r 
(C
A
T
) 
o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
5
 y
e
a
rs
 w
h
e
re
 i
t 
b
ri
n
g
s
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 a
n
d
 a
d
d
e
d
 v
a
lu
e
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
, 
w
h
ils
t 

c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 a
im
s
 a
n
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
. 
T
h
e
 k
e
y
 d
ri
v
e
rs
 f
o
r 
th
is
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 a
re
 t
h
e
 L
o
c
a
lis
m
 A
c
t 
w
h
ic
h
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
s
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 e
m
p
o
w
e
rm

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
to
 p
ro
te
c
t 
m
a
n
y
 l
o
c
a
lly
 v
a
lu
e
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 b
a
s
e
d
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
s
s
e
t 
tr
a
n
s
fe
r.
  

 
1
.2
  
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
a
n
ts
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
 p
ro
a
c
ti
v
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
s
s
e
t 
tr
a
n
s
fe
r 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
: 

§
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 e
m
p
o
w
e
rm

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w
id
e
r 
lo
c
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

§
 
C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 b
u
ild
in
g
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
lo
c
a
l 
s
k
ill
s
, 
e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
, 
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 a
n
d
 t
im
e
 

§
 
R
e
ta
in
in
g
 v
a
lu
e
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
, 
th
u
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 t
im
e
s
 o
f 
a
u
s
te
ri
ty
, 
w
h
ile
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
n
g
 t
o
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 

§
 
D
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
d
d
re
s
s
 l
o
c
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 l
e
d
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 a
s
s
e
ts
 

§
 
E
x
te
n
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
a
 b
u
ild
in
g
 o
r 
la
n
d
  

§
 
V
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 d
ra
w
 i
n
 o
th
e
r 
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
 n
o
t 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 

§
 
S
o
c
ia
l 
e
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 a
n
d
 s
o
c
ia
l 
w
e
ll 
b
e
in
g
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
o
h
e
s
io
n
 

§
 
F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
v
ia
b
ili
ty
, 
lo
n
g
 t
e
rm

 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
 

§
 
D
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
c
o
u
n
c
il 
o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 o
th
e
r 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 

§
 
A
 s
ti
m
u
lu
s
 t
o
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
o
rk
in
g
 

1
.3
  
 A
im
s
 

T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
re
c
o
g
n
is
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 e
m
p
h
a
s
is
 o
n
 l
o
c
a
lis
m
 m
e
a
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
it
 i
s
 e
v
e
n
 m
o
re
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
to
 w
o
rk
 c
lo
s
e
ly
 i
n
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 c
iv
il 
s
o
c
ie
ty
 s
e
c
to
r 
to
 h
e
lp
 u
s
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 o
f 
d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 q
u
a
lit
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
ta
c
k
lin
g
 p
o
v
e
rt
y
, 

p
ro
te
c
ti
n
g
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
in
g
 g
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
. 
O
u
r 
a
im
s
 a
re
 t
o
: 

§
 
E
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 r
e
te
n
ti
o
n
 o
f 
lo
c
a
l 
fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 u
s
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
 v
a
ri
e
ty
 o
f 
s
o
c
ia
l,
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 p
u
b
lic
 

p
u
rp
o
s
e
s
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
c
o
u
n
c
il 
fu
n
d
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu
re
 –
 o
n
 t
h
e
 b
a
s
is
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 a
re
 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
a
s
e
 f
o
r 

s
u
c
h
 a
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
is
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
lly
 v
ia
b
le
 a
n
d
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 
§
 
In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 o
f 
c
o
u
n
c
il 
o
w
n
e
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
s
s
e
ts
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

§
 
M
a
in
ta
in
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
u
b
lic
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

§
 
E
x
p
lo
re
 i
n
n
o
v
a
ti
v
e
 w
a
y
s
 o
f 
e
n
h
a
n
c
in
g
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
, 
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 b
y
 t
ra
n
s
fe
rr
in
g
 m

u
lt
ip
le
 a
s
s
e
ts
 t
o
 o
n
e
 

p
ro
v
id
e
r 
w
h
o
 c
a
n
 t
h
e
n
 d
e
liv
e
r 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 l
in
k
e
d
 t
o
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ie
s
 o
f 
s
c
a
le
 

69



 

F
IN

A
L 

D
R

A
F

T
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
4

 

 

§
 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
s
o
c
ia
l 
e
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
c
le
a
rl
y
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 t
h
e
 r
e
tu
rn
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

 
1
.4
 
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C
o
n
te
x
t 

§
 
F
ro
m
 t
h
e
 1
9
7
0
s
 t
h
e
re
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
re
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 u
s
in
g
 a
s
s
e
ts
 a
s
 a
 w
a
y
 

o
f 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 s
o
c
ia
l 
a
n
d
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 –
 t
h
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
, 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 g
a
rd
e
n
s
 a
n
d
 c
it
y
 f
a
rm

s
. 

§
 
A
s
s
e
t 
tr
a
n
s
fe
r 
is
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
ly
 s
e
e
n
 a
s
 a
 m
e
a
n
s
 o
f 
a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
k
e
y
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 f
ro
m
 p
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
 c
iv
ic
 r
e
n
e
w
a
l,
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
o
h
e
s
io
n
, 
a
c
ti
v
e
 c
it
iz
e
n
s
h
ip
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
u
b
lic
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 t
a
c
k
lin
g
 p
o
v
e
rt
y
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 

re
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
. 
In
 2
0
0
7
 t
h
e
 Q
u
ir
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 (
‘M
a
k
in
g
 A
s
s
e
ts
 W

o
rk
: 
T
h
e
 Q
u
ir
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

o
w
n
e
rs
h
ip
 o
f 
p
u
b
lic
 a
s
s
e
ts
’)
 s
ig
n
a
lle
d
 t
h
e
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
o
f 
p
u
b
lic
 a
s
s
e
ts
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
s
 a
 m
a
in
s
tr
e
a
m
 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 
T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
, 
o
v
e
r 
ti
m
e
, 
tr
a
n
s
fe
rr
e
d
 a
s
s
e
ts
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 b
u
t 
to
 d
a
te
 t
h
is
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 w
it
h
in
 a
n
 

o
v
e
ra
ll 
p
o
lic
y
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
. 
K
e
y
 e
le
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 L
o
c
a
lis
m
 A
c
t 
re
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 ‘
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 R
ig
h
t 
to
 B
id
’ 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 ‘
R
ig
h
t 
to
 

C
h
a
lle
n
g
e
’ 
a
re
 i
n
tr
in
s
ic
a
lly
 l
in
k
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 i
n
te
n
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 p
ri
n
c
ip
le
s
 o
f 
th
is
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
. 

1
.5
 
L
o
c
a
l 
C
o
n
te
x
t 
 

§
 
T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
s
e
e
s
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
s
s
e
t 
tr
a
n
s
fe
r 
a
s
 a
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 a
n
d
 s
tr
e
n
g
th
e
n
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 c
iv
il 
s
o
c
ie
ty
 s
e
c
to
r 
th
a
t 
w
ill
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 e
n
h
a
n
c
in
g
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
. 
A
ll 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
tr
a
n
s
fe
rs
 w
ill
 b
e
 t
h
e
 b
e
g
in
n
in
g
 o
f 
lo
n
g
 t
e
rm

 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
c
iv
il 
s
o
c
ie
ty
 

s
e
c
to
r.
 

§
 
T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 i
ts
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
h
ic
h
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 u
s
e
d
 b
u
ild
in
g
s
 i
n
 

lo
c
a
lit
ie
s
. 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
s
s
e
t 
tr
a
n
s
fe
r 
o
ff
e
rs
 a
 w
a
y
 o
f 
re
c
o
n
c
ili
n
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
o
lid
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
s
s
e
ts
 b
e
lo
n
g
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
it
h
 a
 

g
e
n
u
in
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 e
m
p
o
w
e
rm

e
n
t 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
h
a
t 
s
e
e
k
s
 t
o
 b
u
ild
 t
h
e
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 o
f 
lo
c
a
l 
g
ro
u
p
s
 

§
 
T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
b
e
lie
v
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
ro
u
g
h
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
s
e
t 
tr
a
n
s
fe
r,
 l
o
c
a
l 
g
ro
u
p
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 g
a
in
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a
n
d
 s
e
c
u
re
 o
th
e
r 

s
o
u
rc
e
s
 o
f 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

 
1
.6
 R
a
ti
o
n
a
li
s
a
ti
o
n
  

§
 

T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 l
im
it
 i
t’
s
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
lia
b
ili
ti
e
s
 a
ro
u
n
d
 a
s
s
e
ts
. 

2
. 
W
H
A
T
 I
S
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
 A
S
S
E
T
 T
R
A
N
S
F
E
R
 (
C
A
T
)?
  

§
 
T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
o
w
n
s
 a
n
d
 m
a
n
a
g
e
s
 a
 w
id
e
 v
a
ri
e
ty
 o
f 
p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 a
s
s
e
ts
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 l
a
n
d
 a
n
d
 b
u
ild
in
g
s
. 
 F
o
r 
th
e
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
is
 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
, 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
d
e
fi
n
e
s
 a
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
s
s
e
t 
a
s
 a
 b
u
ild
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
re
e
h
o
ld
 o
w
n
e
rs
h
ip
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
th
a
t 
h
a
s
 a
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

u
s
e
 a
n
d
 f
ro
m
 w
h
ic
h
 a
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 b
a
s
e
d
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 o
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
. 
A
s
s
e
t 
tr
a
n
s
fe
r 
m
e
a
n
s
 m
o
v
in
g
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 f
o
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 r
u
n
n
in
g
 o
f 
a
s
s
e
ts
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
to
 a
 c
iv
il 
s
o
c
ie
ty
 s
e
c
to
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
is
 a
ls
o
 h
a
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
o
f 

70



 

F
IN

A
L 

D
R

A
F

T
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
5

 

 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
k
e
y
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 f
ro
m
 p
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
 c
iv
ic
 r
e
n
e
w
a
l,
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
o
h
e
s
io
n
, 
a
c
ti
v
e
 c
it
iz
e
n
s
h
ip
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 

lo
c
a
l 
p
u
b
lic
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 t
a
c
k
lin
g
 p
o
v
e
rt
y
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 r
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
. 
 

§
 
T
h
e
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
A
T
 r
e
la
te
s
 p
ri
m
a
ri
ly
 t
o
 l
o
n
g
 l
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 c
iv
il 
s
o
c
ie
ty
 s
e
c
to
r 
a
n
d
 

c
o
v
e
rs
 b
u
ild
in
g
s
 o
w
n
e
d
 b
y
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il.
 T
h
e
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 
tr
a
n
s
fe
r 
to
 a
n
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 n
e
g
o
ti
a
te
d
 o
n
 a
 c
a
s
e
 

b
y
 c
a
s
e
 b
a
s
is
. 
T
h
is
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
p
p
lie
s
 t
o
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
o
w
n
e
d
 a
s
s
e
ts
 w
h
e
re
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 b
a
s
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
re
 o
ff
e
re
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
o
f 
lo
c
a
l 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 (
e
.g
. 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
, 
y
o
u
th
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
 a
n
d
 c
h
ild
re
n
’s
/p
la
y
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
).
 T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 n
o
t 

c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
tr
a
n
s
fe
r 
w
it
h
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
to
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 (
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
fr
e
e
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
),
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
m
e
n
ts
, 

s
h
e
lt
e
re
d
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 f
ro
m
 w
h
ic
h
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
ru
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 n
o
t 
d
e
e
m
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
s
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 f
o
r 
tr
a
n
s
fe
r.
 T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 n
o
t 
tr
a
n
s
fe
r 
p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 t
o
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 s
o
le
ly
 f
o
r 
re
lig
io
u
s
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
. 
T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 

a
ls
o
 r
e
ta
in
s
 t
h
e
 r
ig
h
t 
n
o
t 
to
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
a
s
s
e
ts
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 h
a
v
in
g
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
a
p
it
a
l 
re
c
e
ip
t.
 

§
 
T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
re
c
o
g
n
is
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
in
 s
o
m
e
 c
a
s
e
s
, 
b
u
ild
in
g
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
C
A
T
 m

a
y
 n
o
t 
b
e
 v
a
c
a
n
t 
a
n
d
 a
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
m
a
y
 t
a
k
e
 

p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 a
 s
it
ti
n
g
 t
e
n
a
n
t.
 I
n
 s
u
c
h
 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
s
 d
e
ta
ils
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 o
n
 a
n
 a
s
s
e
t 
b
y
 a
s
s
e
t 
b
a
s
is
 i
n
 l
ia
is
o
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

te
n
a
n
ts
, 
re
le
v
a
n
t 
c
o
u
n
c
il 
d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 (
w
h
e
re
 a
p
p
lic
a
b
le
).
 F
u
rt
h
e
rm

o
re
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
te
re
s
te
d
 i
n
 

tr
a
n
s
fe
rr
in
g
 t
h
e
 f
re
e
h
o
ld
 o
f 
a
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 b
y
 a
n
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 o
n
 a
 c
a
s
e
 b
y
 c
a
s
e
 b
a
s
is
. 

3
. 
C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
 A
S
S
E
T
 T
R
A
N
S
F
E
R
 S
T
R
A
T
E
G
Y
 

O
u
r 
p
o
lic
y
 i
s
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 o
u
r 
c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
to
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 e
m
p
o
w
e
rm

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 o
f 
a
 

th
ri
v
in
g
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r.
 T
h
is
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 s
e
ts
 o
u
t 
th
e
 p
ri
n
c
ip
le
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 w
e
 w
ill
 u
s
e
 t
o
 m
a
n
a
g
e
 

a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
o
f 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 b
a
s
e
d
 b
u
ild
in
g
s
 t
o
 a
n
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 c
iv
il 
s
o
c
ie
ty
 s
e
c
to
r,
 i
n
 a
 w
a
y
 t
h
a
t 
a
ls
o
 

c
o
m
p
lie
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
, 
A
s
s
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
re
le
v
a
n
t 
c
o
u
n
c
il 
p
o
lic
ie
s
. 
 T
h
e
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
s
s
e
t 
T
ra
n
s
fe
r 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 i
s
 a
c
c
o
m
p
a
n
ie
d
 b
y
 a
 t
o
o
lk
it
, 
w
h
ic
h
 s
ig
n
p
o
s
ts
 t
o
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 a
n
d
 p
ra
c
ti
c
a
l 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
ill
 e
n
a
b
le
 a
p
p
lic
a
n
ts
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 a
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
. 
  

 T
h
is
 p
o
lic
y
 w
ill
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
re
le
v
a
n
t 
le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
re
la
te
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
o
f 
b
u
ild
in
g
s
 a
t 
le
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 m
a
rk
e
t 
v
a
lu
e
, 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
h
e
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
is
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 t
h
e
 “
p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 o
r 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t”
 o
f 
th
e
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
, 
s
o
c
ia
l 
o
r 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
w
e
ll-

b
e
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 a
re
a
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 m

a
rk
e
t 
v
a
lu
e
 a
n
d
 a
c
tu
a
l 
p
ri
c
e
 p
a
id
 i
s
 l
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 £
2
 m

ill
io
n
 (
If
 t
h
e
 d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
 i
s
 

m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 £
2
m
ill
io
n
 t
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
w
ill
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 m

in
is
te
ri
a
l 
a
p
p
ro
v
a
l)
. 
T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 d
is
p
o
s
a
ls
 p
o
lic
y
 r
e
fl
e
c
ts
 t
h
is
 l
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 a
ll 
tr
a
n
s
fe
rs
 w
ill
 u
lt
im
a
te
ly
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 C
a
b
in
e
t.
  

 W
e
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
s
s
e
t 
tr
a
n
s
fe
r 
c
o
m
e
s
 w
it
h
 r
is
k
s
 a
n
d
 l
ia
b
ili
ti
e
s
 t
o
 b
o
th
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 t
h
e
 c
iv
il 
s
o
c
ie
ty
 

s
e
c
to
r.
 T
h
e
re
fo
re
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 m
u
s
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
 a
 r
o
b
u
s
t 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 m
a
n
a
g
e
 r
is
k
s
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 
p
a
rt
ie
s
 c
a
n
 m
a
k
e
 

71



 

F
IN

A
L 

D
R

A
F

T
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
6

 

 

in
fo
rm

e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
. 
W
e
 w
a
n
t 
to
 h
a
v
e
 a
 t
ra
n
s
p
a
re
n
t 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
o
f 
a
s
s
e
ts
 a
n
d
 o
u
r 
p
o
lic
y
 i
s
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

fo
llo
w
in
g
 p
ri
n
c
ip
le
s
:  

 
§
 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
, 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 a
 s
m
a
ll 
te
a
m
 t
o
 o
v
e
rs
e
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

§
 
T
ra
n
s
p
a
re
n
c
y
 i
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
, 
ti
m
e
s
c
a
le
s
 a
n
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
in
g
 (
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
) 

§
 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 c
iv
il 
s
o
c
ie
ty
 s
e
c
to
r 
a
n
d
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
c
o
lla
b
o
ra
ti
o
n
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 g
ro
u
p
s
 

§
 
In
c
lu
s
iv
it
y
 o
f 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 a
s
s
e
ts
 r
e
m
a
in
 g
e
n
u
in
e
ly
 o
p
e
n
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 a
ll 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

ir
re
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 f
a
it
h
, 
c
u
lt
u
re
, 
g
e
n
d
e
r,
 s
e
x
u
a
lit
y
 o
r 
re
lig
io
n
 

§
 
D
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 c
le
a
r 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
, 
ro
b
u
s
t 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 p
la
n
s
 a
n
d
 s
o
u
n
d
, 
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 b
a
s
e
d
 r
a
ti
o
n
a
le
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

tr
a
n
s
fe
r 
o
f 
a
s
s
e
ts
 –
 e
a
c
h
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w
ill
 b
e
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
m
e
ri
ts
 

§
 
A
n
y
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
o
f 
a
s
s
e
t 
m
u
s
t 
p
ro
m
o
te
 s
o
c
ia
l,
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 o
r 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
w
e
ll 
b
e
in
g
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 a
im
s
 a
n
d
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 

§
 
A
s
s
e
t 
tr
a
n
s
fe
r 
w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
 e
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
b
y
 t
h
e
 c
iv
il 
s
o
c
ie
ty
 s
e
c
to
r 
b
a
s
e
d
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
a
g
re
e
d
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 t
o
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le
 

§
 
P
ro
a
c
ti
v
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 g
iv
e
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
o
-l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 d
u
e
l 
u
s
e
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
 

§
 
T
ra
n
s
fe
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
b
e
 m
a
d
e
 o
n
 a
 ‘
fi
rs
t 
c
o
m
e
 f
ir
s
t 
s
e
rv
e
d
’ 
b
a
s
is
 b
u
t 
o
n
 a
 ‘
b
e
s
t 
fi
t’
 b
a
s
is
 

§
 
A
n
 ‘
a
s
s
e
t 
lo
c
k
’ 
w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 
a
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 b
u
ild
in
g
 r
e
m
a
in
s
 f
o
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
a
n
d
 

u
s
e
. 
 

§
 
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
d
is
p
o
s
a
ls
 b
y
 n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 m

e
a
n
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 n
o
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
v
o
k
e
 t
h
e
 e
x
te
n
s
iv
e
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

“C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 R
ig
h
t 
to
 B
id
” 
le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 

§
 
D
is
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
t 
le
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 b
e
s
t 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 f
o
llo
w
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
, 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 R
o
y
a
l 
In
s
ti
tu
te
 

o
f 
C
h
a
rt
e
re
d
 S
u
rv
e
y
o
rs
 (
R
IC
S
) 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
“L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 A
s
s
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
B
e
s
t 
P
ra
c
ti
c
e
” 
a
n
d
 s
ta
te
 t
h
e
 b
e
s
t 

c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
w
o
u
ld
 o
th
e
rw
is
e
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 

 
4
. 
C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
 A
S
S
E
T
 T
R
A
N
S
F
E
R
 C
R
IT
E
R
IA
  

In
 t
h
e
 i
n
te
re
s
t 
o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 a
 v
ib
ra
n
t 
lo
c
a
l 
c
iv
il 
s
o
c
ie
ty
 s
e
c
to
r,
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
n
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 t
h
e
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
o
f 
a
s
s
e
ts
 t
o
 

lo
c
a
l 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
T
h
e
re
fo
re
, 
it
 i
s
 u
n
lik
e
ly
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
o
f 
a
s
s
e
ts
 t
o
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
h
o
s
e
 r
e
m
it
 i
s
 

re
g
io
n
a
l 
o
r 
n
a
ti
o
n
w
id
e
. 
T
h
e
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 a
 g
e
o
g
ra
p
h
ic
a
l 
a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 b
a
s
e
d
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 w
it
h
in
 

a
n
 a
re
a
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
th
a
t 
a
re
a
. 
T
h
e
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
o
f 
a
s
s
e
ts
 m
a
y
 b
e
 t
o
 e
it
h
e
r 
lo
n
g
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
, 
s
ta
b
le
 a
n
d
 s
e
c
u
re
 f
o
rm

a
l 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
r 
n
e
w
ly
 f
o
rm

e
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 b
a
s
e
d
 g
ro
u
p
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
h
e
y
 c
a
n
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 t
h
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 e
x
p
e
rt
is
e
 

a
n
d
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 m
a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 a
s
s
e
t.
  

   

72



 

F
IN

A
L 

D
R

A
F

T
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
7

 

 

 T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
tr
a
n
s
fe
rr
in
g
 a
s
s
e
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
: 

§
 
T
h
e
y
 m

u
s
t 
b
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 o
w
n
e
rs
h
ip
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 

§
 
T
h
e
y
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 b
a
s
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
b
le
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 a
s
s
e
t 
a
n
d
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
  

§
 
T
h
e
y
 a
re
 a
s
s
e
ts
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
, 
o
r 
a
s
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
lly
 s
u
rp
lu
s
 o
r 
w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 c
le
a
r 

ra
ti
o
n
a
le
 f
o
r 
th
e
 r
e
te
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 d
u
e
 t
o
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
, 
c
o
n
d
it
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 b
u
ild
in
g
 o
r 
lo
w
 l
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
u
s
a
g
e
 

T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 n
o
t 
c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
tr
a
n
s
fe
r 
in
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
: 

 §
 
A
s
s
e
ts
 w
h
ic
h
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
te
 f
ix
e
d
 o
r 
c
o
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
e
.g
. 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
, 
s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
m
e
n
ts
, 
s
h
e
lt
e
re
d
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

e
tc
 -
 t
h
is
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
 e
x
h
a
u
s
ti
v
e
 l
is
t)
 

§
 
A
s
s
e
ts
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 h
a
v
in
g
 a
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
a
p
it
a
l 
re
c
e
ip
t,
 o
r 
w
h
e
re
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 

re
v
e
n
u
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 l
o
s
t 

§
 
A
s
s
e
ts
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 b
e
in
g
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
o
r 
s
tr
a
te
g
ic
, 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 o
r 
re
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t/
re
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 

§
 
T
ra
n
s
fe
rs
 t
o
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 o
r 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 p
u
re
ly
 a
s
 a
 v
e
h
ic
le
 f
o
r 
c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
v
e
n
tu
re
s
 

§
 
T
ra
n
s
fe
rs
 t
o
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 

§
 
W
h
e
re
 t
ra
n
s
fe
rs
 c
o
n
tr
a
v
e
n
e
 S
ta
te
 A
id
 o
r 
p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
ru
le
s
 

§
 
A
s
s
e
ts
 w
h
ic
h
 m
a
y
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 s
o
le
ly
 f
o
r 
re
lig
io
u
s
 o
r 
p
o
lit
ic
a
l 
p
u
rp
o
s
e
s
/a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
. 

 
T
h
e
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 i
s
 s
tr
ic
t;
 t
h
is
 i
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
y
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
tr
a
n
s
fe
r 
is
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
, 
w
ill
 b
e
 o
f 
b
e
n
e
fi
t 
to
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
s
 w
e
ll 

a
s
 t
h
e
 c
iv
il 
s
o
c
ie
ty
 s
e
c
to
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 i
n
s
ti
l 
lo
n
g
 t
e
rm

 r
e
a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 w
h
ic
h
 i
t 
s
e
rv
e
s
. 

 
T
h
e
 f
in
a
l 
d
e
c
is
io
n
 o
n
 a
n
y
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
a
c
h
e
d
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 c
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
p
p
ro
v
a
ls
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 b
y
 d
e
le
g
a
te
d
 

o
ff
ic
e
rs
 u
n
le
s
s
 t
h
e
 v
a
lu
e
 o
f 
th
e
 a
s
s
e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
s
 £
5
0
0
,0
0
0
.0
0
. 
 I
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 i
n
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 a
 C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
rs
 D
e
c
is
io
n
 N
o
ti
c
e
 (
C
M
D
N
) 

w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 
  

 
4
.1
  
 W
h
o
 c
a
n
 a
p
p
ly
?
 

C
iv
il 
s
o
c
ie
ty
 S
e
c
to
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
h
o
 c
a
n
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
: 

§
 
A
re
 a
n
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 b
o
d
y
 w
o
rk
in
g
 t
o
 c
h
a
ri
ta
b
le
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 w
it
h
 s
tr
o
n
g
 a
n
d
 o
p
e
n
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

§
 
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 r
e
s
tr
ic
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 M
e
m
o
ra
n
d
u
m
 a
n
d
 A
rt
ic
le
s
 o
f 
A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
 l
im
it
in
g
 t
h
e
 b
o
d
y
 f
ro
m
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
 a
s
s
e
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
  
 

§
 
H
a
v
e
 a
 t
ra
c
k
 r
e
c
o
rd
 o
f 
s
tr
o
n
g
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
a
n
d
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
le
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

73



 

F
IN

A
L 

D
R

A
F

T
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
8

 

 

§
 
A
re
 n
o
n
 p
ro
fi
t 
m
a
k
in
g
 a
n
d
 e
x
is
t 
fo
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
/ 
s
o
c
ia
l/
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l/
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 b
e
n
e
fi
t,
 w
h
ils
t 
re
c
o
g
n
is
in
g
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 m

a
y
 

h
a
v
e
 a
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 e
le
m
e
n
t 
to
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
y
 o
p
e
ra
te
, 
s
u
c
h
 a
s
 a
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
a
fé
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
is
 t
y
p
e
 o
f 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

g
a
in
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
b
e
 t
h
e
 m
a
in
 d
ri
v
e
r 
a
n
d
 i
t 
w
ill
 n
o
t 
d
is
tr
ib
u
te
 a
n
y
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
s
u
rp
lu
s
 t
o
 o
w
n
e
rs
 o
r 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 b
u
t 
a
p
p
ly
 i
t 
to
 s
e
rv
in
g
 

it
s
 c
o
re
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
im
s
 a
n
d
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 

§
 
A
re
 o
p
e
n
 t
o
 a
n
d
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 a
n
 i
n
c
lu
s
iv
e
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 w
id
e
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

  
 

4
.2
 
C
ri
te
ri
a
 

 
A
n
y
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
 s
ta
g
e
d
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
, 
s
ta
rt
in
g
 w
it
h
 a
n
 e
x
p
re
s
s
io
n
 o
f 
in
te
re
s
t.
 F
o
llo
w
in
g
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
is
, 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
v
it
e
d
 t
o
 s
u
b
m
it
 a
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
. 
(M

o
re
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 A
s
s
e
t 

T
ra
n
s
fe
r 
T
o
o
lk
it
, 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 a
n
d
 a
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2
).
 A
p
p
lic
a
n
ts
 m
u
s
t 
d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
y
 m

e
e
t 
th
e
 

fo
llo
w
in
g
 c
ri
te
ri
a
: 

§
 
C
le
a
r 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il,
 i
ts
 a
im
s
 a
n
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
, 
th
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 b
a
s
e
d
 g
ro
u
p
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 w
id
e
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 j
u
s
ti
fy
 t
h
e
 

s
u
b
s
id
is
e
d
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 

§
 

D
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 t
h
a
t 
it
 w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 b
a
s
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s

 

§
 

D
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 s
tr
o
n
g
 a
n
d
 r
o
b
u
s
t 
g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 (
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 h
o
w
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 d
e
c
is
io
n
  

m
a
k
in
g
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 b
u
ild
in
g
 a
n
d
 i
ts
 u
s
e
) 
a
n
d
 m

u
s
t 
m
e
e
t,
 o
r 
b
e
 p
re
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 
w
it
h
in
 t
w
o
 y
e
a
rs
, 
‘p
re
-V
is
ib
le
’ 
 

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 1
. 
(A
s
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 R
is
k
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
m
o
d
e
ls
 i
f 
y
o
u
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 a
c
c
re
d
it
e
d
 

b
y
/w
o
rk
in
g
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 a
n
o
th
e
r 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 t
h
e
n
 t
h
is
 m
u
s
t 
b
e
 m

a
d
e
 c
le
a
r 
w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 i
n
it
ia
l 
e
x
p
re
s
s
io
n
 o
f 
in
te
re
s
t)
 

§
 
E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
a
 t
ra
c
k
 r
e
c
o
rd
 i
n
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
/o
r 
m
a
n
a
g
in
g
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 (
if
 a
 n
e
w
 g
ro
u
p
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
is
 t
ra
c
k
 r
e
c
o
rd
 

lin
k
e
d
 t
o
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
c
o
m
m
it
te
e
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
/o
r 
s
ta
ff
) 
 

§
 
H
a
v
e
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 a
 r
o
b
u
s
t 
a
n
d
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 p
la
n
, 
fo
r 
a
 5
 y
e
a
r 
p
e
ri
o
d
 (
3
 y
e
a
rs
 i
n
 d
e
ta
il,
 2
 i
n
 o
u
tl
in
e
) 
o
r 
s
h
o
w
 t
h
e
 

w
ill
in
g
n
e
s
s
 t
o
 c
re
a
te
 a
n
 a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
 p
la
n
 w
it
h
in
 a
 s
p
e
c
if
ie
d
 t
im
e
 f
ra
m
e
 b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 b
u
ild
in
g
 i
s
 t
ra
n
s
fe
rr
e
d
. 
T
h
is
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

p
la
n
 w
ill
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
: 

§
 
D
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 a
 r
e
a
lis
ti
c
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 m
a
n
a
g
in
g
 a
n
d
 r
u
n
n
in
g
 t
h
e
 f
a
c
ili
ty
  

§
 
Id
e
n
ti
fy
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
 o
f 
fi
n
a
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
a
s
s
e
t 
tr
a
n
s
fe
r 
w
ill
 r
e
le
a
s
e
 o
r 
a
tt
ra
c
t,
 f
u
tu
re
 i
n
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
in
 a
n
d
 m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

a
s
s
e
t 

§
 
In
c
lu
d
e
 a
 n
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
1
 V

IS
IB

LE
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s™

 i
s 

th
e

 q
u

a
li

ty
 s

y
st

e
m

s 
a

n
d

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s 
fo

r 
th

e
 c

h
a

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 s

e
ct

o
r.

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 b
y

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 M
a

tt
e

rs
 i

n
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 i

ts
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 

a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
co

re
 s

ta
k

e
h

o
ld

e
rs

, 
V

IS
IB

LE
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s™

 i
s 

a
 u

n
iq

u
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 q

u
a

li
ty

 a
n

d
 b

e
st

 p
ra

ct
ic

e
 i

n
 t

h
e

 c
h

a
ri

ty
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 s
e

ct
o

r 

74



 

F
IN

A
L 

D
R

A
F

T
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
9

 

 

§
 
D
e
s
c
ri
b
e
 t
h
e
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 s
o
c
ia
l,
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 a
n
d
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 t
o
 r
e
s
u
lt
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 a
s
s
e
t 
tr
a
n
s
fe
r 

a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
s
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 

§
 
Id
e
n
ti
fy
 l
ia
b
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
s
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
 

§
 
P
ro
v
id
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 c
a
p
a
b
ili
ty
 a
n
d
 s
k
ill
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 b
a
s
e
d
 g
ro
u
p
 t
o
 m
a
n
a
g
e
, 
re
p
a
ir
 a
n
d
 m
a
in
ta
in
, 

in
s
u
re
 a
n
d
 s
u
s
ta
in
 t
h
e
 a
s
s
e
t 
tr
a
n
s
fe
r 
(a
n
d
/o
r 
a
n
y
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
/s
k
ill
s
 b
u
ild
in
g
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
),
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 

b
u
ild
in
g
 p
la
n
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 

§
 
O
u
tl
in
e
 h
o
w
 m

u
c
h
 s
p
a
c
e
 i
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a
n
d
 i
ts
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
u
s
a
g
e
, 
h
o
w
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 `
jo
in
e
d
 u
p
’ 
w
it
h
 

th
o
s
e
 o
f 
o
th
e
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 m
a
x
im
is
e
 t
h
e
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
u
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 a
s
s
e
t 
b
y
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 n
e
w
 a
n
d
 i
n
n
o
v
a
ti
v
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 

w
h
ic
h
 m

a
y
 b
e
 l
in
k
e
d
 t
o
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
o
u
n
c
il 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
  

§
 
P
ro
v
id
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 l
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
g
u
la
to
ry
 c
o
n
tr
o
ls
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 l
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
, 
c
h
ild
 a
n
d
 

v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 a
d
u
lt
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
, 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
ty
, 
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p
la
n
s
 f
o
r 
re
g
u
la
r 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 

§
 
In
c
lu
d
e
 a
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 w

h
ic
h
 c
le
a
rl
y
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
s
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
te
c
h
n
iq
u
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 u
ti
lis
e
d
 t
o
 

e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

 A
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 p
la
n
 c
h
e
c
k
lis
t 
is
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 A
s
s
e
t 
T
ra
n
s
fe
r 
T
o
o
lk
it
, 
to
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 l
in
k
s
 t
o
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
h
o
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
is
t 
w
it
h
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
. 
 

 4
.3
  
 R
is
k
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 
It
 i
s
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 a
re
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
ri
s
k
s
 w
h
ic
h
 m

a
y
 a
ri
s
e
 f
ro
m
 a
s
s
e
t 
tr
a
n
s
fe
r.
 T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 m
u
s
t 
s
h
o
w
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 g
ro
u
p
 

h
a
s
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 r
is
k
s
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
y
 w
ill
 b
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
: 
  

§
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
o
h
e
s
io
n
 

§
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
lo
s
s
 o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
r 
fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 

§
 
C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 o
f 
re
c
ip
ie
n
t 
to
 d
e
liv
e
r 
p
ro
m
is
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
/o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

§
 
C
o
n
tr
o
l 
o
f 
a
s
s
e
t 
b
y
 u
n
re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 m

in
o
ri
ty
 

§
 
C
o
n
fl
ic
t 
w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 
le
g
a
l,
 r
e
g
u
la
to
ry
 c
o
n
s
tr
a
in
ts
 

§
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
o
n
g
o
in
g
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
lia
b
ili
ty
 

§
 
F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
  

§
 
L
a
c
k
 o
f 
v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y
 

§
 
C
o
n
fl
ic
t 
w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 
fu
n
d
e
rs
 

§
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
u
n
fa
ir
 a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
 f
o
r 
o
n
e
 g
ro
u
p
 o
v
e
r 
a
n
o
th
e
r 

 
R
is
k
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
llo
c
a
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
(s
) 
b
e
s
t 
e
q
u
ip
p
e
d
 t
o
 m
a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
m
. 
D
e
liv
e
ry
 t
e
rm

s
 a
n
d
 r
is
k
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n
a
tu
re
 a
n
d
 v
a
lu
e
 o
f 
th
e
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r.
 

75



 

F
IN

A
L 

D
R

A
F

T
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1

0
 

 4
.4
  
 B
a
s
is
 f
o
r 
th
e
 A
s
s
e
t 
T
ra
n
s
fe
r 
 

§
 
L
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 l
e
a
s
e
  

§
 
T
h
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 
u
p
k
e
e
p
, 
ru
n
n
in
g
 c
o
s
ts
, 
re
p
a
ir
s
 a
n
d
 m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
, 
c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 

s
ta
tu
to
ry
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
, 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
ty
 r
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 

§
 
T
h
e
 a
s
s
e
t 
w
ill
 r
e
v
e
rt
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
in
 c
a
s
e
s
 o
f 
b
a
n
k
ru
p
tc
y
, 
c
o
rr
u
p
ti
o
n
, 
n
o
n
 p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
re
n
t,
 n
o
n
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 

a
 b
re
a
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
f 
th
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 w
a
n
ts
 t
o
 r
e
tu
rn
 t
h
e
 a
s
s
e
t 
–
 i
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 c
a
s
e
s
, 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 

re
s
e
rv
e
 i
ts
 r
ig
h
t 
to
 d
is
p
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 a
s
s
e
t 
in
 t
h
e
 o
p
e
n
 m
a
rk
e
t.
  

§
 
T
h
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 c
a
n
n
o
t 
tr
a
n
s
fe
r 
th
e
 a
s
s
e
t 
o
n
 t
o
 a
 t
h
ir
d
 p
a
rt
y
 

   
6
. 
C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
 A
S
S
E
T
 T
R
A
N
S
F
E
R
 P
R
O
C
E
S
S
 

 
A
n
y
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
s
s
e
t 
tr
a
n
s
fe
r 
(C
A
T
) 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 w
o
rk
s
 b
e
s
t 
w
h
e
n
 a
ll 
p
a
rt
ie
s
 a
re
 o
p
e
n
, 
fl
e
x
ib
le
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
. 
T
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 

it
s
e
lf
 i
s
 a
b
o
u
t 
b
e
in
g
 o
f 
m
u
tu
a
l 
b
e
n
e
fi
t 
to
 a
ll 
p
a
rt
ie
s
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 m
a
in
 a
im
 i
s
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 a
 j
o
in
t 
in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
in
 a
 g
o
a
l 
th
a
t 
is
 

s
h
a
re
d
. 
If
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
n
y
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
 a
p
p
ly
in
g
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 d
o
e
s
n
’t
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
, 
th
e
n
 s
e
e
k
in
g
 c
la
ri
ty
 a
t 
a
n
 

e
a
rl
y
 s
ta
g
e
 i
s
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 m
a
y
 b
e
 i
n
it
ia
te
d
 i
n
 t
w
o
 w
a
y
s
: 
 

§
 
B
y
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
id
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
 a
s
s
e
ts
 a
s
 b
e
in
g
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 t
o
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r,
 i
n
 w
h
ic
h
 c
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 i
n
v
it
e
 c
iv
il 
s
o
c
ie
ty
 s
e
c
to
r 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 s
u
b
m
it
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
. 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 a
 p
ro
p
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
a
s
s
e
ts
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 P
C
C
 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
 a
n
d
 a
n
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
th
a
t 
th
e
y
 a
re
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 f
o
r 
tr
a
n
s
fe
r.
 

§
 
B
y
 a
 c
iv
il 
s
o
c
ie
ty
 s
e
c
to
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
it
h
 a
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l,
 i
n
 w
h
ic
h
 c
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 

in
it
ia
l 
re
q
u
e
s
t 
to
 d
e
te
rm

in
e
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
th
e
 a
s
s
e
t 
is
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 f
o
r 
tr
a
n
s
fe
r.
 S
h
o
u
ld
 t
h
e
 a
s
s
e
t 
b
e
 d
e
e
m
e
d
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 t
o
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r,
 i
t 

w
ill
 b
e
 p
ro
m
o
te
d
 a
s
 b
e
in
g
 s
o
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 a
n
 o
p
e
n
 a
n
d
 t
ra
n
s
p
a
re
n
t 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 
 

          

76



 

F
IN

A
L 

D
R

A
F

T
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1

1
 

 

 
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2
: 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
s
s
e
t 
T
ra
n
s
fe
r 
M
a
n
a
g
in
g
 R
is
k
s
 T
o
o
lk
it
  

C
o
n
te
n
t 
lis
t:
 

•
 
F
A
Q
 

•
 
G
u
id
a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
s
u
b
m
it
ti
n
g
 a
n
 E
x
p
re
s
s
io
n
 o
f 
In
te
re
s
t 

•
 
S
c
o
ri
n
g
  
&
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 f
o
r 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
(D
u
e
 d
ili
g
e
n
c
e
) 

•
 
E
x
p
e
c
ta
ti
o
n
s
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 

•
 
H
e
a
d
s
 o
f 
T
e
rm

s
 

•
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 

•
 
A
s
s
e
t 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 P
a
c
k
 

•
 
P
ro
v
is
io
n
 f
o
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 g
ro
u
p
 H
e
a
lt
h
 C
h
e
c
k
 a
n
d
 A
s
s
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
T
ra
in
in
g
 

•
 
A
s
s
e
t 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 p
a
c
k
: 

o
 
S
a
m
p
le
 F
u
ll 
R
e
p
a
ir
in
g
 L
e
a
s
e
 T
e
rm

s
 

o
 
C
o
n
d
it
io
n
 S
u
rv
e
y
 &
 A
s
b
e
s
to
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

o
 
S
it
e
, 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 &
 F
lo
o
r 
P
la
n
s
 

o
 
E
n
e
rg
y
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 C
e
rt
if
ic
a
te
 (
E
P
C
) 

o
 
U
ti
lit
y
 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 a
n
d
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 c
o
s
ts
 

o
 
V
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
in
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
s
 

o
 
L
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
s
e
c
u
ri
ty
  

o
 
C
le
a
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
tu
a
l 
o
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
s
  

o
 
P
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 f
o
r 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 t
e
s
ti
n
g
 

o
 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 r
a
te
s
  

o
 
In
v
e
n
to
ry
 

 N
o
te
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 b
ri
e
f 
w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 c
e
n
tr
e
 w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
s
s
e
t 
tr
a
n
s
fe
r 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 t
ri
g
g
e
re
d
  

       

77



 

F
IN

A
L 

D
R

A
F

T
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1

2
 

 

 
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
: 
  

K
e
y
 S
ta
g
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
s
s
e
t 
T
ra
n
s
fe
r 
P
ro
c
e
s
s
 

    

 

A
ss
e
t 
d
e
c
la
re
d
 s
u
rp
lu
s/
 a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 b
y
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il
 

in
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 A
ss
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
  

E
x
p
re
ss
io
n
s 
o
f 
in
te
re
st
 –
 a
ss
e
t 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

p
a
c
k
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 i
n
te
re
st
e
d
 p
a
rt
y
 

A
ss
e
ss
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
su
it
a
b
il
it
y
 o
f 
a
ss
e
t 
fo
r 

tr
a
n
sf
e
r 
(F
re
e
e
h
o
ld
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s 

a
ss
e
ss
e
d
 u
n
d
e
r 
d
if
fe
re
n
t 
p
ro
c
e
ss
) 

A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 

N
o
t 
a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
  
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 A
ss
e
t 
T
ra
n
sf
e
r 
  

C
o
u
n
c
il
 p
ro
m
o
te
s 
th
e
 f
a
c
t 
th
a
t 
it
 i
s 
se
e
k
in
g
 

e
x
p
re
ss
io
n
s 
o
f 
in
te
re
st
 f
o
r 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
ss
e
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 

tr
a
n
sf
e
rr
e
d
  
 

D
e
ta
il
e
d
 a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 

(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 f
u
ll
 b
u
si
n
e
ss
 p
la
n
) 
  

E
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
ll
 p
ro
p
o
sa
ls
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 m

a
k
e
rs
 (
C
M
D
N
) 

S
p
e
c
u
la
ti
v
e
 e
x
p
re
ss
io
n
 o
f 
in
te
re
st
  
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 p
ro
m
o
te
s 
th
e
 f
a
c
t 
th
a
t 
it
 i
s 

se
e
k
in
g
 e
x
p
re
ss
io
n
s 
o
f 
in
te
re
st
 f
o
r 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
ss
e
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 t
ra
n
sf
e
rr
e
d
  

 

1
 m

o
n

th
 

3
 -

 6
 

m
o

n
th

s 

2
 m

o
n

th
s 

T
h

e
 l

e
n

g
th

 o
f 

th
is

 f
in

a
l 

st
a

g
e

 

w
il

l 
v

a
ry

 f
o

r 

e
a

ch
 t

ra
n

sf
e

r 

E
st

im
a

te
d

 

ti
m

e
 f

ra
m

e
  
 

1
 m

o
n

th
 

78



SUSTAINABLE GROWTH AND ENVIRONMENT 
CAPITAL SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 9 

5 SEPTEMBER 2013  
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Head of Legal Services 
 
Report Author – Paulina Ford, Senior Governance Officer, Scrutiny 
Contact Details – 01733 452508 or email paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk 
 
NOTICE OF INTENTION TO TAKE KEY DECISIONS 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 This is a regular report to the Sustainable Growth and Environment Capital Scrutiny Committee 

outlining the content of the Notice of Intention to Take Key Decisions. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 That the Committee identifies any relevant items for inclusion within their work programme. 
 

3. BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The latest version of the Notice of Intention to Take Key Decisions is attached at Appendix 1.  
The Notice contains those key decisions, which the Leader of the Council believes that the 
Cabinet or individual Cabinet Member(s) can take and any new key decisions to be taken after 
20 September 2013. 
 

3.2 The information in the Notice of Intention to Take Key Decisions provides the Committee with the 
opportunity of considering whether it wishes to seek to influence any of these key decisions, or to 
request further information. 
 

3.3 If the Committee wished to examine any of the key decisions, consideration would need to be 
given as to how this could be accommodated within the work programme. 
 

3.4 
 

As the Notice is published fortnightly any version of the Notice published after dispatch of this 
agenda will be tabled at the meeting. 
 

4. CONSULTATION 
 

4.1 Details of any consultation on individual decisions are contained within the Notice of Intention to 
Take Key Decisions. 
 

5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

 
 None 

 
6. APPENDICES 

 
 Appendix 1 – Notice of Intention to Take Key Decisions 
 
 

79



80

This page is intentionally left blank



  
P
E
T
E
R
B
O
R
O
U
G
H
 C
IT
Y
  

C
O
U
N
C
IL
’S
 N
O
T
IC
E
 O
F
 

IN
T
E
N
T
IO
N
 T
O
 T
A
K
E
 K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
S
 

 
   

P
U
B
L
IS
H
E
D
: 
 2
2
 A
U
G
U
S
T
 2
0
1
3
 

81



 

N
O
T
IC
E
 O
F
 I
N
T
E
N
T
IO
N
 T
O
 T
A
K
E
 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
S
 

A
B

 

In
 t
h
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
in
g
 2
8
 d
a
y
s
 a
ft
e
r 
th
e
 d
a
te
 o
f 
p
u
b
lic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
is
 n
o
ti
c
e
, 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 i
n
te
n
d
s
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 'k
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
' o
n
 t
h
e
 

is
s
u
e
s
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
b
e
lo
w
. 
 K
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 r
e
la
te
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 o
r 
s
a
v
in
g
 m

o
n
e
y
 i
n
 e
x
c
e
s
s
 o
f 

£
5
0
0
,0
0
0
 a
n
d
/o
r 
h
a
v
e
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
w
o
 o
r 
m
o
re
 w
a
rd
s
 i
n
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
. 

 If
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 t
o
 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 a
n
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
c
a
b
in
e
t 
m
e
m
b
e
r,
 t
h
e
 n
a
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 c
a
b
in
e
t 
m
e
m
b
e
r 
is
 s
h
o
w
n
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
, 
in
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
o
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r’
s
 p
o
rt
fo
lio
. 
If
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 t
o
 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
a
b
in
e
t,
 i
t’
s
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
re
 a
s
 l
is
te
d
 b
e
lo
w
: 

C
llr
 C
e
re
s
te
 (
L
e
a
d
e
r)
; 
C
llr
 E
ls
e
y
; 
C
llr
 F
it
z
g
e
ra
ld
; 
C
llr
 H
o
ld
ic
h
; 
C
llr
 N
o
rt
h
; 
C
llr
 S
e
a
to
n
; 
C
llr
 S
c
o
tt
; 
a
n
d
 C
llr
 W

a
ls
h
. 
 

 T
h
is
 N
o
ti
c
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
e
e
n
 a
s
 a
n
 o
u
tl
in
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 f
o
rt
h
c
o
m
in
g
 m

o
n
th
 a
n
d
 i
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 o
n
 a
 f
o
rt
n
ig
h
tl
y
 b
a
s
is
. 
 E
a
c
h
 n
e
w
 n
o
ti
c
e
 

s
u
p
e
rs
e
d
e
s
 t
h
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 n
o
ti
c
e
 a
n
d
 i
te
m
s
 m

a
y
 b
e
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
v
e
r 
in
to
 f
o
rt
h
c
o
m
in
g
 n
o
ti
c
e
s
. 
 A
n
y
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 o
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 N
o
ti
c
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

 w
h
ic
h
 a
p
p
e
a
rs
 a
t 
th
e
 b
a
c
k
 o
f 
th
e
 N
o
ti
c
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 A
le
x
 D
a
y
n
e
s
, 
S
e
n
io
r 
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 O
ff
ic
e
r,
 C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t,
 T
o
w
n
 

H
a
ll,
 B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
E
1
 1
H
G
 (
fa
x
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
4
8
3
).
 A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
ly
, 
y
o
u
 c
a
n
 s
u
b
m
it
 y
o
u
r 
v
ie
w
s
 v
ia
 e
-m

a
il 
to
 a
le
x
a
n
d
e
r.
d
a
y
n
e
s
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 o
r 
b
y
 

te
le
p
h
o
n
e
 o
n
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
4
4
7
. 

 W
h
ils
t 
th
e
 m
a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
th
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 a
t 
th
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 l
is
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
is
 N
o
ti
c
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 o
p
e
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
 a
n
d
 m
e
d
ia
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
, 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

s
o
m
e
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
n
ta
in
s
, 
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
, 
c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a
l,
 c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
lly
 s
e
n
s
it
iv
e
 o
r 
p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
. 
 I
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 t
h
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

m
a
y
 b
e
 h
e
ld
 i
n
 p
ri
v
a
te
, 
a
n
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 r
a
re
 o
c
c
a
s
io
n
 t
h
is
 a
p
p
lie
s
 t
h
is
 i
s
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
is
t 
b
e
lo
w
. 
A
 f
o
rm

a
l 
n
o
ti
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 i
n
te
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 h
o
ld
 t
h
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
, 
o
r 
p
a
rt
 o
f 
it
, 

in
 p
ri
v
a
te
, 
w
ill
 b
e
 g
iv
e
n
 2
8
 c
le
a
r 
d
a
y
s
 i
n
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
a
n
y
 p
ri
v
a
te
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 T
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 (
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 A
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
) 
(M

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
n
d
 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 I
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
) 
(E
n
g
la
n
d
) 
R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
 2
0
1
2
. 
 

 
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
in
v
it
e
s
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 a
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
t 
w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
s
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 (
u
n
le
s
s
 a
 n
o
ti
c
e
 o
f 
in
te
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 h
o
ld
 t
h
e
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 p
ri
v
a
te
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 g
iv
e
n
).
 

 Y
o
u
 a
re
 e
n
ti
tl
e
d
 t
o
 v
ie
w
 a
n
y
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 l
is
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 n
o
ti
c
e
, 
o
r 
o
b
ta
in
 e
x
tr
a
c
ts
 f
ro
m
 a
n
y
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 l
is
te
d
 o
r 
s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m

a
k
e
r 

p
ri
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 b
e
in
g
 m

a
d
e
, 
s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 a
n
y
 r
e
s
tr
ic
ti
o
n
s
 o
n
 d
is
c
lo
s
u
re
. 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 c
h
a
rg
e
 f
o
r 
v
ie
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 c
h
a
rg
e
s
 m
a
y
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 f
o
r 

p
h
o
to
c
o
p
y
in
g
 o
r 
p
o
s
ta
g
e
. 
 D
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 l
is
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 n
o
ti
c
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 c
a
n
 b
e
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 f
ro
m
 A
le
x
 D
a
y
n
e
s
, 
S
e
n
io
r 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 O
ff
ic
e
r,
 C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t,
 T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll,
 B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
E
1
 1
H
G
 (
fa
x
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
4
8
3
),
 e
-m

a
il 
to
 

a
le
x
a
n
d
e
r.
d
a
y
n
e
s
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 o
r 
b
y
 t
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
 o
n
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
4
4
7
. 
F
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 a
 p
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 T
e
a
m
 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 t
a
k
e
n
. 
 

 A
ll 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
o
s
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
: 
w
w
w
.p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
/e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
. 
 I
f 
y
o
u
 w
is
h
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 o
r 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 

re
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 'k
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
' 
o
u
tl
in
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
is
 N
o
ti
c
e
, 
p
le
a
s
e
 s
u
b
m
it
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 t
h
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

 a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
. 
 F
o
r 
y
o
u
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
, 
th
e
 

c
o
n
ta
c
t 
d
e
ta
ils
 f
o
r 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
is
 n
o
ti
c
e
. 

  

82



 

  

K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
S
 F
R
O
M
 2
0
 S
E
P
T
E
M
B
E
R
 2
0
1
3
 

 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

R
E
Q
U
IR
E
D
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

M
A
K
E
R
 

M
E
E
T
IN
G
 

O
P
E
N
 T
O
 

P
U
B
L
IC
 

R
E
L
E
V
A
N
T
  

S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 

C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 

C
O
N
S
U
L
T
A
T
IO
N
 
C
O
N
T
A
C
T
 D
E
T
A
IL
S
 /
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 A
U
T
H
O
R
S
 

D
O
C
U
M
E
N
T
S
 

R
E
L
E
V
A
N
T
 T
O
 

T
H
E
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

S
U
B
M
IT
T
E
D
 T
O
 

T
H
E
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

M
A
K
E
R
 (
IF
 A
N
Y
 

O
T
H
E
R
 T
H
A
N
 

P
U
B
L
IC
 R
E
P
O
R
T
) 

D
a
y
 a
n
d
 E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 a
n
d
 P
h
y
s
ic
a
l 

D
is
a
b
il
it
ie
s
 -
 

K
E
Y
/2
0
S
E
P
1
3
/0
1
 

A
g
re
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 T
ra
n
s
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
P
e
rs
o
n
 

C
e
n
tr
e
d
 A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
Y
o
u
n
g
e
r 

A
d
u
lt
s
 i
n
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
. 

C
a
b
in
e
t 

Y
e
s
 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs
 a
n
d
 s
ta
ff
. 

  

M
u
b
a
ra
k
 D
a
rb
a
r 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
5
0
9
 

m
u
b
a
ra
k
.d
a
rb
a
r@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro

u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

M
a
te
ri
a
ls
 R
e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 

F
a
c
il
it
y
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
- 

K
E
Y
/2
0
S
E
P
1
3
/0
2
 

A
g
re
e
 t
o
 j
o
in
t 
p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

M
R
F
 f
o
r 
b
u
lk
in
g
, 
s
o
rt
in
g
 a
n
d
 

o
n
w
a
rd
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 s
a
le
 o
f 

re
c
y
c
la
b
le
 m

a
te
ri
a
ls
, 
in
 

c
o
lla
b
o
ra
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 R
E
C
A
P
 

P
a
rt
n
e
r 
C
o
u
n
c
ils
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
G
a
v
in
 

E
ls
e
y
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
C
u
lt
u
re
, 

R
e
c
re
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

W
a
s
te
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

N
/A
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

R
ic
h
a
rd
 P
e
a
rn
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
- 

W
a
s
te
 I
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

 ri
c
h
a
rd
.p
e
a
rn
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g

h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

83



 

 C
it
y
 C
o
ll
e
g
e
 E
x
te
n
s
io
n
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
- 
K
E
Y
/2
0
S
E
P
1
3
/0
3
 

U
s
in
g
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 F
u
n
d
in
g
 

A
g
e
n
c
y
 g
ra
n
t 
to
 c
re
a
te
 a
 

d
e
d
ic
a
te
d
, 
c
u
s
to
m
is
e
d
 s
p
a
c
e
 

fo
r 
s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 a
g
e
d
 1
6
-1
9
 w
it
h
 

le
a
rn
in
g
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
J
o
h
n
 

H
o
ld
ic
h
 O
B
E
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

S
k
il
ls
 a
n
d
 

U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
 

N
/A
 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

B
ri
a
n
 H
o
w
a
rd
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
- 

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
7
6
 

b
ri
a
n
.h
o
w
a
rd
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g

h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

P
R
E
V
IO
U
S
L
Y
 A
D
V
E
R
T
IS
E
D
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
S
 

 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
's
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
R
e
c
e
ip
t 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

S
a
le
 o
f 
D
ic
k
e
n
s
 S
tr
e
e
t 

C
a
r 
P
a
rk
 -
 K
E
Y
/0
3
J
U
L
/1
1
 

T
o
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
 t
h
e
 C
h
ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
, 
in
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 S
o
lic
it
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il,
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
–
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 
th
e
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 

to
 n
e
g
o
ti
a
te
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 

s
a
le
 o
f 
D
ic
k
e
n
s
 S
tr
e
e
t 
C
a
r 

P
a
rk
. 
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
D
a
v
id
 

S
e
a
to
n
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

N
/A
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 

ta
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

M
e
m
b
e
r,
 W

a
rd
 

c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
, 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 &
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

  

R
ic
h
a
rd
 H
o
d
g
s
o
n
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
ro
je
c
ts
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
8
4
5
3
5
 

ri
c
h
a
rd
.h
o
d
g
s
o
n
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro

u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

R
o
ll
in
g
 S
e
le
c
t 
L
is
t 
- 

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
F
o
s
te
ri
n
g
 

A
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 -
 K
E
Y
/0
1
J
U
L
/1
2
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 l
is
t 
fo
r 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
fo
s
te
ri
n
g
 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
S
h
e
il
a
 

S
c
o
tt
 O
B
E
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

N
/A
 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

  

O
liv
e
r 
H
a
y
w
a
rd
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
- 

A
im
in
g
 H
ig
h
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
1
0
 

o
liv
e
r.
h
a
y
w
a
rd
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u

g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

84



 

 C
a
re
 a
n
d
 R
e
p
a
ir
 

F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
- 

K
E
Y
/1
8
D
E
C
1
2
/0
1
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 a
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 

a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
 o
f 

ra
te
s
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
d
is
a
b
le
d
 

fa
c
ili
ty
 g
ra
n
t 
w
o
rk
. 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 

d
is
a
b
le
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
o
ile
t 

a
n
d
 w
a
s
h
in
g
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
o
rk
 i
n
 

d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
. 

 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
N
ig
e
l 

N
o
rt
h
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
a
n
d
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 

N
/A
 

S
tr
o
n
g
 a
n
d
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
iv
e
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
In
te
rn
a
l 

D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
. 

  

R
u
s
s
 C
a
rr
 

C
a
re
 &
 R
e
p
a
ir
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
8
6
4
 

ru
s
s
.c
a
rr
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o

v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
C
a
p
it
a
l 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 -
 

K
E
Y
/2
4
J
A
N
1
3
/0
2
 

A
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
 f
o
r 
p
u
b
lic
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

 C
a
b
in
e
t 

Y
E
S
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

F
o
u
r 
w
e
e
k
 p
u
b
lic
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

  

C
h
a
rl
o
tt
e
 P
a
lm
e
r 

C
lim

a
te
 C
h
a
n
g
e
 T
e
a
m
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

 c
h
a
rl
o
tt
e
.p
a
lm
e
r@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro

u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

F
le
tt
o
n
 P
a
rk
w
a
y
 J
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 

1
7
 t
o
 2
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

s
c
h
e
m
e
 -
 

K
E
Y
/2
4
J
A
N
1
3
/0
7
 

T
o
 a
g
re
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 i
s
 b
ro
u
g
h
t 

fo
rw
a
rd
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 2
0
1
2
 a
n
d
 

2
0
1
5
 i
n
 M
e
d
iu
m
 T
e
rm

 
F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
a
w
a
rd
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

w
o
rk
s
.  

 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
G
r.
 U
ff
. 

M
a
rc
o
 C
e
re
s
te
 

L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 a
n
d
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
G
ro
w
th
, 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
, 

H
o
u
s
in
g
, 

E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

N
/A
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

M
a
rk
 S
p
e
e
d
 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 T
e
a
m
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 3
1
7
4
7
1
 

m
a
rk
.s
p
e
e
d
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.

g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

85



 

 S
a
le
 o
f 
C
ra
ig
 S
tr
e
e
t 
C
a
r 

P
a
rk
 -
 K
E
Y
/2
5
M
A
R
1
3
/0
1
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 s
a
le
 o
f 
la
n
d
 

k
n
o
w
n
 a
s
 C
ra
ig
 S
tr
e
e
t 
C
a
r 

P
a
rk
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
D
a
v
id
 

S
e
a
to
n
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

N
/A
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
In
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 E
x
te
rn
a
l 

S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

w
a
rd
 c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
. 

  

D
a
v
id
 G
ra
y
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
je
c
ts
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
8
4
5
3
1
 

d
a
v
id
.g
ra
y
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g

o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

F
u
tu
re
 C
it
ie
s
 

D
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
to
r 
- 

K
E
Y
/1
1
J
U
L
1
3
/0
1
 

T
o
 r
e
-a
ff
ir
m
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
to
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

‘P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 D
N
A
’ 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
s
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 t
h
e
 

s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 T
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 B
o
a
rd
 (
T
S
B
) 
w
h
ic
h
 

a
tt
ra
c
te
d
 t
h
e
 a
w
a
rd
 o
f 
£
3
M
 t
o
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
o
n
 

th
e
 3
1
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
G
r.
 U
ff
. 

M
a
rc
o
 C
e
re
s
te
 

L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 a
n
d
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
G
ro
w
th
, 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
, 

H
o
u
s
in
g
, 

E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

N
/A
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 

ta
k
e
n
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il,
 t
h
e
 C
h
ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
, 
C
a
b
in
e
t 

M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
a
n
d
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
, 

th
e
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

D
N
A
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 

T
e
a
m
 a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 f
if
ty
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
 a
t 

a
 w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
 o
n
 1
4
th
 

M
a
y
 2
0
1
3
. 

 

C
h
a
rl
o
tt
e
 P
a
lm
e
r 

C
lim

a
te
 C
h
a
n
g
e
 T
e
a
m
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

 c
h
a
rl
o
tt
e
.p
a
lm
e
r@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro

u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 

T
h
e
 E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 o
f 

F
u
lb
ri
d
g
e
 A
c
a
d
e
m
y
 t
o
 

fo
u
r 
fo
rm

s
 o
f 
e
n
tr
y
 -
 

K
E
Y
/2
5
J
U
L
1
3
/0
2
 

A
w
a
rd
 o
f 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 

E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 o
f 
F
u
lb
ri
d
g
e
 

A
c
a
d
e
m
y
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 

a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
o
f 
p
ro
p
e
rt
y
, 
le
g
a
l 
a
n
d
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 e
n
a
b
lin
g
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
 

w
it
h
 t
h
ir
d
 p
a
rt
ie
s
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
J
o
h
n
 

H
o
ld
ic
h
 O
B
E
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

S
k
il
ls
 a
n
d
 

U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
, 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

N
/A
 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

B
ri
a
n
 H
o
w
a
rd
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
- 

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
7
6
 

b
ri
a
n
.h
o
w
a
rd
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g

h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

86



 

 F
le
tt
o
n
 P
a
rk
w
a
y
 

W
id
e
n
in
g
 J
n
1
7
-2
 -
 

K
E
Y
/2
5
J
U
L
1
3
/0
3
 

T
o
 a
w
a
rd
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
S
it
e
 

S
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

A
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
G
r.
 U
ff
. 

M
a
rc
o
 C
e
re
s
te
 

L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 a
n
d
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
G
ro
w
th
, 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
, 

H
o
u
s
in
g
, 

E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

N
/A
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

S
im
o
n
 M
a
c
h
e
n
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
P
la
n
n
in
g
, 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
3
4
7
5
 

s
im
o
n
.m
a
c
h
e
n
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u

g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 

T
h
e
 E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 o
f 

W
o
o
d
s
to
n
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
to
 t
w
o
 f
o
rm

s
 o
f 

e
n
tr
y
 -
 K
E
Y
/0
8
A
U
G
1
3
/0
1
 

A
w
a
rd
 o
f 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 

E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 o
f 
W
o
o
d
s
to
n
 

P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l,
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 

a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
o
f 
p
ro
p
e
rt
y
, 
le
g
a
l 
a
n
d
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 e
n
a
b
lin
g
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
 

w
it
h
 t
h
ir
d
 p
a
rt
ie
s
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
J
o
h
n
 

H
o
ld
ic
h
 O
B
E
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

S
k
il
ls
 a
n
d
 

U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
 

N
/A
 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

In
te
rn
a
l 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 w
a
rd
 

c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
. 

  

B
ri
a
n
 H
o
w
a
rd
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
- 

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
7
6
 

b
ri
a
n
.h
o
w
a
rd
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g

h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

T
h
e
 E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 o
f 

R
a
v
e
n
s
th
o
rp
e
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
to
 t
w
o
 f
o
rm

s
 o
f 

e
n
tr
y
 -
 K
E
Y
/0
8
A
U
G
1
3
/0
2
 

A
w
a
rd
 o
f 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 

E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 o
f 
R
a
v
e
n
s
th
o
rp
e
 

P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l,
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 

a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
o
f 
p
ro
p
e
rt
y
, 
le
g
a
l 
a
n
d
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 e
n
a
b
lin
g
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
 

w
it
h
 t
h
ir
d
 p
a
rt
ie
s
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
J
o
h
n
 

H
o
ld
ic
h
 O
B
E
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

S
k
il
ls
 a
n
d
 

U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
 

N
/A
 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 w
a
rd
 

c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
. 

  

B
ri
a
n
 H
o
w
a
rd
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
- 

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
7
6
 

b
ri
a
n
.h
o
w
a
rd
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g

h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 

87



 

 T
h
e
 E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 o
f 
O
rt
o
n
 

W
is
to
w
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
to
 

tw
o
 f
o
rm

s
 o
f 
e
n
tr
y
 -
 

K
E
Y
/0
8
A
U
G
1
3
/0
3
 

A
w
a
rd
 o
f 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 

E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 o
f 
O
rt
o
n
 W

is
to
w
 

P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l,
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 

a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
o
f 
p
ro
p
e
rt
y
, 
le
g
a
l 
a
n
d
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 e
n
a
b
lin
g
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
 

w
it
h
 t
h
ir
d
 p
a
rt
ie
s
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
J
o
h
n
 

H
o
ld
ic
h
 O
B
E
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

N
/A
 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 e
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

w
a
rd
 c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
. 

  

B
ri
a
n
 H
o
w
a
rd
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
- 

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
7
6
 

b
ri
a
n
.h
o
w
a
rd
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g

h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

C
la
re
 L
o
d
g
e
 -
 

K
E
Y
/2
2
A
U
G
1
3
/0
1
 

T
o
 a
w
a
rd
 a
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
S
h
e
il
a
 

S
c
o
tt
 O
B
E
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

N
/A
 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

  

O
liv
e
r 
H
a
y
w
a
rd
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
- 

A
im
in
g
 H
ig
h
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
1
0
 

o
liv
e
r.
h
a
y
w
a
rd
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u

g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

D
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 -
 K
E
Y
/0
6
S
E
P
1
3
/0
1
 

A
w
a
rd
 o
f 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
to
 a
 

p
ro
v
id
e
r 
to
 r
u
n
 t
h
e
 D
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 C
e
n
tr
e
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
W
a
y
n
e
 

F
it
z
g
e
ra
ld
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 

C
a
re
 

N
/A
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 I
s
s
u
e
s
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 w
it
h
 

o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
’s
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 b
o
a
rd
 

fo
llo
w
e
d
 b
y
 m

e
n
ta
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 s
te
e
ri
n
g
 

g
ro
u
p
. 

   

N
ic
k
 B
la
k
e
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
&
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
4
0
6
 

n
ic
k
.b
la
k
e
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g

o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

D
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 m

in
i 

te
n
d
e
r 
- 
K
E
Y
/0
6
S
E
P
1
3
/0
2
 

T
o
 a
w
a
rd
 a
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 

p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 w
o
rk
s
 t
o
 b
e
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 

o
u
t 
to
 t
h
e
 D
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 s
it
e
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
W
a
y
n
e
 

F
it
z
g
e
ra
ld
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 

C
a
re
 

N
/A
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 I
s
s
u
e
s
 

O
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
’s
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 b
o
a
rd
 

fo
llo
w
e
d
 b
y
 m

e
n
ta
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 s
te
e
ri
n
g
 

g
ro
u
p
. 

  

N
ic
k
 B
la
k
e
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
&
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
4
0
6
 

n
ic
k
.b
la
k
e
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g

o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

88



 

 P
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
C
a
re
 a
n
d
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
A
d
u
lt
s
 

(H
o
m
e
c
a
re
) 
- 

K
E
Y
/0
6
S
E
P
1
3
/0
3
 

A
w
a
rd
 o
f 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
P
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
C
a
re
 

a
n
d
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
W
a
y
n
e
 

F
it
z
g
e
ra
ld
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 

C
a
re
 

N
/A
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 I
s
s
u
e
s
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

N
ic
k
 B
la
k
e
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
&
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
4
0
6
 

n
ic
k
.b
la
k
e
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g

o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

89



 C
H
IE
F
 E
X
E
C
U
T
IV
E
'S
 D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
  
T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll
, 
B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
P
E
1
 1
H
G
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

L
e
g
a
l 
a
n
d
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

P
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 R
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 

E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

H
R
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 R
e
la
ti
o
n
s
, 
T
ra
in
in
g
 &
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t,
 O
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 R
e
w
a
rd
 &
 P
o
lic
y
 

 S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IC
 R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
  
D
ir
e
c
to
r'
s
 O
ff
ic
e
 a
t 
T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll
, 
B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
P
E
1
 1
H
G
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
  

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 T
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 (
IC
T
) 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 T
ra
n
s
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
ro
p
e
rt
y
  

W
a
s
te
 

C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

S
h
a
re
d
 T
ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
T
ru
s
t 
C
lie
n
t 

 C
H
IL
D
R
E
N
S
’ 
S
E
R
V
IC
E
S
 D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
  
B
a
y
a
rd
 P
la
c
e
, 
B
ro
a
d
w
a
y
, 
P
E
1
 1
F
B
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
, 
F
a
m
ily
 &
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 &
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 &
 P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 

 O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
S
 D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
  
D
ir
e
c
to
r’
s
 O
ff
ic
e
 a
t 
T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll
, 
B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
P
E
1
 1
H
G
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 &
 E
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 (
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t,
 C
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 &
 C
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
, 
In
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 &
 D
e
liv
e
ry
, 
N
e
tw
o
rk
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t,
 P
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
) 
  

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 (
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
a
rk
in
g
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
C
C
T
V
, 
C
it
y
 C
e
n
tr
e
, 
M
a
rk
e
ts
 &
 C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
T
ra
d
in
g
, 
T
o
u
ri
s
m
) 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 (
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 R
e
g
u
la
to
ry
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
S
a
fe
r 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 H
o
u
s
in
g
, 
C
o
h
e
s
io
n
, 
S
o
c
ia
l 
In
c
lu
s
io
n
, 
N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t)
 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 (
F
in
a
n
c
e
) 
 

P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 

 A
D
U
L
T
 S
O
C
IA
L
 C
A
R
E
 D
ir
e
c
to
r’
s
 O
ff
ic
e
 a
t 
T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll
, 
B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
P
E
1
 1
H
G
 

C
a
re
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 (
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
&
 C
a
re
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t;
 I
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 H
IV
/A
ID
S
; 
R
e
g
u
la
te
d
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 (
M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 I
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
; 
O
ld
e
r 
P
e
o
p
le
, 
P
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 &
 S
e
n
s
o
ry
 I
m
p
a
ir
m
e
n
t;
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
, 
P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
&
 

90



 C
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
) 

Q
u
a
lit
y
, 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 (
P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 &
 I
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
; 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
; 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 &
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
; 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
y
s
te
m
s
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t;
 

Q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 W

o
rk
fo
rc
e
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t)
 

 

91



92

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
S
U
S
T
A
IN
A
B
L
E
 G
R
O
W
T
H
 A
N
D
 E
N
V
IR
O
N
M
E
N
T
 C
A
P
IT
A
L
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 

 
 

 
 

 
U
p
d
a
te
d
: 
2
4
 J
U
L
Y
 2
0
1
3
 

W
O
R
K
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 D
a
te
 

 

It
e
m
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

E
s
ta
b
li
s
h
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 t
o
 I
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
 t
h
e
 

B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 o
f 
e
x
te
n
d
in
g
 2
0
m
p
h
 S
p
e
e
d
 L
im

it
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 R
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
A
re
a
s
 o
f 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

T
o
 a

g
re

e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 T

a
s
k
 a

n
d
 F

in
is

h
 G

ro
u
p
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
 

T
e
rm

s
 o

f 
R

e
fe

re
n
c
e
. 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
P
a
u
li
n
a
 F
o
rd
 

T
a
s
k
 a

n
d
 F

in
is

h
 G

ro
u
p
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
. 

E
n
e
rg
y
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
(E
n
P
C
) 
 

 T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv

e
 a

n
 u

p
d
a
te

 o
n
 e

n
e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 (
E
n
P
C

) 
o
n
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

o
w

n
e
d
 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 d

ra
ft
 C

M
D

N
 t
h
a
t 
re

la
te

s
 t
o
 a

 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
a
w

a
rd

. 
 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
J
o
h
n
 H
a
rr
is
o
n
 

 

E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
  
P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

 T
o
 s

c
ru

ti
n
is

e
 t
h
e
 p

e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 P

e
te

rb
o
ro

u
g
h
 P

a
rt
n
e
rs

h
ip

 
a
n
d
 m

a
k
e
 a

n
y
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
D
o
m
in
ic
 H
u
d
s
o
n
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
te

d
 a

t 
 1

8
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 

1
2
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
3
 

D
ra
ft
 R
e
p
o
rt
 2
4
 M
a
y
 

F
in
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 3
 J
u
n
e
 

 

R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
2
0
1
1
/1
2
 a
n
d
 F
u
tu
re
 W

o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

T
o
 r
e
v
ie

w
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 a

n
d
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 
th

e
 f
u
tu

re
 

w
o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
P
a
u
li
n
a
 F
o
rd

 

It
e
m

s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 b

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 

w
o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

 1
1
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
3
 

D
ra
ft
 R
e
p
o
rt
 2
6
 J
u
n
e
 

F
in
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 3
 J
u
ly
 

C
a
ll
-I
n
 o
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 D
e
c
is
io
n
 –
 P
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r 
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 –
 S
u
b
s
id
is
e
d
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
ro
v
is
io
n
 –
 J
U
L
1
3
/C
A
B
/0
5
9
 

  

 

93



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 D
a
te
 

 

It
e
m
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 –
 S
e
rc
o
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 

T
o
 s

c
ru

ti
n
is

e
 t
h
e
 S

e
rc

o
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 P
a
rt
n
e
rs

h
ip

 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 m

a
k
e
 a

n
y
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
D
o
m
in
ic
 H
u
d
s
o
n
 

 

H
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 R
e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

T
o
 c

o
m

m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 r
e
lo

c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 H

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 R
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 C

e
n
tr
e
. 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 P
a
u
l 
R
o
b
e
rt
s
o
n
 

 

E
n
e
rg
y
 f
ro
m
 W

a
s
te
 U
p
d
a
te
 

 T
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 a

n
 u

p
d
a
te

 a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 E

n
e
rg

y
 f
ro

m
 W

a
s
te

 (
E
fW

) 
F
a
c
ili
ty

 i
n
 F

e
n
g
a
te

. 
 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
R
ic
h
a
rd
 P
e
a
rn
 

 

   

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 I
n
 A
 D
a
y
: 
A
 F
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 W

e
lf
a
re
 R
e
fo
rm

 
 T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv

e
 a

 r
e
p
o
rt
 o

n
 a

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
fo

r 
a
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 i
n
 a

 D
a
y
 r
e
v
ie

w
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
W

e
lf
a
re

 R
e
fo

rm
. 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
P
a
u
li
n
a
 F
o
rd
 /
 A
d
ri
a
n
 C
h
a
p
m
a
n
 

 

 

H
u
m
a
n
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 R
e
p
o
rt
 –
 S
ix
 M
o
n
th
ly
 P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

  C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
M
ik
e
 K
e
a
le
y
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
te

d
 1

8
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
. 

5
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
  

D
ra
ft
 R
e
p
o
rt
 2
1
 A
u
g
 

F
in
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 2
7
 A
u
g
 

E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
  
K
e
y
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

  C
o
n
ta
c
t:
  
D
o
m
in
ic
 H
u
d
s
o
n
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
te

d
 a

t 
1
2
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
3
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 

94



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 D
a
te
 

 

It
e
m
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 o
f 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
/P
ro
je
c
ts
  

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv

e
 a

n
 u

p
d
a
te

 a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
C

a
p
it
a
l 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 

a
n
d
 P

ro
je

c
ts

 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 C
h
a
rl
o
tt
e
 P
a
lm

e
r 

 

D
e
fe

rr
e
d
 f
ro

m
 J

u
ly

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
. 

 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
it
y
 C
e
n
tr
e
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
 D
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
G
e
m
m
a
 W

il
d
m
a
n
 

 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 I
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 l
e
v
y
 (
C
IL
) 
F
in
a
l 
D
ra
ft
 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 S
te
v
e
 W

in
s
ta
n
le
y
 

 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
e
r 
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 S
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ry
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 D
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 S
te
v
e
 W

in
s
ta
n
le
y
 

 

A
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
F
u
n
d
in
g
 P
o
li
c
y
 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
A
n
n
e
 K
e
o
g
h
 

 

1
5
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

(a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
) 

 D
ra
ft
 R
e
p
o
rt
 2
7
 S
e
p
t 

F
in
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 4
 O
c
t 

 

G
y
p
s
y
 a
n
d
 T
ra
v
e
ll
e
rs
 S
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ry
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 D
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 G
e
m
m
a
 W

il
d
m
a
n
 

 

  7
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

 D
ra
ft
 R
e
p
o
rt
 2
3
 O
c
t 

G
ro
w
th
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 –
 R
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
rs
: 
 S
im

o
n
 M

a
c
h
e
n
 /
 A
n
d
re
w
 E
d
w
a
rd
s
 

 

95



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 D
a
te
 

 

It
e
m
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 –
 R
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
N
e
il
 D
a
rw

in
 

 

C
a
rb
o
n
  
E
m
is
s
io
n
s
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
  
- 
A
n
n
u
a
l 
U
p
d
a
te
 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
C
h
a
rl
o
tt
e
 P
a
lm

e
r 

 

F
in
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 3
0
 O
c
t 

 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
C
a
p
it
a
l 
A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
C
h
a
rl
o
tt
e
 P
a
lm

e
r 

 

 8
 o
r 
2
0
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 

2
0
1
4
 

(J
o
in
t 
M
e
e
ti
n
g
 o
f 

th
e
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
s
 a
n
d
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
s
) 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 M

e
d
iu
m
 T
e
rm

 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
P
la
n
 

T
o
 s

c
ru

ti
n
is

e
 t
h
e
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 f
o
r 
th

e
 B

u
d
g
e
t 
2
0
1
2
/1

3
 a

n
d
 M

e
d
iu

m
 

T
e
rm

 F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
P
la

n
. 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
J
o
h
n
 H
a
rr
is
o
n
/S
te
v
e
n
 P
il
s
w
o
rt
h
 

 

 
 

 

L
o
c
a
l 
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 P
la
n
 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
M
a
rk
 S
p
e
e
d
 

 
1
0
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

D
ra
ft
 R
e
p
o
rt
 2
3
 J
a
n
 

F
in
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 3
0
 J
a
n
 

 
 

 
 

 

96



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 D
a
te
 

 

It
e
m
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
H
u
m
a
n
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

T
o
 s

c
ru

ti
n
is

e
 t
h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
H

R
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 R

e
p
o
rt
. 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 M
ik
e
 K
e
a
le
y
 

 
7
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
  

D
ra
ft
 R
e
p
o
rt
 2
0
 M
a
r 

F
in
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 2
7
 M
a
r 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 C
o
m
p
la
in
ts
  
A
n
n
u
a
l 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 R
e
p
o
rt
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

T
o
 s

c
ru

ti
n
is

e
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 r
e
p
o
rt
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 a

n
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
y
 

a
re

a
s
 o

f 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

. 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
M
a
rk
 S
a
n
d
h
u
/B
e
li
n
d
a
 E
v
a
n
s
 

 

  T
O
 B
E
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
D
 2
0
1
3
/2
0
1
4
 

 It
e
m
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
o
c
a
l 
F
lo

o
d
 R

is
k
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
D

ra
ft
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 -
 C

o
n
ta

c
t 
O

ff
ic

e
r:
  
J
u
lia

 C
h
a
tt
e
rt
o
n
 

 
D

a
te

 t
o
 b

e
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 b

y
 R

ic
h
a
rd

 K
a
y
. 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 i
n
 a

 D
a
y
: 
F
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 W

e
lf
a
re

 R
e
fo

rm
 

D
a
te

 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.
 

 

97



98

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Meetings held on 12 June and 11 July
	130711 - SG&ECSC - DRAFT Minutes

	5 Human Resources Monitoring Report
	6 Environment Capital Update
	7 Enterprise Peterborough Partnership Performance Report
	Appendix 1 - Enterprise Peterborough Report - 130905 - SG&ECSC
	Appendix 2 0 - Enterprise Report - 130905 - SG&ECSC

	8 Community Asset Transfer Strategy
	Appendix 1 - Community Asset Transfer - 130905 - SG&ECSC

	9 Notice of Intention to Take Key Decisions
	Appendix 1 - Nootice of Intention to Take Key Decisions - 130905 - SG&ECSC

	10 Work Programme 2013/2014

